ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
THURSDAY, JUNE 8, 2017
6:30 p.m.

LOCATION:
6826 Hazel Ave.
Orangevale, CA 95662

NOTE: The Board of Directors may take up any Agenda item at any time, regardless of the order listed. Action
may be taken on any item on the Agenda.

1.

2.

8.1

8.2

83

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

PUBLIC DISCUSSION

Any person may address the board upon any subject within the jurisdiction of the Orangevale Recreation
& Park District with each speaker being limited to three minutes. However, the Chairperson can impose
reasonable limitations to the maximum time per person and per agenda item to allow the Board to
complete its business. Any matter that requires action will be referred to staff or committee for a report
and action at a subsequent meeting.

MINUTES

a. Approval of minutes of May 11, 2017 meeting (pg 1-6)

b. Approval of minutes of May 16, 2017 special meeting (pg 7-8)
c. Approval of minutes of May 25, 2017 special meeting (pg 9-10)

CORRESPONDENCE
a. Confidential envelope — Attorney billing March 2017
b. Confidential envelope — Attorney billing April 2017

CONSENT CALENDAR: Reading/Opportunity to Pull Items for Discussion/Board Action

Consent items are considered routine and are intended to be acted upon in one motion, without
discussion. During this portion of the meeting, the Consent Calendar will be read aloud. Prior to approval,
the Chairperson will give the Board, staff, and public the opportunity to pull any item for discussion. The
remaining Calendar will be acted upon. Any pulled items will then be heard and acted upon individually.

CONSENT MATTERS GENERAL FUND
No Report

OLLAD CONSENT MATTERS

No Report

KENNETH GROVE CONSENT MATTERS
No Report



10.

11.

12.

13.

Orangevale Rec. & Park District
Board of Directors

Agenda

June &, 2017

Page 2

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS

a. Administration & Finance — 5/9/17 Meeting Recap (pg 11)
b. Maintenance & Operation

c. Recreation Committee

d. Personnel & Policy

e. Government

f. Planning Committee

g. Trails Committee

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
a. Monthly Activity Report — May 2017 (pg 12-13)

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. Update on the Land Exchange with San Juan Unified School District (verbal)

NEW BUSINESS

a. Election of Officers — Board Secretary

b. Approval of Resolution 17-06-572, Resolution Adopting the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/18 (pg 14-40)

c. Public Hearing: Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (OLLAD)

1. Approval of Resolution 17-06-573, Resolution Adopting the Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/18 (pg 41)

2. Approval of Resolution 17-06-574, Resolution Approving the Engineer’s Report, Confirming the
Diagram and Assessment, and Ordering the Levy of Assessment for Fiscal Year 2017-18 for the
Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (OLLAD) (pg 42-89)

d. Public Hearing: Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District

1. Approval of Resolution 17-06-575, Resolution Adopting the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and
Lighting Assessment District Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/18 (pg 90)

2. Approval of Resolution 17-06-576, Resolution Confirming the Diagram and Assessment, and
Ordering the Levy of Assessment for Fiscal Year 2017-18 for the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and
Lighting Assessment District (pg 91-111)

e. Approval of Resolution 17-06-577 Proclaiming the Month of July 2017 as Parks Make Life Better
Month (pg 112)

f. Approval of Resolution 17-06-578, Resolution Amending the District Salary Schedule (pg 113-1 17)

g. Approval of Resolution 17-06-579, Resolution Authorizing Transfer of Funds from the Parkland
Dedication Fund (088C) to the General Fund (332A) (pg 118)

h. Approval of Resolution 17-06-580, Resolution Authorizing a 2016/17 Final Budget Amendment for
Fund 332A (pg 119)

i. Approval of Special Event Application from Benjamin Bliven to host the Bumfest Event at Orangevale

Community Park on July 22, 2017 (pg 120-136)

j. Approval of the Agreement with MTW to Provide Irrigation As-Built Drawings for Pecan Park (pg

137-147)

k. Approval of Contract Amendment with TIR Resources, Inc. to Include Add Alternate 2 to the

Orangevale Community Park — Oak and Filbert Pathway Project in the amount of $83,802 (pg 148-149)

DIRECTOR’S AND STAFF’S COMMENTS




Orangevale Rec. & Park District
Board of Directors

Agenda

June 8, 2017

Page 3

14. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA

15. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

As presiding officer, the Chair has the authority to preserve order at all Board of Directors meetings, to remove
or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal,
impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive
while addressing said Board, and to enforce the rules of the Board.

People with disabilities may request accommodations such as interpreters, alternative formats, or assistance with
physical accessibility. Requests for accommodations must be made with 72 hours prior notice. If you require
accommodations, please contact the Orangevale Recreation & Park District main office at (916) 988-4373,

Directors can be reached at: director@ovparks.com

Manie Meraz Mike Stickney Sharon Brunberg Lisa Montes Erica Swenson



ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Minutes of Meeting of Board of Directors

May 11, 2017

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
was held on Thursday, May 11, 2017 at the District Office. Director Stickney called the
meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.

Directors present:
Staff present:

3. PLEDGE OF
ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL OF
AGENDA

MOTION #1

5. PUBLIC
DISCUSSION

6. MINUTES

MOTION #2

Minutes, May 11, 2017
Page 1 of 6

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Stickney, Meraz, Brunberg, Montes (One Vacant Position)
Greg Foell, District Administrator

Scott Russell, Park Superintendent

Jennifer Von Aesch, Finance/HR Manager

Jason Bain, Recreation Supervisor

Melyssa Woodford, Administrative Services Supervisor

The Pledge of Allegiance was conducted.

On a motion by Director Montes, seconded by Director Meraz, the
agenda was approved 4-0-0 with Directors Meraz, Stickney, Brunberg,
and Montes voting Aye. There were no Abstentions or Nays.

Mr. Morgan spoke to the Board regarding the vacant position on the
Board. He had emailed Admin. Foell who recommended he speak to
the Board directly as Mr. Morgan missed the deadline to apply.
Admin. Foell hesitated to allow him to apply after the deadline
because there could possibly be others who also wanted to apply after
the deadline had passed. He spoke with the District’s attorney who
advised that the Board could not make this decision because it was not
an agenda item. Further, they were advised that they could extend the
deadline to allow Mr. Morgan to apply but this would have to be
advertised in a newspaper. Director Meraz spoke about a prior similar
situation he encountered on another Board, which caused others to feel
it was unfair. Mr. Morgan advised that he was made aware of the
deadline two hours prior to it expiring. He felt that the Board should
possibly not allow applications to continue to be submitted after the

deadline, which several Board members and Admin. Foell agreed with.

The Board determined to not extend the deadline for the position.

a) Approval of Minutes of April 13, 2017 Meeting (pg 1-5): On a
motion by Director Montes, seconded by Director Brunberg, the
minutes were approved 4-0-0 with Directors Brunberg, Meraz,
Stickney, and Montes voting Aye. There were no Abstentions or
Nays.

- Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017

Page 1



7. CORRESPONDENCE a) Confidential Envelope — Attorney Billing February 2017: Ona
motion by Director Montes, seconded by Director Brunberg, the
MOTION #3 attorney billing was approved 4-0-0 with Directors Meraz,
Stickney, Brunberg, and Montes voting Aye. There were no
Abstentions or Nays.

b) Letter from AARP Thanking Staff for their Assistance with the
AARP Tax-Aide Program and Commending Rebekah Butcher,
Susan Riswold, and Melyssa Woodford for their work
Coordinating the Program (pg 6): Admin. Foell explained that they
worked to accept calls and make appointments for tax assistance,
which the letter indicated benefited over 500 people.

8. CONSENT On a motion by Director Brunberg, seconded by Director Stickney, the
CALENDAR consent items were approved 4-0-0 with Directors Meraz, Stickney,
Brunberg, and Montes voting Aye. There were no Abstentions or
MOTION #4 Nays.
8.1 CONSENT a) Ratification of Claims for April 2017 (pg 7-8)
MATTERS b) Budget Status Report for April 2017 (pg 9-11)
GENERAL FUND c) Revenue Report for April 2017 (pg 12)
8.2. OLLAD CONSENT a) Ratification of Claims for April 2017 (pg 13-14)
MATTERS b) Budget Status Report for April 2017 (pg 15-16)
8.3. KENNETH GROVE a) Ratification of Claims for April 2017 (pg 17)
CONSENT b) Budget Status Report for April 2017 (pg 18)
MATTERS
9. STANDING a) Administration and Finance: No report.
COMMITTEE
REPORTS b) Maintenance and Operation: No report.

¢) Recreation Committee: No report.

d) Personnel & Policy: No report.

e) Government: No report.

f) Planning Committee: No report.

g) Trails Committee: No report.

10. ADMINISTRATOR’S  a) Monthly Activity Report — April 2017 (pg 19-20): Admin. Foell
REPORT indicated that April was busy behind the scenes to get ready for the
summer months. He met with Sue Frost and her Chief of Staff at
her office, and he recommended that the Board take Ms. Frost on a
tour of the parks and facilities. Admin. Foell mentioned the park
bond and that there may be an opportunity for the County to apply
for a grant for improvements at Indian Stone Corral. Recreation

Minutes, May 11, 2017
Page 2 of 6

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 2



Coordinator McAdam and Admin. Foell met with the San Juan
Unified School District to discuss the Bridges After School
Program. The District had heard about SCERS speaking to other
park districts about part-time employees going over their allowed
hours which is a concern with the Bridges program. The District
has decided not to continue with the contract next year. Pre-
construction meetings were held for the Pecan Dog Park, the Oak
and Filbert Pathway project, and the Almond Shade Structure
project. Admin. Foell noted that progress was coming along nicely
on these projects. Coordinator Woodford noted that pickleball had
started and was being held on Tuesday and Thursday mornings for
open play sessions; there were six in attendance on the second day.
She also noted that swim lesson sessions were already selling out.
Supervisor Bain said they were getting ready for the swimming
season and pool opening in a couple weeks. The summer kickoff
party was being held on May 20. Superintendent Russell said the
fields were being used for softball games. Director Stickney noted
that a couple of the fields looked very nice.

b) Special Board Meeting — Selection of a New Director — Tentative
Date: Tuesday, May 16, 2017 (verbal): Admin. Foell reviewed the
current applications: Hari Modi, who attended the bridge program;
Richard Perez, who worked for the City of Sacramento Parks and
Recreation; Erica Swenson, a resident who organized a playground
build at Norma Hamlin Park; Charlie Clark, a long-standing
Orangevale resident who was previously on the Board; Leonard
Hawkins, who was also previously on the Board and was involved

MOTION #5 in soccer and other activities; and Bets Flores, who was active with
the Friends of Orangevale Library. The applicants will make
presentations at the upcoming special meeting. Director Montes
motioned that the Board hold the Special Meeting on May 16,
2017 at 6:30 p.m. The motion was seconded by Director Brunberg
and the motion was approved 4-0-0 with Directors Meraz,
Stickney, Brunberg, and Montes voting Aye. There were no
Abstentions or Nays.

¢) Special Board Meeting — Capital Project Workshop — Tentative

Date: Thursday, May 25, 2017 (verbal): This annual meeting
workshop will cover capital projects and reprioritizing the capital
improvement project for the upcoming year. A salary survey to

MOTION #6 compare Orangevale with other districts will also be discussed.
Director Brunberg motioned that the Board approve the Special
Meeting date as May 25, 2017 at 6:30 p.m. The motion was
seconded by Director Stickney and was approved 4-0-0 with
Directors Meraz, Stickney, Brunberg, and Montes voting Aye.
There were no Abstentions or Nays.

d) Job Announcement — Park Maintenance I/II Position (verbal): The

application date for this position closes May 16 and interviews will
be held shortly after. There were currently 35 candidates which
will be condensed to the top eight applicants before interviews are

Minutes, May 11, 2017
Page 3 of 6

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 3



11. UNFINISHED
BUSINESS

12. NEW BUSINESS

MOTION #7

MOTION #8

MOTION #9

Minutes, May 11, 2017
Page 4 of 6

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

held.

None discussed.

a)

b)

d)

Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 4

Presentation of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-18 (pg 21-46): The
Board reviewed the preliminary budget. Admin. Foell explained
that the Board will approve the preliminary budget in June. The
final budget will be advertised for public comment, and will be
considered for approval at the August meeting. The tax revenue
growth has been averaging $30-50,000 a year. The District
continues to increase program fees and part-time salaries due to
yearly nunimum wage increases. Director Brunberg requested
budget sheets with 2016-2017 actuals and projected actuals.
Admin. Foell noted that the finances available for capital projects
was diminishing and the budget will remain lean for these
projects. Once the Master Plans are complete, a District wide
finance plan can be discussed.

Approval of Resolution 17-05-569, Resolution of Intention to
Levy Assessments for Fiscal Year 2017-18, Preliminarily
Approving Engineer’s Report, and Providing for Notice of Hearing
for the Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District
(OLLAD) (pg 47-93): Director Brunberg motioned that the Board
approve Resolution 17-05-569 as stated. Public comment was open
and closed with no discussion. The motion was seconded by
Director Montes and approved 4-0-0 with Directors Meraz,
Stickney, Brunberg, and Montes voting Aye. There were no
Abstentions or Nays.

Approval of Resolution 17-05-570, Resolution of Intention to

Levy Assessments for Fiscal Year 2017-18, Preliminarily
Approving Engineer’s Report, and Providing for Notice of

Hearing for the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District (pg 94-113): Director Brunberg motioned that

the Board approve Resolution 17-05-570 as stated. Public
comment was open and closed with no discussion. The motion
was seconded by Director Montes and approved 4-0-0 with
Directors Meraz, Stickney, Brunberg, and Montes voting Aye.
There were no Abstentions or Nays.

Approval of Resolution 17-05-571, Resolution Authorizing the
Disposal of Surplus Prope 114): Admin. Foell said the
items will be offered in a sealed bid format. Director Brunberg
motioned that the Board approve Resolution 17-05-571 as stated
and authorized the District Administrator to surplus the items as
responsibly as possible. Public comment was open and closed with
no discussion. The motion was seconded by Director Montes and
approved 4-0-0 with Directors Meraz, Stickney, Brunberg, and
Montes voting Aye. There were no Abstentions or Nays.




¢) Approval of the Agreement with MTW to Provide Irrigation As-
Built Drawings for Orangevale Community Park (pg 115-126): A
base map was completed and now the irrigation planning can
begin. Director Montes motioned that the Board approve the
Agreement with MTW to provide irrigation as-built drawings for
Orangevale Community Park in the amount of $3,500 and

MOTION #10 authorize the District Administrator to execute the contract

documents. The motion was seconded by Director Brunberg and
approved 4-0-0 with Directors Meraz, Stickney, Brunberg, and
Montes voting Aye. There were no Abstentions or Nays.

13. DIRECTOR AND Supervisor Bain was getting ready for the swimming season. The
STAFF COMMENTS  summer kickoff party was being held on May 20.

Ms. Von Aesch said she was working on getting the part-time staff’
ready to go. The County was having the payroll system changed over
to Compass, a different software, in June. Admin. Foell added that
paychecks will be administered every two weeks instead of twice a
month.

Superintendent Russell said they have been able to get caught up with
mowing.

Coordinator Woodford indicated the guide was completed and came
out a couple weeks ago. Several Board members stated that it looked
great. A mud run and weight loss challenge were being held.

Admin. Foell explained that the District was now in “crunch time” and
will be getting busier. He commended the staff on doing a fantastic
job.

Director Montes was still working on planning for Pow Wow Days.
There will be a kid zone, petting zoo, and laser show.

Director Meraz thanked Admin. Foell for the detailed budget letter he
provided. He commended the staff for getting the parks into great
shape.

Director Brunberg thanked the staff for all the hard work they do.

Director Stickney was happy to be back in the United States after a
vacation.

14. ITEMS FOR NEXT None discussed.
AGENDA

15. CLOSED SESSION a) Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957:
Public Employee Performance Evaluation: District Administrator

Minutes, May 11, 2017
Page Sof 6

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 5



16. RESUME PUBLIC
SESSION &
ANNOUNCE
ACTIONS FROM
CLOSED SESSION

17. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION #11

Minutes, May 11, 2017
Page 6 of 6

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

No action was taken by the Board but direction was given.

With no further business to discuss, the general meeting of the Board
of Directors was adjourned at 8:40 p.m. On a motion by Director
Montes, seconded by Director Brunberg, the adjournment motion
passed 4-0-0 with Directors Meraz, Stickney, Montes, and Brunberg
voting Aye. There were no Abstentions or Nays.

Mike Stickney, Chairperson

Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017

Page 6



ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Minutes of the Special Meeting of Board of Directors
May 16, 2017

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Orangevale Recreation & Park District was
held on Tuesday, May 16, 2017 at the District Office. Director Stickney called the meeting to
order at 6:45 p.m.

Directors present: Meraz, Stickney, Brunberg
Directors absent: Montes
Staff present: Greg Foell, District Administrator, Jennifer Von Aesch, Finance/HR
Manager
3. PLEDGE OF The Pledge of Allegiémce was conducted.
ALLEGIANCE
4. APPROVAL OF Upon a motion by Director Brunberg, seconded by Director Meraz, the
AGENDA agenda was approved 3-0-1 with Meraz, Stickney, and Brunberg Ayes.
Director Montes was Absent. There were no Nays or Abstentions.
MOTION #1
5. PUBLIC There was no public discussion.
DISCUSSION
6. NEW BUSINESS a) Presentations from Director Candidates and Appointment of a new

Director (pg 1-26): Administrator Foell presented an overview of
the vacant Board of Directors position. A moment of silence was
observed for Director Tim Anderson who recently passed away.
Admin. Foell expressed appreciation to the applicants for their
outstanding resumes, applications, and desire to serve. The order
for the Director candidates presentations was chosen by selecting
names from a basket. The six applicants then gave their
presentations and the Board followed up with questions. In open
session, the Board of Directors reviewed the voting procedure. On

MOTION #2 a motion by Director Brunberg, seconded by Director Stickney,
Erica Swenson was nominated to be the new Director on a 3-0-1
vote. Director Stickney, Meraz, and Brunberg voted Aye. Director
Montes was Absent. There were no Nays or Abstentions.

b) Oath of Office for newly appointed Board Member: Administrator
Foell issued the Oath of Office to the newly appointed Director
Erica Swenson.

7. DIRECTOR AND No items were discussed.
STAFF COMMENTS

8. ITEMSFOR NEXT No items were discussed.
AGENDA

Special Meeting Minutes, May 16, 2017
Orangevale}ﬁl&?ré:ﬁi&n & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 7



9. ADJOURNMENT With no further business to discuss, the special meeting of the Board
of Directors was adjourned at 8:04 p.m. On a motion by Director
MOTION #3 Brunberg, seconded by Director Montes, the motion passed 4-0-1 with
Directors Brunberg, Meraz, Swenson and Stickney voting Aye. There
were no Abstentions or Nays. Director Montes was Absent.

Michael Stickney, Chairperson

Special Meeting Minutes, May 16, 2017
Orangevald B8Er22idn & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 8



ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Minutes of the Special Meeting of Board of Directors
May 25, 2017

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Orangevale Recreation & Park District was
held on Thursday, May 25, 2017 at the District Office. Director Stickney called the meeting to
order at 6:36 p.m.

Directors present: Meraz, Montes, Stickney, Swenson, Brunberg (Arrived at 7:00 p.m.)
Staff present: Greg Foell, District Administrator, Jennifer Von Aesch, Finance/HR
Manager
3. PLEDGE OF The Pledge of Allegiance was conducted.
ALLEGIANCE
4. APPROVAL OF Upon a motion by Director Meraz, seconded by Director Montes, the
AGENDA agenda was approved 4-0-1 with Meraz, Stickney, Swenson, and
Montes Ayes. Director Brunberg was absent. There were no Nays or
MOTION #1 Abstentions.
5. PUBLIC There was no public discussion.
DISCUSSION

6. ADMINISTRATOR’S a) Reportonthe CARPD Conference: Administrator Foell

REPORT announced that Director Meraz received the Outstanding Board
Member Award from the California Association of Recreation and
Park Districts for his service and dedication to recreation and
parks at OVparks and also by serving on the CARPD Board of
Directors. Director Meraz was congratulated by the Board.
Administrator Foell highlighted several of the sessions offered at
the conference.

7. UNFINISHED None.
BUSINESS
8. NEW BUSINESS a) Discussion and Prioritization of the District’s Capital

Improvement, Capital Replacement, and ADA Improvement
Projects: Admin. Foell summarized the Capital Improvement,
Capital Replacement, and ADA Improvement Plans and how they
are utilized together to develop the District’s yearly plan for
capital improvements. The Board reviewed the projects listed on
the draft capital projects form and reprioritized the projects by
park and District-wide. The Board ranked the completion of the
Oak and Filbert pathway as the number one District-wide project
with the restroom at Almond Park as the second highest ranked
project. Administrator Foell will get an engineer’s cost estimate
for the Almond restroom project and the Youth Center Playground
and ADA project to evaluate the two projects feasibility. Admin.
Foell will also see if the District can add the remaining pathway
area at Oak and Filbert to the current contracted project to save
costs. The project list will be re-evaluated during the final budget
deliberations. Administrator Foell cautioned that the budget could
not support many other projects during the Fiscal 17/18 Budget.

Special Meeting Minutes, May 25, 2017
OrangevalePREErleé’écian & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 9



b) Discussion of Salaries and Benefits, SCERS Retirement, and Cost
of Living Adjustment (COLLA): Administrator Foell stated that the
second phase of moving the District employees to the Cal PEPRA
50/50 retirement formula would be completed and be effective
July 1 and includes a 2.6 percent salary adjustment. Employees in
turn pay a higher amount for their retirement costs. He
summarized the work completed on the Draft Salary and Benefit
Survey. The District compared the salaries and benefits for like
job classifications to six agencies with the most similar population,
park acreage, facilities, and budgets. The Board discussed the
study and asked clarifying questions. Admin. Foell stated that
salary and benefit considerations including discussion of a
possible Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) would be part of the
Final Budget discussions in early August.

¢) Discussion of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Preliminary Budget for Fiscal 2017-18: Administrator Foell
summarized each of the three budgets (General Fund, OLLAD,
and Kenneth Grove) including salaries, services and supply costs,
and the funding sources for each. The Board reviewed the
estimated year end actuals form.

9. DIRECTOR AND No items were discussed.
STAFF COMMENTS

10. ITEMS FOR NEXT No items were discussed.

AGENDA
11. ADJOURNMENT With no further business to discuss, the special meeting of the Board
of Directors was adjourned at 8:40 p.m. On a motion by Director
MOTION #2 Brunberg, seconded by Director Montes, the motion passed 5-0-0 with

Directors Brunberg, Meraz, Stickney, Swenson, and Montes voting
Aye. There were no Abstentions or Nays.

Michael Stickney, Chairperson

Special Meeting Minutes, May 25, 2017
Orangevald’Rgerkatidn & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 10



ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP
TUESDAY, MAY 9, 2017
9:00 AM

LOCATION:
Orangevale Community Center
6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662

1. CALL TO ORDER  Director Stickney called meeting to order at 9:25 a.m.
Roll call: Director Stickney, Director Brunberg, Administrator Foell, Finance/HR Manager Von Aesch

2. PUBLIC DISCUSSION

Any person may address the committee; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff
and/or committee/Board of Directors for a report and action at a subsequent meeting.

3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

4, NEW BUSINESS

A. Capital Replacement, Capital Projects, and ADA Projects Discussion
Administrator Foell summarized the overall budget message noting the success of the many completed
(or nearly completed) projects accomplished this fiscal year, and adding the need lo be tighter in the
new year due to the continued minimum wage increase and declining In Lieu and Park Development
Fees (due to declining development). The complete Master Plan Capital Projects List was reviewed
highlighting the Almond Park shade project, the Community Park walkway, and the positive feedback
from the Community Center Update. The proposed ADA improvements at the Youth Center was
discussed with Director Brunberg inquiring specifically about the cement displacement at the
ballfield.

B. Discussion of District Employee Salaries and Benefits
Administrator Foell reported that some other agencies are proposing a 3% COLA due to the current
3.1% Consumer Price Index increase over the previous year. Director Stickney inquired about of the
final Cal PEPRA increase to the recommended 50/50 employer/employee contribution rate. The new
formula will go into effect starting July 1. Administrator Foell presented preliminary findings on a
District salary survey that included six other similar sized districts. It was decided to add the Fair
Oaks District and drop the El Dorado Hills District for more accurate findings. Additional results
will be presented at the meeting on the 25". ‘

C. Discussion of the 2017/18 Preliminary Budget
The Preliminary Budget was reviewed, and it was noted that there would be a much better grasp on
estimated actual revenues and expenses later in the month.

5. DIRECTOR’S AND STAFF’S COMMENTS

6. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA

7. ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 10:40 a.m.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 \ Page 11



STAFF REPORT

ﬁ DATE: 6-8-17
OV‘ e TO: Board of Directors
PA
ORANGE%E; FROM: Greg Foell, District Administrator

RECREATION & SUBJECT: MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT — MAY 2017

ADMINISTRATION

Administrator Foell, Superintendent Russell, and Peter Larimer from MTW met with TIR and Northern
Pacific Builders for the pre-construction meetings for the Oak & Filbert Pathway Project and the
Almond Shade Structure Project.

Administrator Foell and Superintendent Russell met with Jim Oates and Casey from the Shady Oaks Disc
Golf Club to discuss the way that the club can help the District with projects and maintenance at the
course.

The District Finance Committee (Directors Brunberg and Stickney) met with Administrator Foell and
Finance/HR Manager Von Aesch to discuss the preliminary budget on May gth,

Administrator Foell met with representatives from two copier companies to discuss replacement of the
District copy machine.

The District held two training meetings to discuss effective communication technigues.

A Special Board Meeting was held to select a new Director. After interviewing six excellent candidates,
the Board selected Erica Swenson to fill the vacant Director position.

Administrator Foell attended the CPRS District Il Administrators Section meeting held at Fair Oaks
Recreation and Park District. '

Administrator Foell held a training meeting with newly appointed Director Erica Swenson.

RECREATION

Supervisor Bain attended VFCAL meeting May 3.
Supervisor Bain attended NCAMA meeting in Elk Grove May 1,

May Activities Enroliment Attendance Gross Revenue
Aguatics
Family Swim Pass 14 . S 2,115.00
TigerSharks 249 S 36,516.00
Classes Sub Total 263 0 S 38,631.00
Classes
Artist Studio
Aikido Teen/Adult 7 S 996.00
Aikido Youth 4 S 229.00
Babysitting CPR 1 S 35.00
Ballet - Baby 1 S 40.00
Ballet - Pre Ballet 9 S 369.00
Basic Life Support CPR & AED 1 S 78.00
Internet Driver Education 1 S 40.00
Jazzercise
Jujitsu Self Defense 10 S 904.00
Karate - Preschool 1 S 135.00

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 12



Karate - SA Shotokan 9 S 1,152.00

Mud Run Ready 1 s 65.00

Tai Chi Chuan 5 S 489.00

TwirlSport Baton 2 S 83.00

TwirlSport Cheer 2 S 80.00

TwirlSport Tumbling 4 S 166.00

Ukulele 33 3 33.00

Weight Loss Challenge 5 S 312.00
Classes Sub Total 91 0 S 4,894.00
Events

Spring Craft Fair 26 $ 2,044.00
Events Sub Total 26 0 S 2,044.00
SENIORS -

Bridge 71 S 71.00

Kayaking for Boomers 50+ : 4 S 279.00

Mens 50+ Basketball 6 S 180.00

Mid-Day Movies 5

Senior Lunches
Seniors Sub Total 81 5 S 530.00
Trips

Empire Mine State Historic Park 2 $ 190.00
Trips Sub Total 2 0 S 190.00
GRAND TOTAL 463 5 S 46,289.00

April Gross Revenue Recap — May OTC (over-the-counter) revenue for combined recreation and
facility rentals ended at $95,478, $17,978 over the projected amount. May recreation revenue
came in at $90,952 $20,952 over the projected amount and facility revenue in came in at 54,526,
$2,947 under the projected amount. Please note the revenue referenced here includes
prepayments for future programs while the revenue figures listed in the chart on the previous
page represent revenue attributed to programs occurring in May.

UPCOMING EVENTS
e TigerSharks 15t swim meet of the Year June 3
e Swim Lessons and Day camp begin June 12t
o Caribbean Night at the Pool June 23

SECURITY
No Enforcement Action was Reported for April

PARKS

General: Routine maintenance at all sites. Mower repairs. Initial mowing completed for all use areas.
Significant tree and limb work completed. Irrigation work completed at several parks.

Community Center: Athletic field aerification.

Kidz Korner & Youth Center Park: General custodial.

Pecan Park: Dog Park contract nearly completed.

Community Park: Preparation completed for Pow Wow Days.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 13



OVearks
ORANGEVALE

RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

RESOLUTION # 17-06-572

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT, COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING THE GENERAL FUND PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018

WHEREAS, all necessary estimates of revenues, expenditures and reserves were
reviewed and filed for ending fiscal year 2016/2017; and

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED in accordance with Code Section
29089 of the Government Code, the preliminary budget for the fiscal year 2017/2018, be and
is hereby adopted in accordance with the following:

(D Salaries & Employee Benefits $ 1.668.,000
(2) Services & Supplies 499,600
3) Other charges 80,500
(4) Fixed Assets:

(a) Land 0

(b) Structures & Improvements 320,000

(c) Equipment 0
(5) Expenditure transfers 4,000
(6) Contingencies 0
(7 Provision for reserve increases 0
TOTAL BUDGET REQUIREMENTS § 2572100

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure program will be
by monies derived from Revenue to Accrue, Fund Balance Available and Property
Assessments and Certificates of Participation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed preliminary budget be and is hereby adopted
in accordance with the listed attachment which show in detail the approved appropriations,
revenues and methods of financing for the 2017/2018 fiscal year:

ON A MOTION by Director , seconded by Director , the
foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted this 8™ day of June 2017 by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
APPROVED:
Chair, Board of Directors
ATTEST:
Clerk of the Board
ATTACHMENTS:

Financing Requirements Summary Schedule
Expenditure Detail Schedule

Revenue Detail Schedule

Long-Term Loan Schedule

Fixed Asset Schedule

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 14



. i | Preliminary Budget Message - 2017/18
OVrarxks

ORANGEVALE The District is again expecting a small growth in the tax base and net
RECRFEATION & program revenues are expected to be slightly lower due to the
PARK DISTRICT community center update that caused a three-month disruption in

services. With increases in part-time salaries due to the minimum wage
hikes, the staff will be raising program fees to cover the increases.
Although, the ecomomy and tax base continue to show signs of
improvement, the District is still experiencing the need to be
conservative as we work to build our reserve in the general fund. The
District experienced a positive general fund balance at the end of Fiscal
2015/16 for the second straight year. The District expects year-end
figures for 2016/17 to be slightly lower as compared to the previous two
years. A portion of several capital projects will be carried over to the
2017/18 fiscal budget as they will be completed in July and August. The
District still maintains a “high target” amount for its fund balance as
identified in the District Master Plan.

Costs for full-time salaries and benefits are estimated to rise slightly due
to yearly staff step increases, worker's compensation, and health
insurance. Health insurance rates are estimated to increase
approximately six to ten percent. The 2017/18 Preliminary Budget isn't
recommending any increase in full-time positions. Staff will be
considering the feasibility of adding a full-time Recreation Coordinator
(and reducing part-time Recreation Specialist hours) in the final budget.

Part-time salaries will see the most significant increases as the minimum
wage increased to $10.50 per hour on 1/1/17 and will increase again to
$11.00 on 1/1/18. These increases in salary will require increases to
program fees. The Western States Cost of Living Index for the year
(March 2016-March 2017) was 3.1 percent. Staff will evaluate the fiscal
implications of a COLA adjustment in the final budget. Each one percent
adjustment represents approximately $9,000 including benefits. Most
service and supply costs are estimated to remain similar to the past year.
Increases are expected for water costs as the purveyors have increased
fees.

The District’s capital replacement plan has established replacement costs
at approximately $284,000 per year to keep facilities in good repair. Our
ADA survey added additional projects to the District’s list of replacement
projects. These projects are primarily funded from the OLLAD
assessment district. A small number of high priority projects will be
funded in the 2017 /18 fiscal year due to budget constraints. Additional

6826 Hazel Avenue capital improvement projects have been identified through the park
Orangevale, CA 95662 master plan process. These proposed projects are primarily funded
916-988-4373 through Park In-Lieu Fees and the Park Development Fees. At the Special

OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 15



Board Meeting on May 25% the Board will prioritize the capital

: ‘ 3 | B _ improvement projects for the 2017/18 budget. The Park In-Lieu Fees
O PARKS and Park Development Fees were reduced significantly during the
ORANGEVALE 2016/17 fiscal year with construction of the Pecan Dog Park, Community
RECREATION & , Center Remodel, Oak & Filbert Pathway, and Almond Shade projects. The
PARK DISTRICT District will be able to fund a small number of lower cost projects in the

2017/18 Fiscal Budget.
Sincerely,
Greg Foell

District Administrator

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 16



©~

i
SGETCE - S6E'TZE {oo0'09%) 0SE'TEL 0ZTEE9 pung aaJ 3usLudojanad Hed - IZEE|p
Ll
L5616 - 156°L6 {000°541) 699'59¢Z 696'10T pung ucnedIpag Y4ed nar] ul - D8g]
ZE6'S = TE6'S 5 2E6'S (20£'s) 6€9°TT 6E9°TT BA1959Y [EI2USD - BAOID) Y1aUUd) - G/E
885"V 885 885V 856°T 8S6'T {£0's) €627 S79'T 2Juejeg pung pu3 Jeaj
DEP'S 0£b'S 008 0Er’S TLETE 0EP'EE LZ8'S 0£9'9Z “duwj jo3ydo7 g sa1ddns g 520}A3S - sas5U3dXF|
0Er'S 0Er'S 0EP’S 0EV'S 62€°G 0EL'S ort’s GI5°S , sanuanay
885 885 8S6'T 8S6'T 00082 £62°¢Z 089'7¢ 089°ZZ aoupjog pung 403 Bujuuibag)
GNNd 1VHINID - 24045 YU Ud) - BYLE|
€TLTTE €TLTIE ETLTIE E€TLTIE anJasaY |eJauan - av110 - VhL
507 kG 5o9npag 84 TT/0T "TT0Z/01/¢ U0 VZEE O3 9eq pled 'VZEE WOy UEO| JOYS S3PNf2ul 8 OT/604H
179°LS £28791 Tob'LS 1¥9°82¢ L0L'9L 109°STZ 6V5'65 aJuejeg pung pu3 Jea
00Z°065 00z'299 18729 00Z'82L SEL'955 006069 9Ty 95T'EE9 008524 sasuadx3 j0JOL ~
[ooozZ) 000°05 000°ZZT (000°00T) 00088 000'88T (vL87SL) 9ZT'STL 000°T6T T/9'E6 62E'8LT 000'2LT Juswanoldu] [exde] i,
= 00Z'T 002'T 588 S80°C 00Tt (85T) wo'T 00Z'T 002'T 0 00Z'T 1saus)u|/uondwapay puog - sadiey Y30 m
= 000'6£S 000'6ES (t22'9) 621'7€S D00'6€S (££9°85) £90°0%y 00.£'86V ELLLY [T8'FSY 009205 saljddng »g 5321096 - sasuadx3
000255 000255 0007/55 000455 692695 000255 ETV'ET- E£Tv'595 000255 sanuanay|
[78791 £Z8°79T T¥9°82T 9822 £09'STT £09°STE 6VE'E8T 6VEESE aJupjog pund D34 Bujuuibag)
AaNNd TY¥3N3D - a¥110 - VP LE
—\e v10°5YS t10°SPS (0} ¥I0'SYS ¥I0'5YS o} YI0'SYS $10°SYS 5 v10'5HS PI0'SHS 3A1353Y [B1BURD) - YZEER
£ 5]
{{ooo'sT) {o08'6z€) {008'¥1¢) SI8VIE {sgv'se) {00E‘ESE) £9. 691 €9E'v0T {oov's9¢) 0ES95Y 0E£T'9€T {oor'oze) Juj [exde) g s1ein/nan Ul ‘ad 551 [E10Lp)
p:3
{00£°66¢) 92£'802 TEQ'STT 658°80T 1A SNOJABI > 10 < 32UDb|0g pund pu3 J0aA
)
000508 £69'8F5 £69°ErZ 9Z5'8E9 £66 L6 L9v60E TESZSS L9 '6EL 9L 18T SP6°8LY 9£9°EZ9 169 v0T 3UR[og punj pu3 10341
000°S0E 001292 001245 BIB'Z6Y ZBLS6ET 009888°Z 670°285 150'69£°T 001°ISET S9°Z0E [Iz4 2743 0012507 sasuadx3 [DI0L]E
1UBWISN[pY Jesj Joud " -
000°0Z€ 00578 005'0Y ST6'6EC 585°98Y 005924 096852 ovrs‘e 005192 LEV'ET £00v6 005°4TT wiswanosdw) [eyde) b
7 009'66% 009'66% £06°0E L6T'ETY 00T'v6Y 600°SL T65'ETY 009'88% 9vz'z1l ySE'PSE 009'99% saljddng 13 saajuas P
(000'ST) 000€89'T 000°899°T 000222 000°9%1'T 000'899°T 080°8%¢ 0Z6'ZSE'T 000°T09'T 016'99T 060'90€'T 000°EL%'T syyauag g sauejes |5
2 008°298°T 008°£98°T 80£°SHT 8054097 008°85¢'C (e154Z) 789887 00Z'606'T 162941 SOEEIBT PIOZ89'T anuaA3Y [0}oH
= 005°9LY 005°9L¥ TLLTT T/Z'88Y 005'9L¥ S6L'0S S6C'LE6Y 005971 TrZ'E8 TvL'605 005'9TY J5I{N/S984 "DaY/a1MBS 10} s3TIeYD
. 000'ST 000'ST 96L°€8 964'€EL 000°059 (z61'TLT) 808'ET 000’581 (1801} €E£'99 ¥18'29 SYILJOH/SWeIn/Nar u)
= 009'ZET D09'ZET 007'ET 0009V T 009'Z€T ¥99'8€ $99'5L1 000'LET 659'5C 6$9'7ST 000'£21 1ayig/issiay/sieluay I,
- 00L'€¥T'T 00L'EvT'T 1998 Toy'9€Z'T 00£'66T'T 91e'Ls 9T6'L6T'T 00L'0¥T'T EL1'89 ELIVET'T 00£'550'T uonexe] .J
£66°L16 E66°LY6 L9T'6EL £9Z'6EL 9£9°€29 9£9°EZ9 LLLPTS LLLYIS 23up[Dg puny 103, bujuuiba
ANN4 TVYINID - VZEHR
J3A0ALIED 8T/LT 8T/L1 1an0ALIED L1/91 L1/91 FELTYNTE:S] 91/ST 91/ST IanoALie) ST/YT ST/vl K
8T/LT Y ¥53 123png L1/91 1y ‘353 3a8png 91/stT |enay 3adpng ST/¥T 1en3y 128png K

394 Juawdojanaq Yied ‘UoEdIPIQ Hiéd N3l U| ‘an04g 3BUUd)y ‘QV110 ‘puUnd |BIBUID

8T/LT Ad O3 ST/PT Ad - 42n0ALIe) [ENYOY SA395png

1913510 Y484 PUE UOREAIIDY djendduelQ

el
Orangevale Recreation & Ba



SIN3INND0A 139dNg AYVNINITIHEd

SIN3INND0A LNdNI L39ANE 8102-2102 Ad ALNNOD OLNINVHOVS
139ang AYVNINIT3Yd 810¢-210¢2 VA TVOSId

10141S1d M4VYd ® NOILYIHOTH FTVAIONYHO

Page 18

June 8,2017

- Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



LINIT H3ANN/AE3AO
TINTT OL 123rdNS SNOILVIHdOdddY -
LINT T SNOILVIddOodddy  001'245'C $

204882 $ 00E'V0L $ = $ lo0'esr’L $ SIvV10l &

£69'cve $ 00€¥0L $ £66'.16 $ FIavIIVAY
FONVIva aNNd

s H3HLO -

- = JONVHEWNONS -

¥10°GS = = ¥LO'SHS IEEEREDR] -

JONVIvd S3ASYIHOIA SIASVIYONI LL/10/L 4O SV CEINEEEE] 4
anNn4d a3lsnray JONVIVE ITNAIHOS ALINDIANNS  000°F $

00002t $

0

JONIH3441a TVLIOL
INIFWIHINOIY Adv139dnd V101

S3AHISEY ¥3HLO
SIAYIST TVHEANTO

S3ISVYIHONI IATTSTY JOd SNOISINOH

S3ILIJOWWOD ¥3H10 - 08 LO3rd0
S3IONTONILNOD "04 SNOILYIHdOdddY - 64 1O3rd0
INO 90 NI'SYIASNVAL AONNAVHLNI - 09 LO3rd0O

NI'SY34ASNYHL SANN4 - 65 103rao
INO SYIASNVHL SAONN4 - 0§ 103rd0

S13SSV a3XId - 0¥ LO3rd0 V101l
INTFNINDA - € 1LO3rdo

(0012252 § ONIDONVYNIS 1Y 1IVAY TV.LOL 000'02€

SA33D08d NVOTIWHIL-ONOT Q3 LVNILSS &
(00£+%02) 3SVYIH03A TGV IIVAY IONVIVE ANNd

T g35v3903d 38 OL SIAYTSTY vIOL 0008 $

ASYIHO3IA IAYISIH Y3HLO 0052

# 3SVIHUO3d FONVHENNONT 00084

3SVIHD3d SIAYISTH TWHIANTD

d3Sv3y03d 39 0L SIAYUTSTH  009'66F 3
(0087298"1) INNIATE GILVWILST  000°899°L $
SINTFWIHINDIAH 13920Ng IHL ONIONVNIH 40 SNYIN

SINIWIAOCHdWI ANV SIFENLONELS - v LO3rdo
$ NOILISINDOV ANV - 1¥ LO3rd0
S13SSV a3xXId - 0¥ 103rao

S3SN SNIDNVNI4 ¥3HL0 - 0€ 103r80 Tv.l0L

Va/SINIWIoaNr
SININSSISSY

$ aNV LS3H3INI
SINIWAVdTH

S35 ONIDNYNI 23H10 - 0F LOArdo

S3ddNS ANV S30IAY3S - 02 LO3rdo

SIIH3INIE IFAOTHINT ANV SIVIVS - 01 LO3rgo

FANLIANTAX3 40 LO3rg0 Ad SNOILYIHdOYddY

Page 19

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

VZEe ANN4d 304 3 1NAIHOS SINIWIIINDTE ONIDNVNIE
121¥LSIa MHVYd ? NOLLYVIHOTY FTVAIONYHO

= =

139dng AYVNINIM3dd 81022102 dV3A 1vOSId

Recreation & Park District

a¥

Orangeval



Page 20

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

0 00§ 0 00S §8¢ €9 SINIAT NOILINDOOD3H| £08e0202
0 00S 0 00S S6 0 SIW3LI NOILINDOOIY| Z08E0202
0 0002 SS. 0002 209 0SS NOILINDODTH 33A0TdNT|  008€0202
0 0002 0002 0002 0 0 INIWISYNEWITH NOLLINL|  002£0202
0 000°} 000°L 000°L €z 0se S31TddNS ONINIVEL 8 NOILYONA3| 009€0202
0 00S'S 005'S 00s's ¥z8'Y 5692 S3IDIAEAS ONINIVEL ® NOILYONA3| 00SE€020Z
0 000'S 000°S 000'S 809'G L8S'E ISNADX3 IDNIHIANOD/SSIANISNG| 00620202
0 05§ 0se 0s. veL S09 SNOILJIMOSENS/SIVOIA0HId/SHO0d| 00120202
0 005°L 00g'€ 00S°} £26'L orl SIDILON TVOIVONISILEIAAY| 00500202
0 0 000°899°L 000'9p¥'L 000'899°L 0Z6°2SE'L 060°00¢€°}L 0L 399[q0
0 0 000°€ 0 000'c 0 0 SIATHILTY - IUVO HLTVIH| 00082104
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3TYILIY - IWVO TVLANIA| 000LCL0L
0 0 000's2 00081 00062 €950l ¥98'GL 150D ¥3A0TdNT - SNIINS| 0005210k
0 0 000'LS 00005 000°SY 189'¥E 6v9°0€ 1S0D 93A0TdWT - SNI JIANOD SHIMHOM|  000¥ZLO0L
0 0 000502 000081 000'502 £89'6G1 AT 1S00 ¥3IAOTdW3 - SNI dNOYD| 0002101
0 0 00028 00002 000'08 £Lv'L9 S68'co 1S0D 43IAQTdAE - IHASYO|  0002ZL0L
0 0 0000} 000091 000's8L 6¥8'%91 SY8'6.L1 1S02 Y3IAOTdWT - INTWIHIL3Y|  000LCLOL
0 0 000°CL 000'8 0001 0099 0059 ANTdILS SHIGNIN advog| 00vCLL0L
0 0 000°09€ 000°0vE 000°85€ 0¥L'962 09z'69¢ d13H YH1X3 - STOVM B S3IHVYIVS| 00LZLL0L
0 0 000°09.2 000029 000652 ZEE'909 ¥18°165 SITAOTdNT HVINOIY - STOVM B SAIVIVS| 00041104
19141810 ¥HVd ® NOILVIHO3Y ITVAIONVHO VEEE
yebpng Jeuly sabueys jebpng wijplgd sjenjoy 3s3 yebpng s|enloy sjen)oy uonduosseqg we)|
8l-L1 Ad 8l-L1 Ad 2191 Ad LL-9L Ad 9L-G51 Ad Si-¥i Ad jusugiuwod

aNNd TVHENED - YZEE aNNd

LOIM1SId MHVd ® NOILYIHOTY FTVAIONVHO
139ang AYVYNINITTHd 81-2L02 Ad - TNAIHOS 1IV.13A FANLIANIIXS

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 000} 0 000°L §9 0 S3NddNS IONVNILNIVN ONIGANTd[ 00891202
0 00% 0 0ov 0 0 IDIAYAS FONYNILNIVIN ONIGINNTd|  00491€0¢
0 00S 0 00s 0 Lev S3ITddNS ONILNIVd| 00291202
0 0 0 0 0 0 SADINGIS ONILNIVL| 00191208
0 00S 0 00s 0 0 A1ddNS AONYNIALNIVIA WILSAS TvOINVHOAN| 00251202
0 00S 0 00S 0 0 HDIAY3IS IONYNILNIVIN WILSAS TYOINYHOIW| 00161202
0 008 0 00s a8 0 S3TddNS AONYNILNIVIN LNIFAIAOHLNI ANVT|  002¥L20Z
0 008 0 00S 0 0 ADIAYIS FONYNILNIVIN LNIWIAOHIWI ANV} 00L¥LEne
0 00s 0 00S 0 0 S31TddNS FIDONYNILNIVIN TVOIHLD3 13|  002€1202
0 00t 0 ooy 0 0 JDIAYAS FONVYNILNIVIA TvOIdLD3T3| 00LELE0Z
0 00s 0 00s 0 0 SIVOINIHO] 002¢L20e
0 000} 0 000°} (zog™9) (00¥2) S3NddNS IONYNILNIVIN ONIGTING| 00211202
0 000} 0 000°L 0 9. S317ddNS TYENLINDILHOHIVANLINDIHOY|  00v01202
0 005 0 00S 0 0 JOIAE3S TVHNLTINDILHAOHTYENLINDIYOY]  00€0L202
0 000'82 95’9z 000've L1102 YEV'6L SADIAGTS ONILNIFd| 00580202
0 000c 000°L 000°€ 6LL L viv'l SdWVLS| 20180202
0 00s'9 0059 005'9 685V 90v'9 SADIAHIS TVLSOd| 00180202
0 0se 0 0se 0 Ll SAIM| €09.0202
0 00§ ooe 005 0 4514 SNOIS| 209.020Z
0 005’6 005'6 005’6 T A S3NddNs 321440| 009.0202
0 0008 005'9 000'8 GS0'L GG6'6 S3ANA dIHSH3IEW3AW| 00190202
0 000% 000° 000'% 90¥'2 z66'L JONVHNSNI TVLNIH| 00550202
0 000°0% 159'8¢€ 000°8E ¥86°€E £.8'ce JONVYHNSNI ALITIGVIT| 006€020€
0 000'c 0002 000°c ¥4 99l NOILY1HOdSNYHL 33A0TdNE|  006€0202
y26png jeulq sabueyn yobpng wiBld  s|enjay ‘)53 jebpng s|enjoy s|enjoy uonduasaqg way|
8L-LL Ad 8L-LL Ad L1991 Ad 2191 Ad 91-G1 A4 Sk-vL Ad jusugiwwod

aNngd IVHENAD - YZEE aNOd

1IIY1SIAd MHVd ® NOILVIYO3Y FTVAIONVHO
139angd AYVYNINITINd 81-2102 Ad - 3TNAIHIOS 1IV.LIA JFNLIANIIXT

Page 21

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 00S 0 00S 0 0 S3I1ddNS IONYNILNIVA LNIWDINDT ¥3IHL0| 00262202
0 005 0 00s 0 0 JDIAY3S IONYNILNIVIN LNIWINDT ¥3HLO| 00162202
0 005 0 00S ge 0 STIddNS JONYNILNIVA LNIWIND3 dOHS| 00282202
0 00S 0 005 0 0 3DIAE3S FONVYNILNIVN LNININD3 dOHS| 00182202
0 008 0 00§ 0 0 1NIWAINDA SISV VSLNIY| 005.2202
0 0052 SL¥'E 0052 1062 ¥6Z'e SAMddNS FONYNILNIVA LNIWNLIND3 301440| 00292202
0 000°L 000°} 000°L 0 0 JDIAYIS IONYNILNIVIA LNINDINDI 301440( 00192202
0 008 0 00s 0 0 SINVOI™¥ENT ® 13Nd| 009e220e
0 005 005 005 902 0 S700.1 219VANIJXT| 00922202
0 00s 0 00§ 0 0 S3AMddNS LNIVIA JIND3 NOILONYLSNOD| 00212202
0 005 0 00S 0 (zs) S3MddNS IDONYNILNIVIN SAILOWOLNY| 00902202
0 00S 0 00S 0 4] IOIAEAS IDONYNILNIVIA IAILOWOLNY| 00502202
0 005 0 00s 0 0 JONVNILNIVIN WILSAS INOHAIT3L| 0066120
0 000°L 000°L 000°L 0 0 HILVM| 00861202
0 000G} 00072t 00S°GL WEA] 692'8 IDINGIS INOHAIAL| 00461202
0 00s 0 00§ 0 0 JDIAY3S TWSOdSIA IOVMIS| 00561202
0 005 18G'1L 00s 0 0 JDINGTS TWSOSIA/NOILOFTIOD 3SN43Y|  00€61202
0 00S 0 005 0 0 N0 AN / 941/ SO IVHNLYN|  00261€0¢
0 005 0 00§ 0 0 ALIDIHLO3TE| 00161202 .
0 000 000'¢ 000 0 059'c SIOYUVYHO LINY3d| 00581202
0 00S 0 00S 0 0 S3NddNS NOILONYLSNOD| 00281202
0 00S 0 00S 0 0 S3DIAYIS NOILONYLSNOD| 00L8L20E
joBpng Jeulq sabueys 1ebpng wijald  sjenjoy 153 1ebpng sjenjoy s|enjoy uonduossag way|
8L-LL Ad 8l-LL Ad 2191 Ad L1-91 Ad 9L-S1 Ad Si-vL Ad jusujiwwoy

aNAd IYEENTD - WZEE aNng

12141S1a MAVd ® NOILYIHOIYH FTVAIONVHO
139ang AYVNINIZ™d 81-2102 Ad - 3TNAIHOS 1IvLi3A JANLIANIIXS

Page 22

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 009°66% L6L'EOY 00L'v6¥ gsL'6ze pSeyse 0z 123lq0
0 002 002 002 Gl 0 SIASHVYHD ONIMHVYd SO 00296202
0 000 8G6.'C 000 6E8’L 861°C FOINGIS INTWNDOT1IAIA WILSAS| 00416202
0 0002 000°} 0002 004} 08 SADIAYIS - ISNIDXT ONILVHIHO ¥IHLO| 0066820
0 0002 000} 0002 L06°L 0 S3MNddNS - ISNIdXT ONILYHIL0 H3HLO|  0086820¢
0 000°0¥ 000'0% 000°0¥ LOS'vE v6.'Z¢ S31T7ddNS TYNOILYIHOIH| 00258202
0 000°081 000041 000°08L eve'est 669751 SIDIAHTS TYNOILYIHOIH| 00158202
0 000'8L LEG'6L 000°81L 0 Lz9'olL (SNOILD3T3) STDINYIS NOILVHLSIOFY| 00618202
0 000°L 000} 000°L 0 Gee ' S3NddNS Od| €0218202
0 000°0L 000°0L 000°0L €6.°'E 99 IHVYMLH40S Od| 20218208
0 00001 000°0L 00001 G512 629't JUYMAHVYH Od| 1021820¢
0 000°9 0009 0009 G52’ 90.'L SINVLINSNOD ¥3LNdNOCD| 10165202
0 000'S 886'L 000°S £v0'8 alz'y SIDIAMTS TVNOISSTHI0dd HIHLO| 00165202
0 000°G 0 000 0 0se S3DINEIS ALIHND3S| 00115202
0 000°L 0014 000°L gL GLL'L mm0_>mm_w ONIGIdDSNVYHL| 00295202
0 000'G} £0061 000°G1 vrL'e 080'v SADIAMIS TvOI1| 001L€5202
0 0009 0009 000'9 0 0 SIADIAHIS ONIYIINIONT| 00525202
0 0 0 0 0 0 S3DINGTAS TvHNLDILIHOYY| 0061520¢
0 00081 58601 000°81 66221 9ve'alL S3DIAYIS NOILOTTIOD/LNIWSSISSY| 0040520
o 0008 S06'y 000’8 S06't GeZl'y SIDIAEIS ONILNNODDV| 00505202
0 000'}L 000°L 000°L 062 6l S37ddNS WVIAOLSND| 00e2ee0e
0 0002 0002 0002 0 6.1 SIADIAYIS VIAOLSND| 0012€20e
0 000'9 00S'9 000'9 ¥S5'S 9€2'9 S317ddNS TYNOSHI/ONIHLOTD|  00¥LE202
1obpng |euiy sabueyo jobpng wyjaid  s|en)oy Is3 jebpng s|enjoy sjemoy uondusseq way|
8L-LL Ad 8L-LL Ad L1-91 Ad 21-91 Ad 91-§1 Ad Sl¥l Ad jusulIWLWO D
aNnd IVHENZD - YZEE NN

1OIM1SIA M¥Vd ® NOILLYIHOFY FTVAIONVHEO
139ang AMVYNINIIINC 81-210Z Ad - IT1NAIHOS VLA FANLIANIAXS

Page 23

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



_\a \_ _ 0 000°t 000y 000'% 8612 £20°C 65 100lqo
0 0 000t 000'% 000'% 86L'C £20'C IOIAE3S ONILNIALHIONIA| 00125508
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 g 100lq0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Y3IHL0 - LINGWdINDI/STTDIHIA| 00E0EVEY
0 0 000°0Z¢ 000°00F 000'SE9 0vs‘z 29Z'6 Zv elao
0 0 000'0ZE 000°00% 000'5€9 0rs'e 292'6 S3ANLONYLS| 00202vey
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SONIQTING| 00LozZvey
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1y elqo
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 anvi| 00L0L¥iy
0 0 00508 685°Z8 005°L8 8£9°'l8 gLL'ze o¢ 10°ldo
0 0 0062 000’} 006°2 0zv L0S'} SINIWSSISSV/OITXVYL| 000SPE0E
0 0 000°1L9 096'95 000'29 £65'9G £65'95 NOILdW3a3d NVvO/aNOg| 00022€0E
0 0 000°ZL 529've 000'€Z Ge9've GZ9've JSNIHE LSTHTLINI|  000LZE0E
jebpng jeulq sabueyn jebpng wield  s|enjoy )s3 jabpng s|enioy sjenjoy uonduosaqg way|

8l-LL Ad 8l-LL Ad L1-91 Ad L1-9L Ad 91-G1 Ad Sl-¥L Ad juswWIWOoD

aNnd TVHENTD - YZEE aNNg

1D0141SId MHVd ® NOLLYIHO3IY FTVAIONVIO

139ang AYVYNINITINd 81-2102 Ad - 3TNA3HOS TIVL3A J¥NLIANIdXS

Page 24

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 ooL‘ziS'T 78.L'G6€'C 009888 LS0°69L ) ory'PSL L Vv ZE€ TVLOL ANNA

0 0 00L°228°C Z8L'66€'T 009°888°C LS0°69L"L obb'pSL'L ZEE6EE6 ¥ALNZO ANNA

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 62 399lq0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SIAHEISTH TVHANID

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOILYIHdOYddY AONIONILNOD| 00106464

jobpng |jeuld sabueyn jebpng wieid  sjenjoy is3 19bpng s|enjoy sjenjoy uonduossag waj|
gL-Ll Ad 8L-LL Ad L1791 Ad LL-9L Ad 91-GL Ad SL-Fl Ad JusLIWOD

NS TYYENED - YZEE aNNg

120141S1a M¥Vd ® NOILVIHOIY FTVAIONVIO
139ang AYVNINITINd 81-210Z2 A4 - 3TINAIHIS 1IV13A J¥NLIANIAXS

Page 25

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



__c‘ L_@B_oa _—aoog \_—aoo.oe L—?mhmo: _ﬁmom_me : H3IHLO TVINTH oz_o.__:m_ 00626Y6 _

O
o™~
;_ 0 __88.3 \_ _88_3 __68_3 __9& __ame ;_ JNODNI hwmmm:.z__ 0001¥6¥6 _ mb
- $ = 2 w\__ae..ﬁm.: 3 _?362,: $ __as..mﬂ.: $ __35,...2.: W__at@ﬂ.: a\_ 16 392[90

__ 0 __ 0 \__ 0 I_? \__ 0 \__ 0 __ mm:._,o-muxﬁ_ 00661616 _
_ﬁo __Soe __ﬁm 1) __aos _ zve) :ame _ﬁ S3ILTIVNId XvL n_omn__ 000%1616 _ .
—
__ 0 :aoo_ L) :@t __88_ 3] :ﬂmo_: __ame __ D3ISNN Hd XYL n_omn._ 0DOELELB _m
<8}
L_ 0 ;_ 0 : 0 _ﬂo __m@ __va __ 1dW3a3Y XvL n_omn__ 00021616 _M
__ 0 __88,«: __:%_m: __soo_N: __?Nm_m: __c&o.m: ;_ AHVLINA XYL ﬁmm_n_omm_ 8885\_ mb
= 0 __Somv __amm. 1) __aoa __:ma __65 ;_ ONITIA 31ddNS XYL >Em_n_omn__ 00501616 \_M
w
—
__ 0 __aoo_o: :cgé __88.0: __83.9 _—@w_o: __\ "ONIT30 d34N03S XV.L ﬁmmn_omm_ 00v01616 _m
£
_ﬁ 0 \__88.3 :aoo.owv ;_aoo.mv :@ Leze) __QNm.m: _ﬁ dNsS ¥Nd Xv.L1 n_omn__ 00€01616 _c.m
3]
(=]
__ 0 __88_03 \__amh_wi __88.@3 __:Rm.mi :?S.mi __ O3SNN ¥NO XYL n_omn__ 00201616 _B

__ 0 \__aoo.mt_: \_—885 L) \__Soo.mmw_ 1) \__Gmhmot: mw\__amw.wg. 1) $ __\ 23S UND XV.L ao«_m_ 00}0L61L6 _

19141810 MHYd ® NOILYIYOIY ITVAIONVHO  VZEE

jebpng |euld sabueysn 196png ‘wjaid s|enjoy 1abpng s|enjoy s|enjoy :O_un_._ommn wajj
8l-LL Ad 8L-LL Ad L91 Ad L1-91 Ad 9L-GL Ad Sl-¥L Ad jusLILIWOD

aNN4 TYY3N39 - VZEE aNNd
101491810 MHvd ® NOILYIHOIH FTVAIONVHO

139ang AYVNIWIT3Hd 81-210Z Ad - 3TNAIHOS TIvLi3d INNIAIY

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



{o0s‘cL¥) (rz1'siv) {oos‘c.Ly) (s66°28%) (098'008) 96 30990

_c \__ 0 ;_ 005°€LY __ vLV'GLY __ 005°clt __ 866°38Y __ 989 ; MD
_ 0 : 0 \: (0052) __aﬁ.@ :@m_s :8\2.9 __Sﬁ_i __‘ SADIAY3S ﬁ_m:omw_ 00269696 _ A
_ 0 _q \__88.05 :88_23 :Aao.o:: L_aﬁ.ﬁs _7@\.83 \__ SOHD IDIAYIS zo_pﬁmomm_ 0099696 \_

L

\_ —aooh 1)

__:.mq.: \_—Qo_: ;_8\2_8 __a:_ ) ;_

$334 Y3aHLO mDOmzﬂl_m_nvm_E_

£1E£9696 \—

_ 0 __ 0 __S‘S.m: __aﬂ.mﬂ., __SS.E.& __38.«. 1) __as..we L 56 100[qQ M

_ 0 __ 0 __ 0 : 0 __ 0 __ 0 __gm.me __ ary m_b.Pm_ 00695656 _om
? : 0 ;_ 0 ;_Soo.omt \__88_8& __ 0 _ﬂd __\ H3JSNYHL N3N z__ oommmmma\_

q __ 0 __soo.m ) __ae_m: __soo.m 1) __aow,m: L_a 16'cL) __ 4317134 XV1 d0¥d mmza,om_s_o_.__ 00225656 _mb

L<b]

- - - . - =

_ 0 L_ 0 \__38 zeL) L_SS opl) \__88 zEL) \__?8 Sil) ;_amm zsl) ; 6 19°(00 m

&)

5]

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Y3HLO SNOISSIONOD|  0006¥6v6  |=

l | | | |l I I | Lm

0 __ 0 __88@ L_ 0 _—aoo_u __?ms __ahwha L_ SANIHOVW mz_ozm>_ 0065676 \_m

0 L_ 0 L_Soos: __Soo.h L) __aoo.E _?mv_m: __awm.h NS I__ {6 T¥NId) NOISS3ONOD .ommﬂ 00877676 _ _
0 __\o __gm_a: _ﬁ%o.os _?oo_m ) L _E‘N_Ne L—Smmﬁe ;ﬁ (SHIMOL T130) 838V oz:omw_ 006£¥6Y6 _

jebpng |euid sabueyn yabpng "wijaid sjenjoy yabpng sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduosaqg waj|
gh-LL Ad 8i-LL Ad LL-91 Ad L1-8L Ad 9151 Ad Sl-¥l Ad JUAILLILIOD

aNN4 TVY3NIO - VZEE ANN4
100141S1d MHvd 8 NOILYIHOTH FTVAIONVEHO

139ang AYVNIWNITINC 81-2L0Z A4 - ITNAIHOS 1VL3A INNIAIY

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



__ 0 __SS.Bw.: _—aom.gwi _—88.8@.3 \__aww.qmm.: __Amom.nmw_: ;

_T __88,...85 ;_acm.goﬁ __38.2«,_5 ;_awq%mi __Gom.mww,: ;

1 L° 1K o 1K B |

Page 28

VZEE TWL1OL anNnd

June 8, 2017

2EE6EE6 YILNID ANN

86 12990

L IL° e I° e B I° l

1810 dS - Sa33004d IvS 13SSV 00298686

Board of Directors Meeting

_ 0 __ 0 __88..& ::mo.n: :a%.e \__c.mu,a __33..& _ 16 ¥99l40
_o __ 0 ;_ 0 __ 0 __ 0 __ 0 __ 0 __ m4m>mo_mn__ 0066.6.6 _

_ 0 L_ 0 __Soe __at.e :soe __cww.s __ams __ SANNIAIY WIHLO w:om_zﬁ._mom_z_ 0006.6.6 \_ _
_ 0 __ 0 I__aom_s __amo_e :A%‘Nv __gm.e \__ﬁ%.s __\ Sa33D0Hd moz<m:wz__ 000v/6.6 ;t
0 __ 0 - __ 0 ;_aoﬁ __ 0 _@a __8: : mzo_Sm,E.zoo\mzoquoo_ 000£.6.6 _

jebpng |euiq sabueyn 18bpng “wijaid s|enjoy 186png sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduosag wiaj|
8L-LL Ad 8L-LL Ad Lb-9L Ad L1-9L Ad 91-6} Ad SL-vi Ad JUBLILLILLOYD

aNN4 TVA3NED - VZEE ANNA
1OIFL1SIA M¥Vd 8 NOILYIHO3d ITIVAIONVAHO

139ang AYVNIWITI™C 81-2102 A4 - ITNAIHOS 1IV.LIA ANNIAIN

Orangevale Recreation & Park Distric



IIATT ¥3ANN/AE3N0

Page 29

IIATT O 103rans SNOILVYIRIdOdddY = =N EXEEE][«avATeNN
TIATT SNOILVIdd0dddY  002'299 $ INIFAWIHINOIH AEV130dNd TV.L0L
o SIAYISIH H3IHLO
0r£'69€ $ 00Z'soL $ - $  OPSviv $ SIV.IOL - SIAYISIY TVHINID
129°LS $ 002'G0l $ 128291 $ 1V IIVAY S3SVIUDNI IAGISTY 04 SNOISIAOEd
JONVIVE ANN4
- = H3HLO = SILIAOWNOD ¥3H10 - 08 123rd0
- = IDONVHEWNONE 0 STIONIDNILNOD J04 SNOILVTHdOHddY - 64 LJ3r80 s
i — o
€LLLLE - eLLLie INEERNEDR] - INO 90 NI SE34SNVEL ANNAVHLINI - 09 1L03rdo™
—_————— — w
JONVIVE SEELERE[] SASVYIHONI LL/10/L 40 SV S3Ad4s3d : NI SH34SNVHL SANN4 - 65 10340 &
aNNnd adisnray JONV1vd FINAIHIS ALIND3 ANNd = TAO SYI3SNVHL SANNd - 06 103rgo=
000'zet $ S13SSV a3IXid - 0¥ 103rg0 v.iol
000°¢y ININJIND3 - e¥ LO3rdo
{(002'299) $ ONIDNVNIF 1Y 1IVAY TV1OL 000'08 SINTWIAOH4AI ONV STHNLONYLS - ¢v LO3rdo 0
- Sa3300dd NVOTWNYIL-ONO 1 d3LYWILSE - NOILISINOOY ANV - 17 103rd0 £
{ooz'sol) JSYILDIA F1gVIIVAY JONVIVE ANN4 SI3SSVY d3xXid - oy ._.Um_“,mOW“b
& ga5va4d03d 39 OL S3AESSad V10D 002°) $ S3SN ONIONVNI4 ¥3H1O0 - 0€ 103rd0 Tv.LOL m
mse e o o o +=
= ERNEEREREEINECEEREERTT0)] 00Z°L STFOVIWVA/SINIWIOANr m
SININSSISSY/SIASNION/SIXVL F
- ISVIHOIA IONVYHEINNONI 0 TVAIONIEd NV IS393INT | O
SINJNAVdIYE ISV 1ANY NVOT T
e (s}
- 3ASVIHOIA S3AHISTY TVHIANIO S3SN ONIONVYNI4 43HLO - 0€ ._.Om_ﬁmOnm
d3Sv3¥d3a 39 OL SIAY3IS3d 000 °6ES $ §3MddNS ANV S3DIAYSS - 0¢ LO3rdo
(000°285) $ INNIATY A3 LVYINILSE - $ SI43N38 FFA0TdNT ONV SIEVIVS - 0 bowﬁm_o.m

str

FAINLIGNIdXT 40 L23rd0 Ad SNOILVYIEd0dddV,

1

(@v110) V7€ ANNd J04 IT1NAIHOS SINIFNIHINOTY ONIONVNIL
JoI3sSIq Nied g uoneaioay o|eAabueiQ

139angd AYVNINITI¥YC 8102-210C HVIA TVOSId

Orangevale Recreation & Park D



0 0 000've 000've 000've €658 0st'le 3DIAY3S TYSOJSIA/NOILOFTION ISN43Y 00e61icoe
0 0 000°0€ 000°0E 000°84 868'Gl LOS'EL 10 13Nd / 941/ SV TvHNLYN 00z6Lez0e
0 0 000'e8 000°c8 000°€8 S¥6'L8 ¥S5'8L ALIDMLD3TE ooleleoe
0 0 ooo'z €46°C 000°2 6£8'L L06'L SIOUVYHO LINH3d 00681202
0 0 0002k 9zL'9l 000°ZL 590, 1996 S311ddNS NOILONYLSNOD 00281202
0 0 000'Z 0002 0002 €98 Grl'e SADIAHIS NOILONHLSNOD 0olL8Leoc
0 0 000"t 000't 000't 109 zzZ6'e S3MddNS FONYNILNIVIN ONIGINNTd 00891202
0 0 000°L 000°L 000°L 089 ZeV'S 3DIAE3S IONVYNILNIVIN ONIgWN1d 00491202
0 0 005°L 00§'} 00S°L LGE'L LG9 S31NddNS ONILNIVd 00zaleoe
0 0 000 L0S's 0002 £89'C rLB'L A1ddNS IOINVYNILNIVN WILSAS TVOINVHOIW 00251202
0 0 000°04 0000} 000°0} £28'LL £9Z°0L IDIAEIS FONYNILNIVIAN WILSAS TVIINVHOINW ooLgieoe
0 0 000'8Y 0o0'0e 000'8¥ g¥L'0z 109'¢2 S31MddNS FONYNILNIVIN LNIFWIAOHINI ANV'T 002vL20c
0 0 00022 00s'Le 000'2Z 669y 8Z6'C IDIAEIS FONYNILNIVIA LNIWIAOUINI ANV 00l¥leoe
0 0 0002 129'z 0002 LLL'Z oLe S31MddNS AONYNILNIVIN T¥OIE.L0313 ogeeleoe
0 0 0009 000'S 0009 0L0'z S69'L 3DINEIS FONVYNILNIVIA TVOIHLO313 oolLeleoe
0 0 000°0€ 00L'0€ 000°0€ 808'€E ¥66'9¢ SIVOINIHO oozzleoZ
0 0 000'8 £L9'6 0008 9.8°L 7520 S3TddNS FONVYNILINIVIN ONIATINE oozl ez
0 0 000'SL 000'StE 000°SL LGL's Sva'oL S311ddNS VENLINDILHOH/TVENLINDIEOV 00r0120¢
0 0 000°ZL 80LLL 000k £Y00L £80'8 IDIAYIS TYENLINDILHOH TYHNLTINOHOV 00eoleoe
0 0 0002 000'L ooo'ez yee ¥ee SAIM 20910202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S317ddNs 301440 00910202
av1io vreie
18bpng [eulq sabueys jebpng wijaid sjenjoy ‘1s3 186png s|enjoy s|enjoy uondussag wiay|
8h-Lk Ad 8L} Ad LI-91 Ad L1791 Ad 91§k Ad Sk¥L Ad oy

IDIMISIO INTWSSESSY SNIIHOIT ¥ HAVOSANYT ITVAZDNVEO ~ ¥YPLE QNNA

L1O1Y1SIa Muvd 2 NOLLYIHO3Y ITVAIONVHO
39ang AYVNINITIN 81-210Z Ad - 3TNA3HIS TIvL3a FHNLIANIdXS

Page 30

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 000'81L 00o'cl 000'L2 EVL'EL GBL Yl SIDIAEIAS ALIMNOIS 001.520C
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3DINHIS ONISIHOSNYHL 00295202
0 0 000'02 Z9E'8C 00002 6.5°LE Zlv've S3DIAYIAS WO 001L€520¢
0 0 000'SL 000'02 000'0Z 9e0'02 986'tlL S3I0INGIS ONIFIINIONT 005zS208
0 0 000'€ 0092 000’ 009'z 009°z SIDIAEIAS DONILNNODOV 00505202
0 0 00002 ezL'le 000°02 LGG'LL 186'61 S3MddNsS TvIA0LsNO 0022€e0c
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3DIAY3AS TVIAOLSNO oolzezoe
0 0 000 2192 0002 Lgz'e 198°L S3MddNS IONYNILNIVIN INFWLIND3 ¥3HLO 00262202
0 0 0052 0052 00SC 9L 0 IDIAEAS FONVNILNIVIN LNIFWDIND3 ¥3AHLO0 00l6eeoe
0 0 000°s LeL'L 000°G 006'S £28'L S3AITddNS FONYNILNIVA INININDT JOHS 00Z8¢z0c
0 0 0002 000'L 0002 986 0SL'Y SIDIAYIS FONVNILNIVIN ININGINDI JOHS 00182202
0 0 000'€ 000°c ooo'e sy 988'L INIWNIND3 S3SVYITV/SLINIY 00612202
0 0 ooo’Le 000'84 000°LZ zi8'ClL 889'L1 SLINYDI™ENT B 13nd 009¢czz0e
0 0 000'¥ 000t 000t Z6L'S €8yl S700.1 I18vaNadX3 00922202
0 0 00G 00s 00s Lyl 861 L S3MddNS INIVIN dIND3 NOILONHELSNOD oozizeoz
0 0 ooo’e vy 000'€ 0092 LzZv'L S3ITddNS FONYNILNIVIN IAILLOWOLNY 0090220¢
0 0 0002 000G 000'L 080'S ¥EVOL 3DIAY3S FONVNILNIVIA IAILLOWOLNY 00s0¢e0c
0 0 000t 00z'e 000°¢ Zee’l zee't IONVNILNIVIN WILSAS SNOHDI AL 00661202
0 0 000°LS 000°L§ 000°LS ¥6¥'6¢C viL'8e H3LvVM 00861¢0¢
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 IDIAETS INOHJI3L 00461202
0 0 000tk 000t 0002t ¥86'LL vL6'LL IDIAYIS TVSOdSIA FIOVMIS 00S6120¢c
avio vvie
uwm—u-._m jeutd QQGEWCU uwm_u:m wijalid s|enjay '}s3 awm_u-._m s|enjoy s|enjay :O_aﬂ_pomvﬂ way
8l-LL Ad 8L-LL Ad LL-9L Ad L1791 Ad 9L-S1 Ad Sl Ad jusuniuiuiod

IOTMISTA INZWSSESSY ONILHOIT ¥ HdVOSANYI ATVAEDNVEO - WPLE aNOJ

LOIY1SIa MH¥Vd ® NOILYIHOIY FTVAIONVHO
39aNg AYVNINIT3¥d 81-21L02 Ad - 3TNA3HOS TIV.L3d FANLIANIdXS

Page 31

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 0002y 000°82 000°89 LIS LY Zee'TT £¥ 108lqo
_d 0 0002k 000'82 000'89 LSy \_ _ Ze€'2e \_ _ INELENSE] 00E0EFEY \_
_ 0 _ _ 0 _Qa_cw 00009 000°0Z1 67529 _ _ 166551 _ z¥ 109lq0
0 0 00008 000°09 000°0Z1 6¥5'L9 166'G51L SIHENLONYLS oozoevey
0 0 0 0 0 0 Q SONIQTINg 00L0ZFeY
0 0 00Z°L §80°2 00zt Zro'lL 0 o0¢ 12990
0 0 00Z'L 530 00Z'L Zy0'L 0 SLNIWSSISSY/OITXVL 000S¥E0E
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NOILdW2d3d NVOT/ANOE 000zgzeoe
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ISNIIXI LSTHILNI 000LZEoE
0 0 000°6€S 6Z.L°ZES 000°6€S 290°0vY 1z8'vsty 0z elqo
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SIDHVYHD ONAYVd SO 00296202
0 0 006 008 00S°E gLyl 966'G S317ddNS = 3SNIIXE ONILYHIJO H3IHLO 0086820¢
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 HILNdNOD - STDIAETS TWNOISSIH0Hd ¥3HLO LOLBSEZ0Z
0 0 00062 000°0Z 000°'LE 068'6€ A SIADIAYAS TYNOISSIH0¥d H3IHLO 00165202
avio vvie
jabpng jeutd yefipng wijald sjenjay ‘153 jebpng sjenjoy s|enjoy uonduasag wiay|
8h-LL Ad 8l-LL Ad L1-91 A4 L1-91 Ad 9L-G1 Ad Sl-PL Ad juswpwIc)

IOTYISTA INZWSSASSY ONIIHOIT 3 HIVOSANWI ATYATONVIO - WPLE ANOJ

LOIY1SId M¥Vd ? NOILYIHIFH FTVAIONVHO

39ang AYVNINITINd 81-2102 Ad - 3TNAIHIS TIv.L3A FJANLIANIdX3

Page 32

June 8,2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 002299 v18°229 \_ 00z'sz. G£Z2'955 9G1'€E9 ¥ 7€ T¥LOL QNN

0 0 002299 ¥18'229 002'82L GEZ 956 951°¢£9 $2£6.£6 ¥ILNID ANNA

0 0 _ 0 0 0 0 0 62122lq0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SIAHEISTY VHINTD

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOILVIHdOdddY ADNIONILNOD| 00106461

av1io vrig
jabpng jeuld sabueyn jobpng wijaid s|enjay "3s3 jebpng s|enjoy s|enjoy uonduasaq way|
8L-LL Ad 8L-Ll Ad L1191 Ad 2191 Ad 91-G1 Ad Sl¥L Ad juswywwon

IOTMISIA INFWSSESSY ONIIHOTT 3 EdVISANVI FTYAZDNVEO - ¥pLE aNNI

1O1M1SIa MHVd ® NOILYIHITY FTVAIONVHO

39ang AMVYNINITI¥d 81-210Z Ad - 3TNA3HIOS TIv.13d F¥NLIANIdXS

Page 33

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



[0 IBIE ] [fovo’zgs) | [{o0o‘zss) |[looozss) | [(69z"695) | [erv'ses) | ¥ F4€ TWLOL GNNA

[0 |[o | [fooo’z89) | [foo0z58) | [fooo'zes) | [(eoz'e0s) —|[lervses) | ¥2€6.£6 ¥ILNID ANNA

[0 IBIC ] [fooo’sss) | [{o00'sgs) | [foo0’sss) | [(e82"208) |[Gorves) | 96192ld0

[0 |[© | [0 1[0 ] [0 B [0 \__o| ] [ D OASNOILY3HO3M[  009v9696
[0 IER ] [fooo'sae) | [foo0gs3) B [(oo0'sss) L_GE.S& \__ﬁm_‘,vm& | [ INJWSSISSY TWIO3dS|  00£09696
[0 [0 | [fo0o2) | [{00072) |[ooo2) —|[(8¥'h) ~|[(eve) | 6 12lq0

_ 0 L_ 0 ; _ 0 L_ 0 L_ 0 L_ 0 _? L ﬁ ¥IHLO TVINIY ONITINg|  00626v6
[0 [0 | [foo0'2) | [foo02) | [fo02) |[Grv'D) ~|[ferey) 1] SWOONI LSIH3INI|  0001v66

avio Yrle
1eBpng eutd sebueyy  3abpng ‘wijeid sjemoy 1obpng senjoy siemoy uopdposeq wey|
8l-Lb Ad 8111 Ad L1794 Ad L1914 Ad 9154 Ad Sbvh Ad JuBUHIIWOD

IOTHISIOC INIWSSESSY ONIIHOIT 3 HdVDSANVT HIVARONYHO - ¥PLE aANOJ

12181S1a ¥¥Vd ® NOILYIYOTY FTVATONVHO
139ang AYVYNIWITIY 81-2102 A4 - 3TNATHOS TIVL3ad INNIAIA

Page 34

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



TINT 93aNN/AE3A0
TIWM 01 LO3rdns SNOILYIEdOdddY

TTATT SNOILVIHdOdddY

068°L $

068°L $ STVLIOL

8G6'} $

0Ey'S

$ OEV'S $

ERCLALZN
JONYIvd NN

856 L $

E Hy3aHLO0

- JONVHENNONE

ZEG'S
JONYIvd
annd aalsnrav

§35v3=03d

ZEB'S ACEENER]

LL/10/L 4O SV EEIVEREE]
3ONVIVd FINA3IHIOS ALINDA ANN4

S3SVYIHONI

SNIONVNIS FTavIIVAY TVLOL
- 5@33004d NVYOTWYIL-DNOT aa1viNLLSS

it e s T i o e Y
ISVIY03d J 19V 1IVAY SONY1VE NN

—— e

™ g3IsSvay03a 38 OL STAYFSTE W.LOL

= ESERREREEEEERREELTTS]

- 3SY3-030 JONVHENNONI

= ENEEREREEICEFEERMEENER]

g3svI=g03a 39 Ol s3AE3S3Y

(0EV'S) $ INNIATL A3 LVYNILST

SININIYINO3Y 139ang IHL ONIDNVYNIZ 40 SNYIW

00°0EP'S $

\

TFONIY344Ia VLOL
TNIWIEINO3Y AYVIISdnd Tv.Llol
S3IAEISTH HIHLO
SIAGISTY TVHINIO

e

SISYIUONI IAYTSTH H04 SNOISINOEd

——ee e

SIILIGOWNOD ¥=HI0 - 08 10380

STONIONIINOD 504 SNOILVIEd0dddy -6 103rao
1A0 90 NI Su32SNVEL ONNAVELINI - 09 103rd0

—

NI SYaJSNVHL SANNS - 85 103rd0
IN0O Sg34SNVEL SANN4 - 0§ LO3rgo

S138SV 03aXid - 0F 103rd0 V.10l

INIWdIND3 - £¥ L0340

SINIWIAOYdINT ANV STENLIONYLS - 2 LO3r80
NOILISINOOV ANV - I¥ 123rgo
§135SV aaXId - 0¥ 123ra0

535N ONIDNVYNIZ ¥3HLO - 08 153rd0 V101

SIOVINVA/SINIWDANe

SININSSISSV/SISNIDISIXVL
TVIDONIHd ONY LSIHELNI

SINGWAV4IY ISV TANY NVO

§3sN ONIDNYNId 93HLO - 0€ 103rd0

S3MddNs ANV STDIAE3S - 0¢ LO3rdo

S1IJaN=g 33A0 IdANT ANV STEVIVS - 01 103rd0

TINLIANIaX3 40 103ra0 A SNOILYIHdOdddY

L1OIM1SIa LNIWSSISSY FAOHO HLINNIA

gy.€ ANN4 ¥04 3TNAIHOS SLNINIFINDIY ONIONVNIL

1o13SIq JIEd ¥ uonealoay ojeAabuelQ

139ang AYVNINITIEd 2102-9102 ¥VIA TVOSId

Page 35

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



INIWSSISSY IAOUD HLINNIM - g€ ANNL

‘ 121¥LSIa MHVd 2 NOLLYIHOTY FTVAIONVHO
139ang AYYNINII3¥d 812102 Ad - 3TNAIHIS TIV.L3d F¥NLIANIdX3

0 0 0 0 9LL'.2 0 STUNLONA1S|[ 0020zvey \_

0 T 0E¥'s 0082 0eY'S 561y 1z8's 0z 123090

0 0 0t 0 (3 0 0 SIOUVHO ONDIEYd SD| 00296202
0 0 00€ 0 00€ 0 0 S1S0D SSvVdWOD| 00516202
0 0 00€ 0 00€ Ll 0 S3DIAGTS - ISNIdXT ONILVHILO H3HLO| 00668202
0 0 00S 0 00§ 618" 000E SI0ING3S TYNOISSTJ0dd ¥3H1O0| 00165202
0 0 0s1 0 051 0 0 SIOINGSS ONIGRIOSNVYL| 00295202
0 0 00% 0 00l 0 651 S3I0IAG3S Vo1 001€6202
0 0 0001 000} 000} 006 059 SIDIAE3S ONIYIANIONT| 00525202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SIDIANSS NOILO3TIOD/ENIWNSSIASSY| 00205202
0 0 005 005 005 005 005 SIDIAE3S ONILNNODOV| 00505202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ddns INIVIN O3 dOHS| 00282202
0 0 009 00% 009 €45 6€9 SINVOIHENT® 13nd| 009€2202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SIDING3S SONYNILNIVIN OLNY| 00502202
0 0 008 0ov 008 £6€ 6zv H31VM| 00861202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3ddNS ONILNIVd| 00291202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SaMddNS vaNLINJILHOHYENLINODY| 00701202
0 0 005 0 00S 0 0S¥ I0IA3AS IVENLINOILIOH/IVANLINOIOV|  00£0L202
0 0 05 0 0S 0 0 SNOIS| 20920202
0 0 00t 0 001 0 0 S3INddns 301440 00920202
0 0 005 005 005 0 0 STIDILON VO VONISILYIAAY| 00500202

ﬁwm—u:m mwmtmc_o uwm—u:m wijald s|enjoy umm_u:m s|lenyoy S|enjoy :O_un_._omoﬂ way|
leury 8l-Ll Ad L1-91 Ad L1791 Ad 91-G1 Ad Si-vl Ad JuswwWo
8l-L1 Ad

Page 36

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 oer's 0082 0EY's LLeLe 1z8's g v.€ TVLOL ANN4
0 0 0sr's 0082 0EY's LLg°LE 1z8's GL£6.€6 MIALNID ANNS
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 621223lq0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOILLYIHdOdHddY ADNIONILNOD| 00L06464
0 0 0 0 0 9122 0 Zy welao
jabpng sebueyn 19bpng wijaid sjenjoy jabpng sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduasag wajyy
Jeuld gi-L1 Ad L1-9L Ad L1-91 Ad 9}-G1 Ad Si-vl Ad jusjiuoy)
8i-LL Ad

INISSISSY IAOHDO HLINNIM - g¥L€ ANNA

1O1¥1SIA MHVd 2 NOILVIHIOIY FTVAIONVYHO

139ang AMVNINITI¥d 8L-210Z Ad - 3TNA3IHOS 1Iv.L3d 38NLIANIdXS

June 8, 2017 Page 37

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



E |0 | |foe¥’s) | [(oev’s) | [(og's) | |(oev’s) | [(ovt's) | € v.¢ TVLOL ANN4

|0 ][0 |{(0e¥'s) | [foev's) —|{(oev's) | |(oer's) |[orv's) | se6.£6¥ILNIO ANNA

E ][0 | |(00r’s) | [(oov's) ||(oo¥'s) | |(oor’s) | |(6s¢’s) | 96123090

[0 JIE _ ﬁgﬁ.e | [toor's) | ((00'S) | |(oor'a) | |lese’s) | [ INJWSS3SSV WIO3dS|  ¥LE6LEG

[0 |[0 | |{og) | [(og) | [(og) | [(og) |[(18) B 6309000

[0 1[0 | [(0€) | [(og) ~}[{og) ] [{o€) ] [(18) ] IWOONI 1STa3INI[  v/€6/€6 |
JA0HD HLINNIM anNnd

jaBpng [euld sebueyn  1eBpng wijaid sjenjoy 1eBpng sjenjoy s{enjoy way
8i-L} Ad 8i-LL Ad L1-9} Ad L1891 Ad 915} Ad Skl Ad JusupwuIod

INIHSSESSY FAOND HIENNIM - €7LE aNOJ

121¥.1S1a YHVd 8 NOILYIHO3Y FTVAIONVHO
139dng AYVNIWINZ¥d 81-2102 Ad - 3TNAIHOS TIv13A INNIAIA

Page 38

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017

LONG-TERM LOAN SCHEDULE

ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

DESCRIPTION FUND PAYMENTS BALANCE DUE
Pecan Ave. Property Purchase (INTEREST)  332A 16,484.62 51,045.24
Pecan Ave. Property Purchase (PRINCIPLE) ~ 332A 60,328.95 333,022.61
Pecan Avenue Property 332A 76,813.57 384,067.85
TOTAL of LONG TERM DEBT: 76,813.57 384,067.85
Orangevale Recreation & Park District Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 39



ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
FIXED ASSETS TO BE ACQUIRED
FISCAL YEAR 2017/18

Capital Improvement
Structures &
DESCRIPTION Land Building Improve. Equipment
COMMITMENT 41410100 42420100 42420200 43430300

Fund 332A (General)
Pecan - Dog Park, ADA Bridge, &

Rough Trail 25,000
Oak & Filbert Trail 235,000
Almond Shade Structure 60,000
Total (332A) - - 320,000 -

Fund 374A (OLLAD)
Asphalt Resurfacing - OCCP

North & ADA, Shackelton 60,000
Youth Center Park 20,000
OCC Security System Renov. 12,000
Drinking Fountains 15,000
Truck w/ Utility Bed 15,000
Total (OLLAD) - - 80,000 42,000

Fund 374B (Kenneth Grove)

Total (KG) ; : : n

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 40



OVrarks
ORANGEVALE

RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

RESOLUTION # 17-06-573

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT ADOPTING THE
ORANGEVALE LANDSCAPING & LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018

WHEREAS, all necessary estimates of revenues, expenditures and reserves
were reviewed and filed for ending fiscal year 2016/2017; and

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED in accordance with Code Section
29089 of the Government Code, the preliminary budget for the fiscal year 2017/2018,
be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following:

(1) Salaries & Employee Benefits $ 0
(2) Services & Supplies 539,000
3) Other Charges 1.200
(4) Fixed Assets: 7
(a) Land 0
(b) Structures & Improvements 80,000
(c) Equipment 42.000
(5)  Expenditure transfers 0
(6)  Contingencies 0
(7 Provision for reserve increases 0
TOTAL BUDGET REQUIREMENTS $ 662,200

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure program
will be by monies derived from Revenue to Accrue, Fund Balance Available and
Property Assessments and Certificates of Participation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed preliminary budget be and is hereby
adopted in accordance with the listed attachment which show in detail the approved
appropriations, revenues and methods of financing for the 2017/2018 fiscal year:

ON A MOTION, by Director , seconded by Director , the
foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted this 8™ day of June 2017 by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Chair, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 41



é‘*\ RESOLUTION NO. 17-06-574
OVprarxks

ORANGEVALE
RECREATION & A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

PARK DISTRICT THE ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
APPROVING THE ENGINEER'S REPORT, CONFIRMING
THE DIAGRAM AND ASSESSMENT, AND ORDERING
THE LEVY OF ASSESSMENT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
2017-18 FOR THE ORANGEVALE LANDSCAPING AND
LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

RESOLVED, by the Governing Board (the "Board") of the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District (the "District"), County of
Sacramento, State of California, that

WHEREAS, on July 17, 1991, by its Resolution No. 816, this
Board ordered the formation of and levied the first assessment
within the Orangevale Recreation and Park District Maintenance
Assessment District 1991 (the “Assessment District”) pursuant to
the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Assessment District is for the
installation, maintenance and servicing of improvements to the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District, as described in the
Engineer’s Report; and

WHEREAS, by its Resolution No. 17-03-566, A Resolution
Directing Preparation of the 2017-18 Annual Report for the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District (the "Assessment District"), this Board
designated SCI Consulting Group as Engineer of Work and ordered
said Engineer to make and file a report in writing in accordance
with and pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972;
and

WHEREAS, the report was duly made and filed with the Clerk of

the Board and duly considered by this Board and found to be

sufficient in every particular, whereupon it was determined that the

report should stand as the Engineer's Report for all subsequent

proceedings under and pursuant to the aforesaid resolution, and that

June 8, 2017 at the hour of 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers of the

Orangevale Recreation and Park District, 6826 Hazel Avenue,

6826 Hazel Avenie Orangevale, California, 95662, were appointed as the time and
Orangevale, CA 95662 place for a hearing by this Board on the question of the levy of the
916-988-4373 proposed assessment, notice of which hearing was given as

oV 2
parks.com Page 1 of 4

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 42



= required by law; and
OVrarxs

ORANGEVALE WHEREAS, at the appointed time and place the hearing was duly
RECREATION & and regularly held, and all persons interested and desiring to be
PARK DISTRICT heard were given an opportunity to be heard, and all matters and

things pertaining to the levy were fully heard and considered by
this Board, and all oral statements and all written protests or
communications were duly heard, considered and overruled, and
this Board thereby acquired jurisdiction to order the levy and the
confirmation of the diagram and assessment prepared by and made
a part of the Engineer's Report to pay the costs and expenses
thereof;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS FOUND, DETERMINED AND
ORDERED, that:

1. The public interest, convenience and necessity
require that the levy be made.

2. The Assessment District benefited by the
improvements and assessed to pay the costs and
expenses thereof, and the exterior boundaries
thereof, are as shown by a map thereof filed in the
office of the Clerk of the Board, which map is made
a part hereof by reference thereto.

3. The assessment is levied without regard to property
valuation.

4, The Engineer's Report as a whole and each part
thereof, to wit:

(a) the Engineer's estimate of the itemized and
total costs and expenses of maintaining the
improvements and of the incidental
expenses in connection therewith;

(b) the diagram showing the assessment district,
plans and  specifications for  the
improvements to be maintained and the
boundaries and dimensions of the respective
lots and parcels of land within the
Assessment District; and

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662 (c) the assessment of the total amount of the
916-988-4373 cost and expenses of the proposed

OVparks.com Page 2 of 4

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 43



‘7—-"\ ! maintenance of the improvements upon the
O\ PARKS several lots and parcels of land in the

ORANGEVALE Assessment District in proportion to the

RECREATION & estimated special benefits to be received by

PARK DISTRICT such lots and parcels, respectively, from the
maintenance, and of the expenses incidental
thereto;

are finally approved and confirmed.

3 Final adoption and approval of the Engineer's
Report as a whole, and of the plans and
specifications, estimate of the costs and expenses,
the diagram and the assessment, as contained in the
report as hereinabove determined and ordered, is
intended to and shall refer and apply to the report,
or any portion thereof as amended, modified, or
revised or corrected by, or pursuant to and in
accordance with, any resolution or order, if any,
heretofore duly adopted or made by this Board.

6. The assessment to pay the costs and expenses of the
maintenance of the improvements for fiscal year
2017-18 is hereby levied. For further particulars
pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972, reference is hereby made to
the Resolution Directing Preparation of Engineer's
Report.

T Based on the oral and documentary evidence,
including the Engineer's Report, offered and
received at the hearing, this Board expressly finds
and determines (a) that each of the several lots and
parcels of land will be specially benefited by the
maintenance of the improvements at least in the
amount if not more than the amount, of the
assessment apportioned against the lots and parcels
of land, respectively, and (b) that there is substantial
evidence to support, and the weight of the evidence
preponderates in favor of, the aforesaid finding and
determination as to special benefits.

8. Immediately upon the adoption of this resolution,
6826 Hazel Avenue but in no eve.nt later than t'he third Monday in
Orangevale, CA 95662 ‘g“g“dSt lfollllogmg S‘f} a§°pt1°n’ ftif ﬁ.lerk of thz
S i oard shall file a certified copy of the diagram an
OVparks.com Page 3 of 4
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 44



X —~ assessment and a certified copy of this resolution
O \’ PARKS with the Auditor of the County of Sacramento.

ORANGEVALE Upon such filing, the County Auditor shall enter on
RECREATION & the County assessment roll opposite each lot or
PARK DISTRICT parcel of land the amount of assessment thereupon

as shown in the assessment. The assessments shall
be collected at the same time and in the same
manner as County taxes are collected and all laws
providing for the collection and enforcement of
County taxes shall apply to the collection and
enforcement of the assessments, After collection by
the County, the net amount of the assessments, after
deduction of any compensation due the County for
collection, shall be paid to the Orangevale
Recreation and Park District.

9. The moneys representing assessments collected by
the County shall be deposited in the District
Treasury to the credit of the improvement fund
previously ~established under the distinctive
designation of the Assessment District. Moneys in
the improvement fund shall be expended only for
bond expenses, maintenance, servicing,
construction or installation of the improvements.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8" day of June 2017, by the following
vote:

AYES :
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

CHAIR, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662 CLERK OF THE BOARD
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Page 4 of 4

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 45



ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK
DISTRICT
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

ENGINEER’S REPORT

FIscALYEAR2017-18

PURSUANT TO THE LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ACT OF 1972 AND
ARTICLE XIIID OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

ENGINEER OF WORK:
SClConsultingGroup
4745 MANGELS BOULEVARD
FAIRFIELD, CALIFORNIA 94534
PHONE 707.430.4300

Fax 707.430.4319
WWW.SCI-CG.COM

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 46



PAGEI

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT —5 LW
L ANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ARt I rodp

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 47



PAGE L

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

BoOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mike Stickney, Chair

Lisa Montes, Vice Chair
Tim Anderson, Secretary
Sharon Brunberg, Director
Manie Meraz, Director

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR
Greg Foell

DISTRICT'S ATTORNEY
David W. McMurchie

ENGINEER OF WORK
SCI Consulting Group

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT i
s

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SCIConsultingGroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 48



PAGE I

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUGTION c:sss0isssrscsinsns vomess s vesiississiuisdisuis iy 898800 48ia5 5 30500400 45 S 04 S i B 1
ASSESSMENT CONTINUATION PROCEDURES .....vcvveeieie st seseese e s eres e ste s seemenestesssn v 2
PLANS & S PEC I CATIONS . uuxresnasaneasssissasingsseanssssscasassisisiss visborisisnsions vt nesmabi sy v 3
FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 ESTIMATE OF COST AND BUDGET...ccvcersreseresererrrsmvassnsssesserssssesssesssnnns 4
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT DEBT ..ottt eeeeeeee et et e et s sesee et ana st arses et st e e s b easnaranssasssss 5
EXEMPTION FROM PROPOSITION 248, civuisucimnmnsivaiunise ssmosisisiniviisssssvoisiioisss i saamion 6
METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT ...vevecressesssssssnsseessesesssassitssssssessssarasssssstsnnsssssssasssssassssassssssntssenns 8
METHOL OF ARPPORTIONMENT ..o s s e e s Tt e 8
IS CUSSION OF BENEFIT .vviivieieteeteesessessatsesiesiasessserssessassastas shbes tasaststbasassansassbasassssnssenn 8
COMPLIANCE WITH CURRENT LAW ..o vttt ee st ev v sr s snssne s sesnsseere e sranrssnsnessnns 12
CPEGIAL BIENEEITS: ¢ ororsssusuvstis s sty crss sivsts s a6 5 v s 0 S AR S s e 12
BENEFIT FACTORS . 1. ttvevesrressssesseseeseessseesesesseesesseasteseessaas st saseran st e ta st arterar e et e st saesberaaseanas 13
GENERAL VERSUS SPECIAL BENEFIT 1u. vt eee ettt e sieer s etease st et et s n e sns st aennes 22
CALCULATING GENERAL BENEFIT <.vovveviieeeiesieseie s ses s s sinsevs st ssts st s ssts v sis s svessessassvssbasae s 23
BENEFIT FINDING.....v e ieeevessresesreesessersesesrensssessassssssssssnsssst inbssnssansssasssnissarensassasnsontannsss 26
M ETHOD OF ASSESSMENT .. v vevesresiereeeeetetase st easssressessessasseteasssbesiesie s te e s e besbe b et e bebne s 26
ASSESSMENT APPORTIONMENT .. evt vt eee oo ceete et e ete et eessnes e srssbsebssssstessseesasssses e sbenssnens 26
S S E S SN E NI sy s v oo v 3 0N A B MR8 A VG eV S S R AR 34
AASSESSMENT DIAGRAM. . ..covreerersimeseseressssssseserssssssessrssressnsssssssessesssassessasassensresssssessansasassessen 36
ASSESSMENT ROLL. 201718 ..cvivvsvossisusiisnssasscunssvansssasssss s saissanssnvasvins iss e sussspsssvadisne it iy 38
END NOTES .o uvecereeeeeersesessessrsses senessessasessassasnsanssssssessensesssessnssassssss sans rassassssssnsassassansnsvasene 39
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT m
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT el RYIAELINIE) P

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 49



PAGE 1

INTRODUCTION

On June 29, 1992, the Board of Directors of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
("Park District") adopted Resolution Number 92-06-51 Ordering Formation of the
Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District ("Assessment District') to levy
and collect assessments. The Assessment District was initially formed for the following
purposes: (1) to provide funds for the construction of new capital improvements within the
District contained in the Districts Capital Improvement Master Plan consisting of a
community center, swimming pool, soccer and other athletic fields, playground renovations
consistent with the Americans with Disabilites Act, restroom construction, and
miscellaneous improvements to the District's various park sites distributed throughout the
geographical area of the District; and (2) to fund the maintenance, repair and replacement
of the capital improvement projects constructed with assessment proceeds for the useful
life of those capital improvements, which useful life exceeds the 20-year term of repayment
of the bonds; and (3) to pay the cost of servicing such capital improvements constructed
with assessment proceeds including the costs of water, gas, and other utilities; and (4) to
fund the cost of construction and maintenance of additional capital improvement projects
consisting of park and recreational facilities on a pay as you go basis.

At the time the Assessment District was formed in 1992, the Park District had been
experiencing a revenue shortfall that was due to declining property tax revenues. In fiscal
years 1991-92 and 1992-93 the State of California enacted new legislation shifting a
significant portion of property tax revenue away from special districts such as the Park
District to Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds established in each county
(hereinafter ERAF's) to help fund the State’s obligation to fund education according to the
requirements of Proposition 98. The Park District lost the amount of $1,012,654 in property
tax revenue in the first year of this tax shift to ERAF's, which revenue loss forced the Park
District to postpone projects, reduce recreational programs and cut staffing for park
maintenance. This annual property tax revenue loss has continued each year to the
present time.

Since its formation, the Assessment District has funded the construction of all of the capital
improvements specified in the District's 1992 Capital Improvement Master Plan through
the issuance of Certificates of Participation in the amount of $4,720,000 secured by a
pledge of the assessment revenues (the “Bonds”), and agreed to repay the principal
amount of those Bonds plus interest over a 20-year term from the assessment revenues
levied and collected annually within the Assessment District. Since its formation, the
Assessment District has also utilized a portion of the assessment revenues to fund the
continuing maintenance, repair and replacement of the improvements constructed with
such assessment proceeds as those maintenance requirements arise. In fiscal year 2014-
15 the assessment proceeds will be used to pay for a portion of the continuing costs of
maintenance, repair, and replacement of portions of the District's park and recreational
capital improvements, and the servicing of those improvements.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT !l"""""‘o {Eﬁf
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT PR OATUNHNERarOUL

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 50



PAGE 2

ASSESSMENT CONTINUATION PROCEDURES

This Engineer's Report ("Report") was prepared to establish the budget for the capital
improvements, maintenance and services expenditures that are proposed to be funded by
the proposed 2017-18 assessments, to determine the special benefits received from the
park maintenance and capital improvement projects by real property within the Park
District, and to specify the method of assessment apportionment to lots and parcels within
the Park District. This Report and the proposed assessments have been made pursuant to
the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the California Streets
and Highways Code (the "Act") and Article XIlIC and XIIID of the California Constitution
(Proposition 218).

In each year for which the assessments will be levied, the District Board must direct the
preparation of an Engineer's Report, budgets and proposed assessments for the upcoming
fiscal year. After the Engineer's Report is completed, the Board may preliminarily approve
the Engineer's Report and proposed assessments and establish the date for a public
hearing on the continuation of the assessments. This Report was prepared pursuant to the
direction of the Board adopted on March 9, 2017.

If the Board approves this Engineer's Report and the proposed continuation of the
assessments by resolution, a notice of assessment levies must be published in a local
paper at least 10 days prior to the date of the public hearing. The resolution preliminarily
approving the Engineer's Report and establishing the date for a public hearing is used for
this notice.

Following the minimum 10-day time period after publishing the notice, a public hearing will
be held for the purpose of allowing public testimony about the proposed continuation of the
assessments for fiscal year 2017-18. This hearing is currently scheduled for June 8, 2017.
At this hearing, the Board will consider approval of a resolution confirming the
assessments for fiscal year 2017-18. If so confirmed and approved, the assessments wil
be submitted to the County Auditor/Controller for inclusion on the property tax rolls for
Fiscal Year 2017-18.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT - {;W
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT Sul-ansuungioun

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 51



PAGE 3

PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS

For fiscal year 2017-18, the District proposes to use the assessment proceeds to pay the
costs of maintaining, repairing and replacing portions of its park and recreational facilities
to ensure that such facilities retain their high quality through the term of their useful lives
after the construction costs of those facilities have been paid.

The work and improvements (‘Improvements”) proposed to be undertaken by the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District's Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District
(the “Assessment District”) and the cost thereof paid from the levy of the annual
assessment provide special benefit to Assessor Parcels within the Assessment District as
defined in the Method of Assessment herein. In addition to the definitions provided by the
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, (the “Act’) the work and improvements are
generally described as follows:

Installation, maintenance and servicing of public recreational facilities and improvements,
including, but not limited to, turf and play areas, landscaping, ground cover, shrubs and
trees, irrigation systems, drainage systems, lighting, fencing, entry monuments, basketball
courts, tennis courts, gymnasium, running tracks, swimming pools, other recreational
facilities, security guards, graffiti removal and repainting, and labor, materials, supplies,
utilities and equipment, as applicable, at each of the locations owned, operated or
maintained by the Orangevale Recreation and Park District. Any plans and specifications
for these improvements will be filed with the District Administrator of the Orangevale
Recreation and Park District and are incorporated herein by reference.

As applied herein, “Installation” means the design and construction of recreational
improvements, including, but not limited to, land preparation, such as grading, leveling,
cutting and filling, sod, landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks and drainage, lights,
playground equipment, play courts, recreational facilities and public restrooms.

“Maintenance” means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual
maintenance, operation and servicing of any improvement, including repair, removal or
replacement of all or any part of any improvement; providing for the life, growth, health,
and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying, fertilizing, or
treating for disease or injury; the removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris, and other solid
waste, and the cleaning, sandblasting, and painting of walls and other improvements to
remove or cover graffiti.

“Servicing” means the furnishing of electric current, or energy, gas or other illuminating
agent for any public lighting facilities or for the lighting or operation of any other
improvements; or water for the irrigation of any landscaping, the operation of any
fountains, or the maintenance of any other improvements.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT - m
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT St-ionsuitinglaroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 52



FiscAL YEAR 2017-18 ESTIMATE oF COST AND BUDGET

Page4

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Parks and Recreation Maintenance and Improvement District
Estimate of Cost
Fiscal Year 2017-18
Total
Budget
Project Budget Fiscal Year 2017-18
1 Capital Improvement Projects
Total Capital Improvements $60,000
2  Maintenance and Service Expenditures
A Agricultural Supplies and Services $27,000
B Utilities $188,000
C  Chemicals $30,000
D Security $21,000
E Fuel $21,000
F  Other Expenses $178,000
G  Other Professional Services $31,000
Total Maintenance and Service Expenditures $496,000
3  Incidental Expenditures
A Engineering/Accounting Expenditures $23,000
B Legal Services $20,000
Total Incidental Expenditures $43,000
4  Debt Service
A Interest Expense $0
B Bond Principal Repayment $0
C  Tax/Lic/Assessments $1,200
Total Debt Service $1,200
5 Salaries and Benefits
A Salaries and Benefits $739,5680
Total Costs for Installation, Maintenance and Servicing for Fiscal Year 2017-18 $1,339,780
Total benefit of Improvements $1,339,780
Single Family Equivalents (SFEs) 13,649
Benfit received per SFE unit $98.16
Less:
District Contribution for General Benefits $669,890.00
District Contribution toward Special Benefits $96,731.12
Estimated Assessment Revenues for Fiscal Year 2017-18 $573,159
Budget Allocati'o-n to Prok[;é‘rty
Total Assessment Budget $573,159
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units 13,646.64
Assessment per Single Family Equivalent Unit $42.00

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT e —_
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT e ONBMTHESEON
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 53



PAGE 5

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT DEBT

The park and recreation improvements constructed within the assessment district and
listed on Table 1 have been financed through issuance of Certificates of Participation by
Orangevale Recreation and Park District known as Orangevale Recreation and Park
District Certificates of Participation 1992 Series A and Refunding Certificates of
Participation 1996 Series A (the “Bonds”).

In order to facilitate the issuance of the Bonds and the funding of the District's Capital
Improvement Master Plan, the Board, in Resolution 92-06-51, opted to levy an annual
installment assessment which, under the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Streets &
Highways Code, § 22500 et seq.) (the ‘Act’) is a procedure for financing capital
improvements, the cost of which exceeds the amount of assessment revenue that can be
collected in any single fiscal year. The annual installment assessment levied by the Board
of Directors in this Resolution is a one-time assessment to be levied in annual installments
through fiscal year 2012-13 sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the outstanding
Bonds. The provisions of the Act specifically allow the Board to assess an annual
installment assessment on a one time basis to be collected over any period of time less
than thirty (30) years. The Bonds were used to finance the costs of the construction of the
Capital Improvement Plan and were secured by a pledge of 100% of all assessment
revenues for repayment of principal and interest on the Bonds.

This pledge of 100% of the assessment revenues for principal and interest payments on
the Bonds was facilitated by the requirement in the Bond documents that the District
establish a “Special Lease Payment Fund” and deposit all assessment revenues collected
each year into the Special Lease Payment Fund administered by the Bond trustee. The
trustee is then authorized to utilize the assessment revenues deposited into the Special
Lease Payment Fund to make principal and interest payments on the Bonds when due.
This is the mechanism which ensures that the District’s irrevocable pledge of 100% of its
assessment revenues to bond payments provides a security interest and first lien on such
assessment revenues in favor of the bondholders. The assessment revenues on deposit
in the Special Lease Payment Fund are not subject to levy, attachment, or lien by or for the
benefit of any creditor of the District, and the District is prohibited from pledging those
assessment revenues to any other obligation other than the principal and interest on the
Bonds. The District also promised in the bond documents not to reduce the amount of its
assessments while any of the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid.

To the extent that assessment revenues on deposit in the Special Lease Payment Fund
exceed the principal and interest payments owing on the Bonds in any year, then the bond
trustee is authorized to release those excess assessment revenues back to the District to
be utilized to fund maintenance, repair, replacement, and servicing expenditures required
by the District to maintain all park and recreational improvements in good condition
throughout their useful life.

Upon full repayment of the principal and interest on the Bonds in fiscal year 2012-13,
District legal counsel has opined that the Board of Directors of District has the discretion to

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT g%{éf
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SGiConsuitingGroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 54



PAGE 6

levy annual assessments thereafter based on an annual budget of expenditures for the
Assessment District for each ensuing fiscal year for additional capital improvements,
additional maintenance, repair or replacement of existing capital improvements, and the
payment of servicing costs of those improvements pursuant to the provisions of the
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (the “Act’), Proposition 218 and Articles XIIIC and D
of the California Constitution so long as the amount of assessments per parcel and the
methodology of assessment initially established by the Board in 1992 is not changed. The
Act authorizes continuing assessments on an annual basis after a public hearing upon a
majority vote of the District's Board of Directors each year.

EXEMPTION FROM PROPOSITION 218

The districtwide assessment district was formed and the District issued its bonds secured
by assessment revenues in 1990, prior to the passage of Proposition 218, the Right to
Vote on Taxes Act, which was approved by the voters of California on November 6, 1996,
and now comprises Articles Xill C and XIll D of the California Constitution. Proposition
218 provides that all assessments levied by local governments after the adoption of
Proposition 218 in 1996 must comply with the following two criteria: (1) assessments must
be demonstrated to provide “special benefits” to the parcels of real property upon which
the assessment is levied, and not for general benefit to the public and society at large,
including non-property owners such as tenants and visitors to District Facilities; and (2) no
assessment may be imposed on any parcel of real property which exceeds the reasonable
cost of the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel.

The assessment levied by the districtwide assessment district prior to the passage of
Proposition 218 in 1996 is exempt as an assessment existing on the effective date of
Article XIII D imposed exclusively to repay bonded indebtedness of which the failure to pay
would violate the contract impairment clause of the United States Constitution (See Cal.
Const,, art. Xl D, 5(c)). The assessment district's Certificates of Participation 1992 Series
A , and the District's Refunding Certificates of Participation 1996 Series A, all represent
contractual obligations to which the District pledged 100% of the assessment revenues
received in the assessment district. The District's contractual pledge to levy and collect all
of the assessments within the assessment district to pay principal and interest on the
Certificate of Participation obligations are protected from impairment by the prohibition
against impairment of the obligation of contract contained in the United States Constitution.
(See section entitled Assessment District Debt.)

In addition, Government Code section 53753.5, which is part of the Proposition 218
Omnibus Implementation Act, provides that this exemption means that all such
assessments in the assessment district are exempt from “the procedures and approval
process” defined in Section 4 of Article XIIl D. Section 53753.5(c)(2) goes on to state that
the definition of exemption from the “procedures and approval process” means exemption
from the requirements to separate general benefit from special benefit, and the
requirement to assess publicly owned parcels within the assessment district.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT g e
L ANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT =CiConauitngarolp
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 55



PAGET

In addition, Government Code section 53753.3(b)(4) specifically provides that any
subsequent increases in such assessment district assessments must comply with such
procedures and approval processes except for those assessments which preexist the
adoption of Proposition 218 and are exempt since the proceeds of such assessments are
pledged to pay bonded indebtedness. Therefore, any subsequent increases in the
assessments pledged to debt are also exempt from the procedures and approval
processes of Article XIII D.

Despite this exemption from the requirements of Proposition 218 to separate general
benefit from special benefit, this Engineer's Report nevertheless demonstrates that the
assessments levied in the assessment district are limited to funding special benefits to
property within the assessment district, and any potential general benefit to the public and
others not paying assessments has been excluded in the calculation of the assessments
and the funding of the assessment district budget.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT Il"""_—ﬁr Cm
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SRR R R R

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 56



PAGE 8

METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

This section of the Engineer's Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be derived
from the installation, maintenance and servicing of park facilities throughout the Park
District, and the methodology used to apportion the total assessment to properties within
the Assessment District.

The Assessment District consists of all Assessor Parcels within the boundaries of the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District. The method used for apportioning the
assessments is based upon the proportional special benefits conferred to the properties
over and above the general benefits conferred to real property in the Assessment District
or to the public at large. Special benefit is calculated for each parcel in the Assessment
District using the following process:

= |dentification of all benefit factors derived from the Improvements

= Calculation of the proportion of these benefits that are special and general, and
quantification of the general benefits

= Determination of the relative special benefit per property type

= Calculation of the specific assessment for each individual parcel based upon
special vs. general benefit; property type, property characteristics, improvements
on property and other supporting attributes

DISCUSSION OF BENEFIT

Assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to property conferred by the
capital improvements or services funded with the assessment revenue. This special
benefit to assessed real property must be demonstrated to be over and above any general
benefits. Proposition 218 has clarified that the assessment levied by the Park District must
comply with the following two criteria: (1) assessments must be demonstrated to provide
“special benefit’ to the parcels of real property upon which the assessment is levied, and
not for general benefit to the public and society at large, including nonproperty owners
such as tenants and visitors to district facilities; and (2) no assessment may be imposed on
any parcel of real property which exceeds the reasonable costs of the proportional special
benefit conferred on that particular parcel.

The following benefit categories summarize the types of special benefit to residential,
commercial, industrial and other lots and parcels resulting from the installation,
maintenance and servicing of landscaping improvements to be provided with assessment
proceeds. These categories of special benefit are derived from the statutes passed by the
California Legislature and other studies which describe the types of special benefit
received by property from maintenance and improvements of park and recreational
facilities such as those proposed by the assessment district. These types of special benefit
are summarized below. Specifically, the Legislature at Public Resources Code section
5506 states its intent that land acquisition, improvement and services by a park district

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT s -1C tingG
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT welcanatiEingirodn

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 57



PAGEQ

specifically benefit the properties assessed and the persons paying those assessments in
the following respects.

When the assessments were first formed in 1992, the Engineer's Report and Board
established the following special benefits from the assessments:

1. Enhanced recreational opportunities and expanded access to recreational facilities
for all residents, customers and guests.

2. Protection of open space, views, scenery and other resources values and
environmental benefits enjoyed by residents, employees, customers and guests
and preservation of public assets maintained by the Park District.

3. Increased economic activity.
4. Expanded employment opportunity.

5. Reduced cost of local government in law enforcement, public health care, fire
prevention and natural disaster response.

6. Specific enhancement of property values.
For more discussion see the section entitled Special Benefits below.

The legislative history behind Proposition 218, the adoption by the Legislature of the
Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act and appellate case iaw interpreting the
provisions of Proposition 218 demonstrate the analysis that the Board of Directors of the
Assessment District must undertake in order to determine the amount of special benefit to
assessed real property from the park and recreation facilities and maintenance funded by
assessment revenues, and the limitation that such assessments should not exceed the
costs of the proportional special benefit to each such parcel as required by Proposition
218.

The State of California Legislative Analyst's impartial analysis of Proposition 218 states
that first, local governments must estimate the amount of “special benefit’ landowners
receive, or would receive, from a capital improvement project or service. If such a capital
improvement project or service provides both special benefits to that parcel of real property
and general benefits to members of the public and nonproperty owners such as tenants
and visitors, then the District may charge landowners only for the cost of providing the
special benefit. The District must use general revenue such as property taxes and user
fees to pay the remaining portion of the costs of a project or service. Second, the District
must ensure that no property owner's assessment is greater than the cost to the District to
provide those capital improvements or maintenance services to benefit that particular
owner's property.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT Qﬂt”l‘lc tinaG
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT sti-onautingaraup
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 58



PAGE 10

The District, by means of this Engineer's Report, must estimate the amount of “special
benefit’ landowners receive from the park and recreation facilities and maintenance, repair
and replacement services funded with assessment revenues. If these park and
recreational facilities and maintenance, repair and replacement services provide both
special benefits to property owners within the District and general benefits to nonproperty
owners such as tenants and visitors, then the District must quantify the special benefit
properties received from those park and recreational improvements and maintenance and
repair services, and also quantify the amount of general benefit received by nonproperty
owners such as tenants and visitors from such improvements and maintenance services.

In addition, Section 22573 of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 provides as
follows:

"The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment district may be
apportioned by any formula or method which fairly distributes the net amount among all
assessable lots or parcels in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by each
such lot or parcel from the improvements.”

Five recent court cases construing the assessment provisions of Proposition 218
demonstrate the process that the District must utilize to satisfy Proposition 218's special
benefit and proportionality requirements.

SILICON VALLEY TAXPAYERS ASSOCIATION, INC. V. SANTA CLARA COUNTY OPEN SPACE
AUTHORITY

The first of those cases is the Supreme Court's decision in Silicon Valley Taxpayers
Association v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority (2008) 44 Cal.4th 431. That case
dealt with an open space assessment. The Court emphasized that the Engineer's Report
must demonstrate distinct benefits to particular properties above and beyond those which
the general public using and enjoying the open space receives. The Court also noted that
such special benefits would likely result from factors such as proximity, improved access,
and views.

DAHMS V. DOWNTOWN POMONA PROPERTY AND BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

A similar holding can be found in the Court of Appeals 2009 decision upholding the
business improvement district assessment to fund supplemental municipal services in the
case of Dahms v. Downtown Pomona Property and Business Improvement District (2009)
174 Cal.App.4th 708. In that case, the Court held that services provided to assessed
property including security, street maintenance, and marketing, promotion and special
events for property owners within the Assessment District were all special benefits
conferred on parcels within the Assessment District because they “affected the assessed
property in a way that is particular and distinct from their effect on other parcels and that
real property in general and the public at large do not share.” The Court further held that
under Proposition 218, the cap on the total assessment is the entirety of the reasonable
cost of the special benefit conferred on all parcels by the improvements and services
funded by assessment revenue. The Court also noted that if special benefits themselves

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT L?'{_;Ef
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT Plonsuitingioroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 59



PAGE 11

produce certain general benefits to the public at large, the value of those general benefits
need not be deducted before the caps on the special benefits which the assessments
provide are calculated. Therefore, the Court concluded that security, maintenance, and
special event services specially benefit property within an Assessment District and may be
apportioned according to the cost of providing those services without respect to the cost of
generating general benefits.

BEuTZ v. COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE

The case of Beutz v. County of Riverside (2010) 194 Cal.App.4th 1516 dealt with an
assessment under the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 and concluded that
Proposition 218 permits assessments to fund maintenance, repair and replacement of park
and recreational facilities when supported by an adequate Engineer's Report. The Court
concluded that park and recreational improvements, maintenance, and park and
recreational services confer special benefit on property. However, the Court noted that the
Engineer’s Report in that case did not separate and quantify the degree of special benefit
to properties being assessed for such services, as opposed to the general benefit
conferred on members of the public such as nonproperty owners, tenants and visitors from
such park improvements and services. The Court noted that the nature and extent of
general and special benefits from the park improvements and maintenance services must
be quantified in relationship to each other based on credible solid evidence.

GOLDEN HiLL NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION V. CITY OF SAN DIEGO

In the recent Court of Appeal case of Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San
Diego (2011) 199 Cal.App.4th 416, the city levied an assessment under the Landscaping
and Lighting Act for maintenance services consisting of trash removal, sidewalk sweeping
and washing, landscaping, graffiti abatement and trail and canyon beautification. The
Court implicitly found that such services do provide special benefit to the property being
assessed from those services pursuant to the requirements of Proposition 218. However,
similar to the Beutz decision, which was issued after the creation of the Engineer's Report
for the Golden Hill assessment, the Court found that the Engineer's Report must
specifically quantify the special and general benefits from the assessment.

BONANDER V. TOWN OF TIBURON

In the Court of Appeal case of Bonander v. Town of Tiburon, the town of Tiburon formed
an assessment district to fund the cost of moving overhead utility lines underground. The
engineer identified special benefits of improved aesthetics, increased safety, and improved
service reliability. The degree of benefit to an individual property was dependent on
proximity to existing overhead utility lines. The assessment district was divided into three
zones. The Court found that undergrounding of utility lines did constitute a special benefit
conferred on real property and it is a proper subject for assessment. The Court also found
that it is permissible to conclude that all properties in a district benefit equally from a
certain type of special benefit, and therefore assess all such properties an equal
assessment amount. The Court concluded that just because a particular benefit is
conferred equally upon all properties in an assessment district does not compel the

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT -S ﬁsﬂ"'ﬁ-
|ANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT “LANAULINGSEOUD

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 60



PaGE12

conclusion that such benefit is not tied to particular parcels of property. Finally, the Court
found that Proposition 218 requires that the proportional special benefit derived by each
parcel shall be determined depending on the entirety of the capital cost of a public
improvement, or its maintenance and operation expenses, and not just as costs incurred in
each zone. The Court noted that Proposition 218 requires the amount of the assessment
to be proportional to the benefits conferred on the property, not the costs incurred.

COMPLIANCE WITH CURRENT LAW

This Engineer's Report, and the process used to establish these proposed assessments
are consistent with the case law described above and with the requirements of Articles XIII
C and XIII D of the California Constitution based on the following factors:

1. The fact that the park and recreational facilities and maintenance, repair and
replacement services for those improvements have some general benefit to the
public at large including non-property owners, tenants and visitors, does not mean
that they do not also have a special benefit to property owners whose parcels are
assessed. While many government facilities and services may provide public
benefits, when special benefits can be identified, they may be separated from
general public benefits and their costs imposed as assessments on the properties
to which those special benefits accrue.

2. This Engineer's Report is consistent with Beutz, Dahms and Greater Golden Hill
cases because the Improvements will directly benefit property in the Assessment
District and the general benefits have been explicitly calculated and quantified and
excluded from the Assessments. The fact that the park and recreational facilities
and maintenance repair replacement services have some general benefit to the
public at large does not mean that they do not also have special benefit to
property owners whose parcels are assessed.

3. The Engineer's Report is also consistent with the Bonander decision because the
Assessments have been apportioned based on the entirety of the capital cost of
the Improvements and based on proportional special benefit to each property in
each zone.

SPECIAL BENEFITS

This Engineer's Report, in the following sections, identifies the special benefits for the
various types of properties within the Assessment District which are proposed to be
assessed. This Report also quantifies the special and general benefits from the
assessments. A description of the types of special benefits conferred on real properties
within the District by the park and recreational facilities and maintenance funded with
assessment revenues follows.

These special benefit factors are derived from Legislative findings and intent established in
statute before the adoption of Proposition 218 as specified bove, and as such, must be
harmonized with the provisions of Proposition 218 in implementing the assessments.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT o c' c HinaG
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT BCORRRgSroup
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 61



PAGE 13

The applicable provisions of Proposition 218 regarding assessments were described in the
Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association decision described above, which provides specific
guidance that parks and recreational areas may confer the following special benefits:

= Proximity to recreational and open space
= Expanded or improved access to recreational and open space
= Views of recreational and open space

The Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association decision also clarifies that a special benefit is a
service or improvement that provides a direct advantage to a parcel and that indirect or
derivative advantages resulting from the overall public benefits from a service or
improvement are general benefits. This decision also provides specific guidance that park
improvements constitute a direct advantage and special benefit to property that is
proximate to a park or open space, the improvement of which is funded by an assessment:

the characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel
receives a direct advantage from the improvement (e.g. proximity to a
park) or receives an indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the
overall public benefits of the improvement (e.g. general enhancement of
the district's property values).

In summary, from the case law interpreting Proposition 218 requirements regarding such
assessments, the District's assessments fund specific park and recreation improvements,
maintenance and servicing costs that can be described by additional special benefit
categories as summarized as follows:

= Proximity to improved parks and recreational facilities.

= Access to improved parks, open space and recreational areas.
= |mproved views.

= Enhanced recreational opportunities

The grounds for validity of the foregoing special benefit categories are supported by the
following evidence:

BENEFIT FACTORS

ENHANCED RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES AND EXPANDED ACCESS TO RECREATIONAL AREAS
FOR ALL PROPERTY OWNERS, RESIDENTS, EMPLOYEES AND CUSTOMERS THROUGHOUT THE
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT.

Residential properties specifically benefit from the enhanced recreational opportunities
provided by the Improvements made throughout the four planning quadrants of the
Assessment District. These include, among others, new parks and open spaces, areas for

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT !"""‘“G?é_.-ﬂ IG
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT St-tConsultingGroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 62



PAGE 14

nature based recreational activities, and higher levels of maintenance of parks, recreation
areas, and trails than would be provided in absence of the assessment.

In "Trends: Parks, Practice and Program” by Love, L. and Crompton, J. (1993) the authors
found that:

“The provision of parks and recreation services play an influential role in a
community's economic development efforts. When companies choose fo
set up business or relocate, the availability of recreation, parks and open
space is high on the priority list for site selection. Recreation and parks
have a significant influence on people's preferred living locations. &

The "Outdoor Recreation Coalition of America’s 1993 State of the Industry Report" found
that:
"From rock climbing to biking to backpacking, the outdoor recreation
industry - worth at least $132 billion annually to the U.S. economy-- is
growing by leaps and bounds. The biggest and most noticeable effect has
been on public lands: Visits to parks and other spaces increased by well
over 100 million in the last decade just as funding dwindled."

All properties within the assessment district will specially benefit from the assessments that
will be used to expand, protect and maintain public recreational lands, parks, open space
areas, trails and other public resources.

INCREASED ECONOMIC ACTIVITY.

The Assessment District creates expanded and improved parks and recreation areas that
are also better maintained. This specifically increases the desirability of the area and
enhances recreational and wildlife education opportunities, which, in tumn, leads to
expanded use. Expanded use and activities facilitated by new and existing parks and open
space areas brings greater numbers of visitors into the area who can utilize the services of
businesses within the Assessment Districts. The visitors to the Park District's open space
will be more likely to shop and eat locally. Increased use leads to increased economic
activity in the area, which is a special benefit ultimately to residential, commercial,
industrial and institutional property located within the assessment district.

“California's public parks generate more than $35 million annually from
businesses for local events. Visitors to public parks and outdoor
recreation areas support approximately 235000 jobs in California’s

economy."
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT —— f“Té-_f
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SCibonsutingGroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 63



PAGE 15

"Numerous studies demonstrate that linear parks can increase property
values, which can in furn increase local tax revenues. Spending by
residents on greenway-related activities helps support recreation-oriented
businesses and employment, as well as other businesses that are
patronized by greenway users. Greenways often provide new business
opportunities and locations for commercial activities like bed and breakfast
establishments, and bike and canoe rental shops. Greenways are often
major tourist attractions which generate expenditures on lodging, food,
and recreation-oriented services. Finally, greenways can reduce public
expenditures by lowering the costs associated with flooding and other
natural hazards.™

“Although the chief reason for providing outdoor recreation is the broad
social and individual benefits it produces, it also brings about desirable
economic effects. Its provision enhances community values by creating a
better place to live and increasing land values. In some underdeveloped
areas, it can be a mainstay of the local economy. And it is a basis for big
business as the millions and millions of people seeking the outdoors
generate an estimated $20 billion a year market for goods and services.™

"People are spending increasing amounts of money on recreation. In
California people spent an average of 12 percent of their total personal
consumption on recreation and leisure, which was the third largest
industry in the state. Also, many recreational activities that can be pursued
in locally protected areas (such as biking, hiking, bird-watching, cross
country skiing, and canoeing) entail equipment costs that support local
businesses, providing new jobs and tax revenue.”

EXPANDED EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.

Improved recreational areas and public resources foster business growth, which in turn
creates additional employment opportunities for Assessment District residents. In addition,
the assessments expand local employment opportunities by funding new projects that may
create the need for additional construction or maintenance jobs.

Improved and well-maintained parks, open space and recreational areas also provide
business properties with an opportunity to attract and keep employees due to the benefits
provided by these areas.

Non-residential properties also will specifically benefit from the maintenance and
improvement of parks, recreation areas and open space areas in many ways. Employees
will have additional wildlife and recreation areas to utilize for exercise, recreational
activities, picnics, company gatherings or other uses. These Improvements, therefore,
enhance an employer's ability to attract and keep quality employees. The benefits to
employers ultimately flow to the property because better employees improve the business

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 5"{3[ 5 r——
LANDSGAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT iConsauitingGroup
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 64



PAGE 16

prospects for companies and enhanced economic conditions specially benefit the property
- by making it more valuable.

The California Park and Recreation Society, in 1997 found that:

“Recreation and park amenities are central components in establishing the
quality of life in a community, a business’ main resource is their
employees for whom quality of life is an important issue. The availability
and attractiveness of local parks and programs influences some
companies relocation decisions and the presence of a park encourages
real estate development around it."”

ENHANCED PROTECTION OF PROPERTY THROUGH REDUCTION OF THE RISK OF FIRE AND REDUCED
COST OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT IN LAW ENFORCEMENT, PUBLIC HEALTH CARE AND NATURAL
DISASTER RESPONSE.

The assessment also benefits properties in the Assessment District by funding
maintenance services and park safety and security patrols that preserve the level of
special benefits from park and open space in the Assessment District and protect the
public’s parks, recreational facilities and open space resources by reducing the risk of
damage or harm and maintaining public access to these important public resources.

Improved and well-maintained recreational areas and open space lands can also serve to
improve public safety and reduce the cost to local government by providing a healthy
alternative for youth and adult activities. Studies have shown that adequate park and
recreation areas and recreation programs help to reduce crime and vandalism.

“Natural parks and open space require few public services - no roads, no
schools, no sewage, no solid waste disposal, no water, and minimal fire
and police protection.™

"Exercise derived from recreational activities lessens health related
problems and subsequent health care costs. Every year, premature
deaths cost American companies an estimated 132 million lost work days
at a price tag of $25 billion. Finding and training replacements costs
industry more than $700 million each year. In addition, American
businesses lose an estimated $3 billion every year because of employee
health problems.™

High quality recreational and open space areas allow residents and employees in the
Assessment District to enjoy activities close to home, thereby not spending time driving to
other areas. Moreover, parks, open space and trails in these lands promote healthy
activities that help to reduce the cost of health care. Such cost reduction frees public funds
for other services that benefit properties.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT """S rm
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT GRS S rotD

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 65



PAGE 17

All of these factors ultimately specially benefit property within the Assessment District by
specifically reducing the risk of damage to property, and specifically making the property
within the assessment district more usable and desirable and ultimately, more valuable.

SPECIFIC ENHANCEMENT OF PROPERTY VALUES DUE TO ENHANCED QUALITY OF LIFE AND
DESIRABILITY OF THE AREA.

The assessments will provide funding to maintain, improve and preserve parks,
recreational facilities and open space areas that otherwise may not be preserved for the
public benefit. Additional development, and the congestion it causes, reduces the
desirability of property within the Assessment District. Therefore, improved open space
areas and public wildlife areas enhance the overall quality of life and desirability of
properties within the Assessment District. This is a special benefit to residential,
commercial, industrial and other properties.

The Presidents Commission on American's Outdoors (1987) found natural
beauty was the single most important factor in deciding tourist
destination. 10

“The importance of quality-of-life in business location decisions has been
repeatedly verified in the literature. (Boyle, 1988; Bramlage, 1988, Cam &
Rabianski, 1991; Conway, 1985; Epping, 1986; Sarvis, 1989; Tosh, et.al.,
1988)"11

“Home buyers over age 55 considering a move were surveyed about the amenities that
‘Would seriously influence them in selecting a new community' ™2 the following results

were found:
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT "Q cie tinaG
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT Sll-anauitingsaroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 66



PAGE 18

Amenity Group % Seeking Amenity  Rank on List
Walking and jogging trails 55+ 52 1
Walking and jogging trails 55+ >$75k per year 65
Qutdoor spaces 55+ 51 i

55+, moving to
Outdoor spaces (park) s 55
Open Spaces b5+ 46 4

Extensive park and open space, nature lands and wildlife areas are one of the most
important public resources and features for property owners in the Assessment District.
Therefore, the acquisition and preservation of park and open space properties is a very
important feature for property owners in the Assessment District that enhances the quality
of life and desirability of property located in the Assessment District.

In addition, the assessments provide funding to significantly expand, improve and maintain
the public parks, open space lands, recreational areas, wildlife and nature habitats, wildlife
corridors and other public resources. The Improvements funded by the assessments also
specifically benefit properties by limiting urban sprawl and large lot development that
negatively impacts existing improved properties in the Assessment Districts. In tumn,
property values are specifically enhanced by the availability of expanded, improved, safe,
preserved and maintained parks and open space lands within a community. Values of
commercial and industrial property increase based on these same elements and the
enhanced economic activity derived from the greater quantity and quality of public
resources in the area.

The correlation between enhanced property values and expanded and well-maintained
open space areas and recreational areas has been documented. The United States
Department of the Interior, National Park Service determined that:

“An investment in parks and recreation helps reduce pollution and noise,
makes communities more livable, and increases property value. Parks
and recreation stimulate business and generate tax revenues. Parks and
recreation help conserve land, energy and resources. Public recreation
benefits all employers by providing continuing opportunities to maintain a
level of fitness throughout one’s working life, and through helping
individuals cope with the stress of a fast-paced and demanding life.”’?

Additionally, the National Recreation and Park Association, in June 1985, stated:

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT %ﬂfii?c—--l'_c;-—-
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ) BraRnabroUD

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 67



PAGE 19

“The recreation value is realized as a rise in the value of land and other
property in or near the recreation area, and is of both private interest to
the landowner and others, holding an economic stake in the area, and of
public interest to the taxpayers, who have a stake in a maximum of total
assessed values.”*

Moreover, the Supreme Court of Califomia and the United States Supreme Court have
found that improved and well-maintained park facilities confer special benefits to property
by enhancing property values. In Knox v. City of Orland,4 Cal.4th 132, 143 (1993) the
Supreme Court of California found that:

“Plaintiff's basic argument that a special assessment is never appropriate
to fund park improvements is unconvincing.  Significantly, plaintiff's
attempt to differentiate between street lights, sewers, sidewalks and flood
control as constituting proper subjects for special assessment, and public
parks as matters of such a general nature as fo not justify a special
assessment, is virtually identical to an argument rejected nearly a century
ago by the United States Supreme Court in Wilson v. Lambert.">

In Wilson v. Lambert (1898) the United States Supreme Court stated:

“The residents and property holders in the District of Columbia must be
regarded as coming within the class of beneficiaries; and, so far from
being injured by the declaration that the park shall also have national
character, it is apparent that thereby the welfare of the inhabitants of the
Assessment District will be promoted. Whatever tends to increase the
attractiveness of the City of Washington, as a place of permanent or
temporary residence, will operate to enhance the value of private property
situated therein or adjacent thereto.""¢

In addition, professional property appraisers and instructional books on the subject find
that well-maintained public recreational grounds and areas enhance property values in a
community. Enhancement value is the tendency of open space to enhance the property
value of adjacent properties. It is also explicitly recognized by federal income tax law:.

U.S. Treasury regulation Sec. 14(h)(3)(i) requires that the valuation of a
conservation easement take into account (i.e., be offset by) any resulting
increase in the value of other property owned by the donor of the
easement or a related person. Section 14(h)(4) sites as an example a
landowner who owns 10 one-acre lots and donates an easement over
eight of them: 'By perpetually restricting development on this portion of the
land, (the landowner) has ensured that the two remaining acres will
always be bordered by parkland, thereby increasing their fair market

The special benefits from the Improvements are further detailed below:

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT o1 (:iE--}'“lC;—
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT -iConsultingGroup
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 68



PaGe 20

PROXIMITY TO IMPROVED PARKS AND RECREATIONAL FACILITIES, AND ZONES OF BENEFIT

According to the industry-standard guidelines established by the National Park and
Recreation Association (the “NPRA"), neighborhood parks in urban areas have a service
area radius of generally one-half mile and community parks have a service area radius of
approximately two miles. Sacramento County also provides similar to slightly larger park
service area radii guidelines. The service radii for neighborhood parks and neighborhood
green spaces were specifically established to give all properties within this service radii
close proximity and easy walking access to such public land areas. Since proximate and
accessible parks serve as an extension of the usable land area for property in the service
radii and since the service radii was specifically designed to provide close proximity and
access, the parcels within this service area clearly receive a direct advantage and special
benefit from the Improvements - and this advantage is not received by other properties or
the public at large.

An analysis of the service radii for the Improvements finds that all properties in the
Assessment District enjoy the distinct and direct advantage of being close and proximate
to one or often multiple parks within the Assessment District, and lie within the
recommended service radius for such facilities. The benefiting properties in the
Assessment District therefore uniquely and specially benefit from the Improvements.

Only the specific properties within close proximity to the Improvements are included in the
Assessment District. All properties within each of the four planning quadrants of the
Assessment District enjoys unique and valuable proximity and access to the Improvements
within the established service radii, discussed above, that the public at large and property
outside the Assessment District do not share.

The Board has determined that the location, nature and function of the proposed projects
combine to provide substantially equal benefit to all parcels of real property within a
particular land use category, regardiess of the location of that property within the
boundaries of the Assessment District.

The reasons for this determination are as follows:

1. The capital development plan provides for major new and/or expanded and
renovated neighborhood park and recreational facilities in each of the four
planning quadrants utilized by the Park District, disbursed equally throughout
the geographic area comprising the proposed Assessment District. The total
area served by the Park District is approximately sixteen square miles. Each
of these planning quadrants contains an average area of approximately four
square miles. The maximum distance from a parcel of real property to a new
or expanded neighborhood park and recreational facility in the northwest
quadrant is 1.5 miles. In the northeast quadrant, the distance is approximately
1.6 miles. The distance is 1.5 in the southwest quadrant and 1 mile in the
southeast quadrant. Therefore, all parcels of real property within the proposed

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT “P?E__-lt'ﬂcs-
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT shab-anauiing L odp
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 69



PAGE 21

Assessment District are located within an average maximum one and one-half
mile radius from a new or expanded neighborhood park and recreational
facility constructed, maintained and improved with assessment proceeds.

2. The most significant of these projects is a fourteen-acre community park with
a 12,000 square foot community center with pool, located in the geographic
center of the Assessment District and easily accessible to all residents of the
District. All parcels of real property within the proposed Assessment District
are located within a two and one-half mile radius of the proposed community
center, well within the Sacramento County planning guidelines for such
community centers.

The boundaries of the Assessment District have been carefully drawn to include the
properties in the Orangevale Recreation and Park District that are proximate to the
proposed Improvements and that would materially benefit from the Improvements. The
Assessment District is coterminous with the District boundaries. As the properties in the
District have developed over time, regional and neighborhood parks have been
strategically located throughout the community as it has been built out. Park size and
location have been carefully incorporated into the design of the community, consistent with
the NPRA and Sacramento County park planning guidelines. Now, with a mature
community, all parcels in the District are located in close proximity to at least one park. It
therefore is appropriate to provide a District-wide Assessment District because all parcels
benefit similarly.

In the Assessment District, the advantage that each parcel receives from the
Improvements is direct, and the boundaries are narrowly drawn to include only parcels that
benefit from the Assessment. Since all parcels in the Assessment District have good
access, additional proximity is not considered to be a factor in determining benefit within
the Assessment District. Therefore, zones of benefit are not justified or needed within the
Assessment District.

ACCESS TO IMPROVED PARKS, OPEN SPACE AND RECREATIONAL AREAS

Since all of the parcels within the Assessment District enjoy close access to the
Improvements, they directly benefit from the unique close access to improved parks, open
space and recreation areas that are provided by the Assessments. This is a direct
advantage and special benefit to property in the Assessment District.

IMPROVED VIEWS

The Park District, by maintaining the landscaping at its park, recreation and open space
facilities provides improved views to properties in the Assessment District. The properties
in the Assessment District enjoy close and unique proximity, access and therefore views of
the Improvements; therefore, the improved and protected views provided by the
Assessments are another direct and tangible advantage that is uniquely conferred upon
property in the Assessment District.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT "'"8 ﬁ-é“—-ﬁ“
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT Hohaitingroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 70



PAGE 22

GENERAL VERSUS SPECIAL BENEFIT

Article XIIIC of the California Constitution requires any local agency proposing to increase
or impose a benefit assessment to “separate the general benefits from the special benefits
conferred on a parcel.” The rationale for separating special and general benefits is to
ensure that property owners subject to the benefit assessment are not paying for general
benefits. The assessment can fund special benefits but cannot fund general benefits.
Accordingly, a separate estimate of the special and general benefit is given in this section.

In other words:

Total _  General Special
Benefit —  Benefit Benefit

There is no widely-accepted or statutory formula for general benefit. General benefits are
benefits from improvements or services that are not special in nature, are not “particular
and distinct” and are not “over and above” benefits received by other properties. The SVTA
decision provides some clarification by indicating that general benefits provide “an indirect,
derivative advantage” and are not necessarily proximate to the improvements.

In this report, the general benefit is conservatively estimated and described, and then
budgeted so that it is funded by sources other than the assessment.

The starting point for evaluating general and special benefits is the current, baseline level
of service. The baseline level of service is defined as the extent and level of park and
recreation facilities that would exist in absence of the assessments. The assessment funds
Improvements “over and above” this general, baseline level and the general benefits
estimated in this section are over and above the baseline.

A formula to estimate the general benefit is listed below:

Benefit to Real Benefit to Real Property Benefitto
General _ Property Outside Inside the Assessment . o L
Benefit ~  the Assessment District that is Indirect L
District and Derivative BLegE

Special benefit, on the other hand, is defined in the state constitution as “a particular and
distinct benefit over and above general benefits conferred on real property located in the
district or to the public at large.” The SVTA decision indicates that a special benefit is
conferred to a property if it ‘receives a direct advantage from the improvement (e.g.,
proximity to a park).” In this assessment, as noted, properties in the Assessment District
have close and unique proximity, views and access to the Improvements and uniquely
improved desirability from the Improvements and other properties and the public at large

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT —S C‘TE--I'_I;E-
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT -ionsuitinglaroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 71



PAGE 23

do not receive significant benefits because they do not have proximity, access or views of
the Improvements. Therefore, the overwhelming proportion of the benefits conferred to
property is special, and is only minimally received by property outside the Assessment
District or the public at large.

In the 2009 Dahms case, the court upheld an assessment that was 100% special benefit
on the rationale that the services funded by the assessments were directly provided within
the assessment district. It is also important to note that the improvements and services
funded by the assessments in Pomona are similar to the improvements and services
funded by the Assessments described in this Engineer's Report and the Court found these
improvements and services to be 100% special benefit. Also similar to the assessments in
Pomona, the Assessments described in this Engineer's Report fund improvements and
services directly provided within the Assessment District and every benefiting property in
the Assessment District enjoys proximity and access to the Improvements. Therefore,
Dahms establishes a basis for minimal or zero general benefits from the Assessments.
However, in this Report, the general benefit is more conservatively estimated and
described, and then budgeted so that it is funded by sources other than the Assessment.

CALCULATING GENERAL BENEFIT
In this section, the general benefit is conservatively quantified.

BENEFIT TO PROPERTY QUTSIDE THE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

Properties within the Assessment District receive almost all of the special benefits from the
Improvements because properties in the Assessment District enjoy unique close proximity
and access to the Improvements that is not enjoyed by other properties or the public at
large. However, certain properties within the proximity/access radius of the Improvements,
but outside of the boundaries of the Assessment District, may receive some benefit from
the Improvements. Since this benefit is conferred to properties outside the Assessment
District boundaries, it contributes to the overall general benefit calculation and will not be
funded by the Assessments.

The properties outside the Assessment District and within the proximity radii for
neighborhood or community parks in the Assessment District may receive some benefits
from the Improvements. Since these properties are not assessed for their benefits because
they are outside of the area that can be assessed by the District, this is form of general
benefit to the public at large and other property. A 50% reduction factor is applied to these
properties because they are all geographically on only one side of the Improvements and
are over twice the average distance from the Improvements compared to properties in the
Assessment District.

The general benefit to property outside of the Assessment District is calculated as follows
with the parcel and data analysis performed by SCI Consulting Group.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT - C'if:—-ﬁ-
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT stilonsuitinglaroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 72



PAGE 24

Assumptions:

11,563 parcels outside the district but within either 0.5 miles of a neighborhood
park or 2.0 miles of a community park within the Assessment District

11, 816 parcels in the Assessment District

50% relative benefit compared to property within the Assessment district

Calculation

General Benefit to Property Outside the Improvement District =

(11,563/(11,563+11,816))*.5 =24.7%

Although it can reasonably be argued that Improvements inside, but near the Park District
boundaries are offset by similar park and recreational improvements provided outside, but
near the Park District's boundaries, we use the more conservative approach of finding that

24.7% of the Improvements may be of general benefit to property outside the Assessment
District.

BENEFIT TO PROPERTY WITHIN THE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

The ‘“indirect and derivative’ benefit to property within the Assessment District is
particularly difficult to calculate. A solid argument can be presented that all benefit within
the Assessment District is special, because the Improvements are clearly “over and above”
and “particular and distinct’” when compared with the baseline level of service and the
unique proximity, access and views of the Improvements enjoyed by benefiting properties
in the Assessment District.

Nevertheless, the SVTA decision indicates there may be general benefit “conferred on real
property located in the district’” A measure of the general benefits to property within the
Assessment area is the percentage of land area within the Assessment District that is
publicly owned and used for regional purposes such as major roads, rail lines and other
regional facilities because such properties, while physically within the Assessment District,
are used for regional purposes and could provide indirect benefits to the public at large.
Approximately 2.5% of the land area in the Assessment District is used for such regional
purposes, so this is a measure of the general benefits to property within the Assessment
District.

BENEFIT TO THE PUBLIC AT LARGE

In Beutz, the Court opined that general benefits from parks and recreation facilities could
be quantified by measuring the use of parks and recreation facilities by people who do not
live within the assessment boundaries. This Report uses this general benefit measure as
the third component of our overall general benefit quantification. Therefore, the general
benefit to the public at large can be estimated by the proportionate amount of time that the
Park District's parks and recreational facilities are used and enjoyed by individuals who are

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT T e ———
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT iConsultingGroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 73



PAGE 25

not residents, employees, customers or property owners in the Park District!. SCI has
conducted numerous surveys of similar parks and recreation districts in the Sacramento
area and other areas in California and has determined that use by the public at large is
nearly always less than 20%. Moreover, a second quantification of benefits to the public at
large is based on solid, credible evidence consisting of District records which document
the percentage of participants in the District's recreation programs conducted within the
District's park and recreational facilities who reside within the District and the percentage
of those who utilize the District's recreational programs and services and reside outside of
the District. The percentage of participants in the District's recreation programs who do
not reside within the Assessment District provides another estimate of the percentage of
general benefit to the public at large. This analysis found that 20% of recreation program
participants do not reside in the District. Based on this data and analysis, we conclude that
the general benefits to the public at large equal 20%.

ToTAL GENERAL BENEFITS

Using a sum of these three measures of general benefit, we find that approximately 47.2%
of the benefits conferred by the Improvements may be general in nature and should be
funded by sources other than the assessment.

General Benefit Calculation

24.7% (Outside the Assessment District)
+ 2.5% (Property within the Assessment District)
+ 20.0% (Public at Large)

=47.2% (Total General Benefit)

Although this analysis finds that 47.2% of the assessment may provide general benefits,
the Assessment Engineer establishes a requirement for a minimum contribution from
sources other than the assessments of 50.0%. This minimum contribution above the
measure of general benefits will serve to provide additional coverage for any other
possible general benefits.

The Assessment District's total budget for installation, maintenance and servicing of the
Improvements is $1,339,780. Of this total budget amount, the District and other partner
agencies and contributors will contribute $766,621 from sources other than the

1 . When District facilities are used by those individuals, the facilities are not providing benefit to
property within the Park District. Use under these circumstances is a measure of general benefit. For
example, a non-resident who is drawn to utilize the Park District facilities and shops at local businesses
while in the area would provide special benefit to business properties as a result of his or her use of the
Improvements. Conversely, one who uses Park District facilities but does not reside, work, shop or own
property within the Park District boundaries does not provide special benefits to any property and is
considered to be a measure of the general benefits.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT -Q{:""'"'ﬂg © HinaG '
|LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ke onsultingtaroup
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 74



PAGE 26

assessments. This contribution equates to approximately 57.2% of the total budget for
installation, maintenance and servicing of the park and recreational improvements and
constitutes more than the measure of 50.0% general benefits from the Improvements.

BENEFIT FINDING

As extensively described in this Report, the assessment funds will be used to improve,
maintain and preserve a well distributed set of important local resource lands and
improvements in the Assessment District. Any general benefits from the Improvements to
the public at large or property in the Assessment District are more than offset by the
District's contributions, which are well above the cost of the Improvements providing
special benefits to property in the Assessment District. Therefore, this Engineer's Report
finds that the Improvements are a significant, tangible benefit that should reasonably and
rationally confer more special benefit to properties in the Orangevale Recreation and Park
District than the assessment rate of $42.00 per benefit unit.

METHOD OF ASSESSMENT

The second step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit
for each property. This process involves determining the relative benefit received by each
property in relation to a single family home, or, in other words, on the basis of Single
Family Equivalents (SFE). This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute
assessments in proportion to estimated special benefit and is generally recognized as
providing the basis for a fair and appropriate distribution of assessments. For the purposes
of this Engineer's Report, all properties are designated a SFE value, which is each
property’s relative benefit in relation to a single family home on one parcel. In this case, the
"henchmark" property is the single family detached dwelling which is one Single Family
Equivalent or one SFE.

ASSESSMENT APPORTIONMENT

To estimate the relative benefit to each land use class from the proposed improvements, a
point system was created prior to Proposition 218 utilizing the single family residential
parcel as the "benchmark property”. A Benefit Assessment Matrix, illustrating relative
scoring of points by land use class and the grandfathered benefit categories and the total
points for each land use class, is set forth at the Benefit Assessment Matrix Section of this
Report, and indicates the point scoring and totals for each land use class.

The Board has determined that the location, nature and function of the proposed projects
combine to provide substantially equal benefit to all parcels of real property within a
particular land use category, regardless of the location of that property within the
boundaries of the assessment district.

The following is a brief description of the resulting assignment of points for each land use

class:
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT ""'3 i‘m
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ~AaNSUIEIESEOUE

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 75



PaGe 27

LAND USE CLASSES
Land Use Class A: Single Family Residential /Condominium Parcels

This is the "benchmark property" for determining benefit, which will be conferred on each
parcel by the proposed projects to be constructed with assessment proceeds. A base
rating of five (5) points has been assigned for single family residential parcels with respect
to the following benefits: enhanced recreation opportunities Benefit Category 1);
preservation of open space, scenery and cultural assets Benefit Category 2); expanded
employment opportunities (Benefit Category 4); reduced costs of local government for law
enforcement and public healthcare (Benefit Category 5); and increased property values
Benefit Category 6). No points were assigned for Category 3 regarding economic activity
as residential properties were viewed as not receiving any such benefit. Benefit Category &
describes a direct economic benefit to commercial and industrial properties, and is not
applicable to single family residential parcels. Therefore, each single-family residential
parcel was assigned a point total of twenty-five (25) points.

Condominium parcels were judged to benefit the same as single family residential parcels
in these benefit categories, and therefore the same point total of twenty-five (25) points
was assigned to condominium parcels and they are included as part of the single family
residential land use class. Condominium parcels will be assessed on a per unit basis since
the ownership of condominium units is carried on the Sacramento County Assessor's
records on a per unit basis.

Land Use Class B: Multi-Residential and Apartment Parcels

Multi-residential and apartment parcels are reported on the Sacramento County Assessor's
records by the number of multi-family dwelling units on each parcel. Each multi-family
dwelling unit was judged to benefit the same from the proposed improvements as will a
single family residential parce!l with respect to enhanced recreational opportunities (Benefit
Category 1), preservation of open space, scenery and cultural assets (Benefit Category 2),
expanded employment opportunities (Benefit Category 4), and increased property values
(Benefit Category 6). However, unlike single family residential/condominium parcels, multi-
residential and apartment parcels were judged to receive some benefit in the form of
increased economic activity resulting in the aftraction of customers, most notably
prospective tenants, which could be expected to occur as a result of expanded and
improved park and recreational facilies available for use by prospective tenants.
Therefore, a point total of two (2) was assigned to multi-residential and apartment parcels
in Benefit Category 3. With respect to Benefit Category 5, reduced costs of local
government for law enforcement and public healthcare, multi-residential and apartment
parcels were judged to benefit somewhat less than the single  family
residential/condominium parcels because some multi-residential units provide their own

private security services.
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT "'S f“‘m
|LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT DS INECOME

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 76



PAGE 28

Therefore, three (3) points were assigned in Benefit Category 5 for multi-residential and
apartment parcels. Each multi-residential or apartment unit was therefore assigned a total
of twenty-five (25) points.

Land Use Class C: Mobile Home Residential Parcels

Mobile home residential parcels were judged to benefit essentially the same as single-
family residential/condominium parcels and multi -residential and apartment parcels in all
benefit categories. A base rating of three (3) points has been assigned for each benefit
category. Therefore, each such parcel is assigned a total of fifteen (15) points.

Land Use Class D: Commercial Property

The commercial land use class has been broken down into various subcategories
consisting of retail stores, service stations, restaurants, hotel/motel, theaters, recreation,
private golf course/country club, shopping center, other commercial/service sector and
other commercial/product sector.

Commercial parcels are judged to benefit substantially less than do single family
residential/condominium parcels with respect to the enhanced recreational opportunities
afforded by the proposed improvements (Benefit Category 1). Therefore, two (2) points
were assigned to the commercial land use class in that category. Commercial properties
were also perceived to benefit less than single family residential/condominium parcels with
respect to the benefit of preservation of open space, scenery and cultural assets (Benefit
Category 2) and only one (1) point was assigned to the commercial land use category in
this Benefit Category 2. On the other hand, commercial properties will benefit from
construction and maintenance of the proposed improvements in terms of the increased
economic activity and the attraction of customers and clients that will result benefit
Category 3) and thus five (5) points were assigned to the commercial land use category in
this Benefit Category 3, whereas single family residential/condominium parcels received
zero points in this Benefit Category 3. In Benefit Category 4 regarding expanded
employment opportunities, commercial properties are also assigned five (5) points upon
the rationale that the increased business activity generated by construction of new park
and recreational facilities and expanded recreational programs will not only make the
community a better place to live, but it will also make it a better place to work, making it
easier for a local business to attract and keep quality employees.

Commercial properties were judged to benefit somewhat less (4 points) than single family
residential/condominium parcels with respect to the benefit of reduced cost of local
government for law enforcement or public healthcare, primarily because most commercial
parcels within the assessment district are not located in close proximity to District facilities -
and therefore the effects of the District's expanded security program will benefit
commercial property somewhat less than residential properties.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT ot ng'ﬁ
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT BGiConauitinglaroun

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 77



PAGE 29

With respect to the benefit of increased property value (Benefit Category 6) commercial
properties were perceived to benefit to the same extent, although in a slightly different
way, than single family residential parcels and five (5) points were assigned to the
commercial land use category in Benefit Category 6. Values of commercial properties
increase based on (a) increased economic and business activity generated by the
construction of the proposed park and recreational improvements; and (b) the increased
volume of business generated by expanded recreational activities and special events
facilitated by such new and refurbished facilities which creates a greater number of users
of the facilities who will also utilize the services of businesses within the Assessment
District boundaries.

These considerations lead to a point total of twenty-two (22) points for the commercial land
use class which is slightly less than the twenty-five (25) points assigned to the single family
residential/condominium class. This reflects the fact that commercial properties are judged
to benefit less than residential properties from the construction of the proposed
improvements once all of the potential benefits to real property from the proposed
improvements are evaluated.

Land Use Category E: Industrial and Mini Storage Parcels

Industrial and mini storage parcels have been judged to benefit less than will commercial
properties from the construction of the proposed improvements. Such parcels only benefit
incidentally from the enhanced recreational opportunities benefit Category 1) and
preservation of open space, scenery and cultural assets (Benefit Category 2). Therefore,
such parcels have been assigned a rating of one (1) point in each of those benefit
categories. However, industrial and mini storage parcels were assigned a point rating of
three (3) in Benefit Category 3, the benefit of increased economic activity, since the
construction of the proposed improvements will benefit some local industries in the areas
of construction supplies, hardware, etc. Such parcels will probably benefit less than retail
commercial parcels from the increased economic activity generated by greater numbers of
users of the proposed park and recreational improvements to be constructed. With respect
to expanded employment opportunity Benefit Category 4), a rating of one (1) point was
assigned since mini storage employment opportunities are negligible and industrial
employment opportunities are driven by market factors unrelated to usage by people who
also utilize the park and recreational improvements and the expanded recreation
opportunities afforded by those facilities. Industrial parcels have been assigned a rating of
two (2) in Benefit Category 6 regarding increased property value which is less than the five
(5) points assigned in this category to commercial property because industrial parcels are
not judged to increase in value as a result of construction of the proposed improvements to
the same extent as will commercial properties. Industrial properties will not experience
increased economic activity generated by users of the proposed facilites as will
commercial properties, and therefore the value of such industrial parcels will be affected to
a smaller degree than will the value of commercial parcels. With respect to the reduced
cost of local government for law enforcement and public healthcare (Benefit Category 5),
industrial and mini storage parcels were only assigned a rating of two (2), less than all

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT q"'{ -{é—'—!_c;'—_-
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SulonsulingGrous

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 78



PAGE 30

other land use classes. Such parcels are perceived to benefit less in this area since many
such parcel owners provide their own security and because industrial and mini storage
uses are perceived to generate less law enforcement activity and cost than do commercial
properties, particularly retail properties. On the other hand, industrial parcels should benefit
from reduced costs of public healthcare in the same way and to the same general extent
as will commercial properties. Therefore, a rating of two (2) points was assigned to
industrial/mini storage uses in this Benefit Category 5.

The total point score for industrial/mini storage parcels is ten (10) points per assessable
unit, reflecting the fact that these parcels will benefit less from the proposed improvements
than will the other land use classes.

Land Use Class F: Exempt Parcels

This land use class includes all parcels which are classified as exempt from real property
tax by the Sacramento County Tax Assessor and includes all parcels classified as exempt
from this type of assessment by the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972. Therefore,
vacant properties will not be assessed until they are put to some use. At the time that they
are put to use, they will be assessed based on the land use category into which the vacant
property falls.

Properties owned by governmental entities such as the federal government, State
government, and other special districts, such as water districts, school districts, and fire
districts, also will not be assessed. It has been determined that these parcels are not the
type of property for which the park and recreational facilities funded with assessment
proceeds were planned, designed, constructed, operated and maintained. The Board has
determined that these publicly owned properties do not receive the same special benefits
from the construction of these facilities as do the other land use classes described above.
In addition public schools have entered into joint use agreements with the District which
provide economic value to the District which offsets the cost of any incidental special
benefits received by these publicly owned parcels. Likewise, property consisting of a
railroad, gas, water, or electric utility right-of-way shall not be assessed, since such utility-
related property is not deemed to benefit at all from the construction of the proposed
improvements. Finally, properties owned by churches, vacant and agricultural parcels will
not be assessed.

Since the exempt land use class receives a zero point rating in all benefit categories, it is
not included in the Benefit Assessment Matrix.

NON-RESIDENTIAL ASSESSMENT UNITS

In order to equalize the assessment among residential and non-residential land use
classes in terms of the area of land to be benefited by the construction of the proposed
improvements, an assessment methodology has been used to convert the acreage of each
non-residential parcel into an equivalent number of single family residential parcels that
could have been developed on each non-residential parcel but for the commercial and/for

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT e ""E:_—-f-
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SCiConsultingGroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 79



PAGE 31

industrial use to which the parcel has been put. Approximately eighty-eight percent (88%)
of the parcels within the proposed Assessment District are traditional single-family
residential subdivision lots. The average gross density of these subdivisions is
approximately 3.6 gross dwelling units per acre. Assuming ten percent (10%) of the gross
acreage of a subdivision is consumed in public streets, the average net density of these
subdivisions is approximately 4.0 dwelling units per net acre and the average residential lot
size is approximately one-quarter acre. Accordingly, the number of assessment units for
each commercial and industrial parcel has been determined by dividing the parcel acreage
of each parcel by four. Therefore, each commercial and industrial parcel within the
Assessment District will be assessed on a quarter acre basis and each one-quarter acre of
each commercial andlor industrial parcel will generate a separate assessment. This
methodology equalizes the assessment and the distribution of benefit between residential
and non-residential parcels by insuring that each non-residential assessment unit
represents essentially the same land area to be benefited by the construction of the
improvements with assessment proceeds as the average single family residential parcel.

BENEFIT FACTOR INDEX

The Assessment Matrix also shows the Benefit Factor Index for each land use category.
Since a single family residential parcel is the "benchmark property”, the relative scores of
all other land use classes were related to the benchmark by indexing. A single family
residential parcel was assigned a relative Benefit Factor Index of 1.00. The Benefit Factor
index for other land use classes was determined by dividing the point total for each
particular land use class by the point total for the single family/condominium residential
class.

AsSESSMENT PER PARCEL

The total number of units'(either dwelling unit or one-quarter acre parcel count) for each
land use class was multiplied by its respective Benefit Factor Index to determine the
number of Single Family Equivalent (SFE) assessment benefit units for each land use
class. The sum of the Assessment Units for all land use classes was then divided into the
annual assessment amount to determine a Base Assessment.

The final assessment per parcel was determined by muiltiplying the Base Assessment
times the SFE units for the parcel.

BENEFIT ASSESSMENT MATRIX

In an effort to categorize the special benefit that each parcel of land would receive by the
formation of a landscaping and lighting assessment district and the levying of an
assessment to cover the improvements intended, a matrix of impacts was developed. The
matrix follows this section. The matrix was developed as follows.

The determining factor as to how a benefit was derived was the use of the land as
determined by the Sacramento County Assessor's Department. Each parcel is assigned a
one digit code based upon the use of the property and in most cases, the zoning of the
land. Using the Assessor's Code numbers, the various uses of land within the District

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT SO0 HinaG
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT = ansunglenoup
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 80



PAGE 32

boundaries were broken down into five different uses. It was determined that there are six
different ways that a parcel of land can be benefited by enhancing the park system. Each
different category of land use is affected differently by these types of benefit.

Each type of benefit was applied to each category of use and rated on a scale of one to
five, with five being the most intense level of benefit. The number of points assigned by the
rating is shown on the following page. The points for the six types of benefit were tallied
and an overall number was determined for each category of land use. The resultant
number is then used in assigning the annual assessment to the various parcels of land
within the District boundaries. An annual check is made of property usage to ensure that
the latest information is used in assigning the assessment levy.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT S (hmi e rrrey
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SCiConsultingtaroup
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 81



PAGE 33

ORANGEVALE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 ASSESSMENT

BENEFIT ASSESSMENT MATRIX

Land Use Classes
Per Unit Per 1/4 Acre
| Single Family/ Industrial/
Condominium | Multi-Family | Mobile Home | Commercial | Mini-Storage
1 |[Enhanced recreation opportunities and
expanded access to recreation facilities for 5 5 5 2 1
residents, customers and guests
2 |Preservation of open space, wildlife, scenery,
views and other environmental benefits
enjoyed by residents, customers and guests; 5 5 5 1 1
protection of historical and cultural assets of
the region.
3 |Increased economic activity resuiting in the
; 0 2 0 5 3
attraction of customers and guests.
4 |Expanded employment opportunities. 5 5 5 5 1
5 |Reduced cost of local government in law 5 3 3 4 2
enforcement and public health care.
6 |Increased property values. 5 5 4 5 2
Total Points 25 25 22 22 10
Units/ 1/4 Acre 10,644 1,888 419 789 129
Benefit Factor Index 1.00 1.00 0.88 0.88 0.40
Single Family Equivalent Units (SFE) 10,644.00 1,888.00 368.72 694.32 51.60
Total SFE Units 13,646.64 | |
Annual Assessment Amount $573,158.88 [
|
Base Assessment $42.00
Assessment per Unit $42.00 $42.00 $36.96 $36.96 $16.80
A ment per SFE $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00
Assessment Subtotals $447.048.00 | $79,296.00 | $15486.24 | $29,161.44 | $2,167.20
Total Assessment $573,158.88
| \ |
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT e C—m
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SUitonRUINgSrotD
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 82



PAGE 34

ASSESSMENT

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2017 the Board of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
adopted its resolution initiating proceedings for the levy of assessments within the
Assessment District and authorizing the Orangevale Recreation and Park District, County
of Sacramento, California, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act
of 1972 and Article XIIID of the California Constitution (collectively “the Act’), to proceed
with the proposed levy of assessments;

WHEREAS, said Resolution directed the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and file
a report presenting an estimate of costs, a diagram for the assessment district and an
assessment of the estimated costs of the improvements upon all assessable parcels within
the assessment district, to which Resolution and the description of said proposed
improvements therein contained, reference is hereby made for further particulars;

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under said Act
and the order of the Board of said Orangevale Recreation and Park District, hereby make
the following assessment to cover the portion of the estimated cost of said improvements,
and the costs and expenses incidental thereto to be paid by the assessment district.

The amount to be paid for said improvements and the expense incidental thereto, to be
paid by the Assessment District for the fiscal year 2017-18 is generally as follows:

SUMMARY COST ESTIMATE
FY 2017-18
Budget
Capital Improvements and -Maintenance Expenditures $556,000
Incidental Expenses $43,000
Debt Service $1,200
Salaries and Benefits $739,580
TOTAL BUDGET $1,339,780
Less: Contributions
District Contribution for General Benefits ($669,890)
District Contribution toward Special Benefits ($96,731)
NET AMOUNT TO ASSESSMENTS $573,159

As required by the Act, an Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part hereof
showing the exterior boundaries of said Assessment District. The distinctive number of
gach parcel or lot of land in the said Assessment District is its Assessor Parcel Number
appearing on the Assessment Roll.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT T tinaG
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT AldcenauiingurodR
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 83



PaGe 35

| do hereby assess and apportion said net amount of the cost and expenses of said
improvements, including the costs and expenses incident thereto, upon the parcels and
lots of land within said Assessment District, in accordance with the special benefits to be
received by each parcel or lot, from the improvements, and more particularly set forth in
the Cost Estimate and Method of Assessment hereto attached and by reference made a
part hereof.

The assessment is made upon the parcels or lots of land within the Assessment District in
proportion to the special benefits to be received by the parcels or lots of land, from said
improvements.

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parcel
number as shown on the Assessor's Maps of the County of Sacramento for the fiscal year
2017-18. For a more particular description of said property, reference is hereby made to
the deeds and maps on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder of said
County.

| hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the
Assessment Roll, the amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2017-18 for each parcel
or lot of land within the said Assessment District.

Dated: May 5, 2017

Engineer of Work

By

John W. Bliss, License No. C052091

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT s e T
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT wlitonsultingtaroup
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 84



PAGE 36

ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM

The Assessment District includes all properties within the boundaries of the Orangevale
Recreation and Park District. The area within the boundaries of the Park District is primarily
developed for urban residential and commercial use.

The boundaries of the Parks Maintenance and Assessment District are displayed on the
following Assessment Diagram.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT R e
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT = DALINGRrOND
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 85



PAGE 37

WYADVIO INDWSSASEY

LONLSKI INANESHESY OMILHD LT UNY DXIdVISURY'Y
LD LSIT W Vel ¥ NOLIVTRTA ATVAIDNVEG

“AIAANN TEIHYE SSHOSSAESY IALTRUS C 8L

1.6 Sl QI3 K O3 L K0! S 103¥A HOVE  STHONY
HONT 40 SHOENIAIE ONY 53047 FHL SHhE 20H0D
$TARA TS B0 843509 TIHE Sdvll IS0HL taIuad
HAAOME $1308Yd MIY 30 SROISNIIMC OWv 23011 3HL 42
O SIS 3C OFTwLI0 Y HOS OLRENREIVE J0 ALRNGD
ZhL JO OBTISTY IHL 40 3NAI0 IHL NI THOOIS 20
§7330 Oh¥ S4UA 3HL QL S0WH AGIN3H & J0KANTA3a
AN

HOLVHLZININDY

ChY 50 300 KO3 LS WEY 03491, WaRLS A56¢
RV A INCDY 0D JHL 0 T LN EE IG5
CBINOIEH OieS 0L IOV AB3H3H 81 3NI6 343%

el 40 v AHL hC
GUNSVEOVYE 40 ALNNOS 3-4L 40 2CUITW A1N03

THL 42 I2UEC IHL M O SH3M UVIA TwDSd OfvE HD:
T15% LHENSEZS6Y ZHL ONy PVHOW:0 LHINSEITSY Ok
ONY 2l LOT HYEA WG BHL VO LIGT Y H3 A0
31 N0 WYIEVID LNTPIBSISEY SHLIG UMV 20

$9306%d 0N 320314 ‘L0 IHL N OLHFBAWHIVG

AH UARTTORY OF4R3.INCD SWAN IRFINSTIESY Wy

HOVHLSIRIFEIY

It O AxC
< SHLWIRIDSI TED ‘0NN TYS 20 ALNIOT
17 KB D WY e ONY NOL VST BVTASONRNG Sril

42 EOLYULSA /Y 3HL 40 321 IHL N G300 028

B VHLESININY
il ac
Avo Bkl WIREDHTYD OLHINWE DS =C

ACNKID LY dASK MuYd ONY NG LYBYDIY JWARKNYEC
SHL =0 HCIVEISEY AT IHL 40 32020 311 M 330

FSRG KD PR
Pant RATARR P
V0L THAIMOD F)5

fIEpUNGE 1PUISIC MBS PUE LONEBINey BieasBuRIo nu
puaban

B3Ny 3001 2
HALHNS LR w«wf

USP l.ichd

- S
o weT m CIN
o ; et o Shade Sowylg
W HDNYED 3 JNENTRY L 20, S X
<. g NEHAN g 98 b Llileidy
o
L g .ﬁuw e ThH AYE
14 m. 4 mn? s Y o 300
¢ = o e ] .aywnv» m T H0Y uq‘.ﬁo_
- ¥ wcu x HeRie b
w BHINNE EwcuD z ¥ing  x ]
QraTIA S = Bnchls
. M SRaay WOHYE 10
=] NOLTL %,
g %, z
m k! wiz 3 L S0d
rovad g ] e
o 2
Fa Wik huse 2 L3
sl § i
BONDLIO s i
ol LAy ] 2
P £ % o 2
13 ¢ 3
m G B3N OT1 cuva : B
ES o
o & = wonavav P R
m m W MM RN g
5 5 amswaxe w SFy0usd
gE - 4
& R m
4
semuavgt M =
RANZ.3
v
MO 1 # o
Sty h L

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

SCIConsultingGroup

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

ENGINEER’'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Page 86

June 8,2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



PAGE 38

ASSESSMENT RoLL 2017-18

An Assessment Roll (a listing of all parcels assessed within the Assessment District and
the amount of the assessment) will be filed with the Clerk of the Board and is, by

reference, made part of this report and is available for public inspection during normal
office hours.

Each lot or parcel listed on the Assessment Roll is shown and illustrated on the latest
County Assessor records and these records are, by reference made part of this report.
These records shall govern for all details concerning the description of the lots or parcels.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT - {.lﬁ“""ﬂ;c inaG
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SREIORERURNIEOUR

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 87



PAGE 39

END NOTES

1 Love, L. and Crompton, J. Trends: Parks, Practice and Program. Oxford University
Press-USA. New York, NY. 1993.

21993 State of the Industry Report . Widdekind, L. ed. The Outdoor Industry Association
(The Outdoor Recreation Coalition of America and the Sporting Goods Manufacturers
Association's Outdoor Products. pub.) Boulder CO. 1993.

3 California Parks and Recreation. The California Parks and Recreation Society, pub.
Sacramento, CA. (http://www.cprs.org.)

4 PKF Consulting. San Francisco, CA. “Analysis of the Economic Impacts of the Northern
Central Rail Trail." For the Greenways Commission, Maryland Department of Natural
Resources, Annapolis, Maryland. June 1994.

5 Outdoor Recreation Resources Review Commission, Outdoor Recreation For America: A
Report To The President And The Congress. January 2002,

6 |bid. Smith, Van.

7 |bid. California Parks and Recreation. 1997.

8 Parks and Recreation, National Recreation and Park Association, pub. Ashburn, Virginia.
January 2001. (http://www.nrpa.org/)

9 National Park Service. NPS Technical Information Center. Washington D.C, 1983.

10 Report of the President Commission on Americans Outdoors, U.S. Government Printing
Office: Management. Washington D.C. 1987.

11 Crompton, J., Love L., More T., An Empirical Study of the Role of Recreation, Parks and
Open Space in Companies’ (Re)Location Decisions, Journal of Park and Recreation
Administration, Spring, 1997, vol 15 no. 1, p p37, 40.

12 \Wylde, Boomers on the Horizon: Housing Preferences of the 55+ Market, National
Association of Home Builders, 2002.

13 |bid. NPS.
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT oo s .
LANDSGAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT e anatitng=roup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 88



PAGE 40

14 |bid. NPRA. June 1985.

15 Knox v. City of Orland,4 Cal.4t 132, 143 (1993) the Supreme Court of California.

16 Wilson v. Lambert (1898) 168 U.S. 611, 616 [42 L.Ed. 599, 601, 188.Ct.217] the United
States Supreme Court.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
ENGINEER'S REPCRT, FY 2017-18

L RN
SCiConsultingGroup

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 89



ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

RESOLUTION #_17-06-575

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
ADOPTING THE KENNETH GROVE LANDSCAPING AND
LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018

WHEREAS, all necessary estimates of revenues, expenditures and reserves
were reviewed and filed for ending fiscal year 2016/2017; and

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED in accordance with Code Section
29089 of the Government Code, the preliminary budget for the fiscal year 2017/2018,
be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following:

(1)  Salaries & Employee Benefits $ 0
(2) Services & Supplies 5,430
3) Other Charges 0
4) Fixed Assets:

(a) Land 0

(b) Structures & Improvements 0

(¢) Equipment 0
(5)  Expenditure transfers 0
(6) Contingencies 0
(7) Provision for reserve increases 0

TOTAL BUDGET REQUIREMENTS $ 5.430

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure program

will be by monies derived from Revenue to Accrue, Fund Balance Available and
Property Assessments.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed preliminary budget be and is hereby
adopted in accordance with the listed attachment which show in detail the approved
appropriations, revenues and methods of financing for the 2017/2018 fiscal year:

ON A MOTION, by Director Meraz, seconded by Director Brunberg, the foregoing
Resolution was passed and adopted this 8™ day of June 2017 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Chair, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 90



2

O\] e RESOLUTION NO. 17-06-576

PARKS

ORANGEVALE A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
RECREATION & THE ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
PARK DISTRICT APPROVING THE ENGINEER'S REPORT,

CONFIRMING THE DIAGRAM AND ASSESSMENT,
AND ORDERING THE LEVY OF ASSESSMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 FOR THE
KENNETH GROVE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

RESOLVED, by the Governing Board (the "Board") of the
Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (the
"District"), County of Sacramento, State of California, that

WHEREAS, the formation of the Kenneth Grove Recreation and
Park District Maintenance Assessment District (the “Assessment
District”), pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972 has previously been ordered through
Resolution 94-05-86A; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of financing certain park and recreation
improvements and refurbishments, as specified in the District’s
updated Master Plan and for the purpose of funding maintenance
operations of the District, as described in the Engineer’s Report;
and

WHEREAS, by its Resolution No. 17-03-567, A Resolution
Directing Preparation of the 2017-18 Engineer’s Report for the
Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (the
"Park District"), this Board designated SCI Consulting Group as
Engineer of Work and ordered said Engineer to make and file a
report in writing in accordance with and pursvant to the
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972; and

WHEREAS, the report was duly made and filed with the Clerk of
the Board and duly considered by this Board and found to be
sufficient in every particular, whereupon it was determined that the
report should stand as the Engineer's Report for all subsequent
proceedings under and pursuant to the aforesaid resolution, and that
June 8, 2017 at the hour of 6:30 p.m. at the District offices of the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District, 6826 Hazel Avenue,

6826 Hazel Avehue Orangevale, California, 95662, were appointed as the time and
Orangevale, CA 95662 place for a hearing by this Board on the question of the levy of the
916-981;- 4373 , proposed assessment, notice of which hearing was given as

OVparks.com
Page 1 of 4

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 91



— required by law; and
OVrarxks

ORANGFEVALE WHEREAS, at the appointed time and place the hearing was duly
RECREATION & and regularly held, and all persons interested and desiring to be
PARK DISTRICT heard were given an opportunity to be heard, and all matters and

things pertaining to the levy were fully heard and considered by
this Board, and all oral statements and all written protests or
communications were duly heard, considered and overruled, and
this Board thereby acquired jurisdiction to order the levy and the
confirmation of the diagram and assessment prepared by and made
a part of the Engineer's Report to pay the costs and expenses
thereof;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS FOUND, DETERMINED AND
ORDERED, that:

1. The public interest, convenience and necessity
require that the levy be made.

2, The Assessment District benefited by the
improvements and assessed to pay the costs and
expenses thereof, and the exterior boundaries
thereof, are as shown by a map thereof filed in the
office of the Clerk of the Board, which map is made
a part hereof by reference thereto.

3 The assessment is levied without regard to property
valuation.
4. The Engineer's Report as a whole and each part

thereof, to wit:

(a) the Engineer's estimate of the itemized and
total costs and expenses of maintaining the
improvements and of the incidental
expenses in connection therewith,

(b)  the diagram showing the assessment district,
plans and  specifications for  the
improvements to be maintained and the
boundaries and dimensions of the respective
lots and parcels of land within the
Assessment District; and

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662 (c)  the assessment of the total amount of the
916-988-4373 cost and expenses of the proposed

OVparks.com
Page 2 of 4

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 92



O F I maintenance of the improvements upon the
VPARKS - several lots and parcels of land in the

ORANGEVALE Assessment District in proportion to the

RECREATION & estimated special benefits to be received by

PARK DISTRICT ' such lots and parcels, respectively, from the
maintenance, and of the expenses incidental
thereto;

are finally approved and confirmed.

5. Final adoption and approval of the Engineer's
Report as a whole, and of the plans and
specifications, estimate of the costs and expenses,
the diagram and the assessment, as contained in the
report as hereinabove determined and ordered, is
intended to and shall refer and apply to the report,
or any portion thereof as amended, modified, or
revised or corrected by, or pursuant to and in
accordance with, any resolution or order, if any,
heretofore duly adopted or made by this Board.

6. The assessment to pay the costs and expenses of the
maintenance of the improvements for fiscal year
2017-18 is hereby levied. For further particulars
pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972, reference is hereby made to
the Resolution Directing Preparation of Engineer's
Report.

T Based on the oral and documentary evidence,
including the Engineer's Report, offered and
received at the hearing, this Board expressly finds
and determines (a) that each of the several lots and
parcels of land will be specially benefited by the
maintenance of the improvements at least in the
amount if not more than the amount, of the
assessment apportioned against the lots and parcels
of 1and, respectively, and (b) that there is substantial
evidence to support, and the weight of the evidence
preponderates in favor of, the aforesaid finding and
determination as to special benefits.

8. Immediately upon the adoption of this resolution,
6826 Hazel Avenue but in no event later than the third Monday in
Orangevale, CA 95662 August following such adoption, the Clerk of the
916-988-4373 : Board shall file a certified copy of the diagram and
OVparks.com i
Page 3 of 4
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 93



X . assessment and a certified copy of this resolution
O v PARKS with the Auditor of the County of Sacramento.

ORANGEVALE Upon such filing, the County Auditor shall enter on
RECREATION & the County assessment roll opposite each lot or
PARK DISTRICT parcel of land the amount of assessment thereupon

as shown in the assessment. The assessments shall
be collected at the same time and in the same
manner as County taxes are collected and all laws
providing for the collection and enforcement of
County taxes shall apply to the collection and
enforcement of the assessments, After collection by
the County, the net amount of the assessments, after
deduction of any compensation due the County for
collection, shall be paid to the Kenneth Grove
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District.

9. The moneys representing assessments collected by
the County shall be deposited in the District
Treasury to the credit of the improvement fund
previously established under the distinctive
designation of the Assessment District. Moneys in
the improvement fund shall be expended only for
the maintenance, servicing, construction or
installation of the improvements.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8® day of June 2017, by the following
vote:

AYES :
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

CHAIR, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373 CLERK OF THE BOARD
OVparks.com

Page 4 of 4

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 94



ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK

DISTRICT
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

ENGINEER’S REPORT

JUNE 2017
FiscaLYEAR2017-18

PURSUANT TO THE LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ACT OF 1972 AND
ARTICLE XI1ID oF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

ENGINEER OF WORK:
SCiConsultingGroup
4745 MANGELS BOULEVARD
FAIRFIELD, CALIFORNIA 94534
PHONE 707.430.4300

Fax 707.430.4319
WWW.SCi-Cg.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 95



PAGE |

KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

BoARD OF DIRECTORS

Mike Stickney, Chair

Lisa Montes, Vice Chair
Tim Anderson, Secretary
Sharon Brunberg, Director
Manie Meraz, Director

DiISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR
Greg Foell

DISTRICT’S ATTORNEY
David W. McMurchie

ENGINEER OF WORK
SCI Consulting Group

e —_
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT T e —
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT o g P

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 96



PAGE Il

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTION +vvvsereseesessnsusesssesescsssessasessanssssssassseses ssssssaessass sesss ssss st sessessss sssansssmnsssnasssnss sestsens 1
FORMATION OF ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ..vvevuvrierisiesistsesisssssissssismns s e sss e 1
SUBSTANTIVE REQUIREMENTS OF PROPOSITION 218 .....oviisiiiiieneinis 4
PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS «.vvursesesesesssssesssssarssssssssssassssssssssssssssstsssssseassssst i smasssssssssssasestsssassnsess 5
FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 ESTIMATE OF COST AND BUDGET .....occiusuisnmmssssssssssssssnanssssssssssasasanasanss 6
METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT 1uvuvcesersssssesrasssssasssssssssstssssssasessssssssst sess s sessssssnsss saassssessssassssss 7
METHOD OF APPORTIOMMENT o.csesissssestosssssssussnsssastanionsssssnarrmsns s eossssnsasssssessass sarssnsvass shs 7
DISCUSSION OF BENEFIT 1.vevevivesieseessisessissesesssssssssas et sisssss s s s st s st 7
METHOD OF AGSESSMENT . e vevereeeievistirevserssresesessesssesresresasbatssassrssese s e b et s bbb a1 9
ASSESSMENT APPORTIONMENT ....covveuisereamssaneetsssessesisis s sttt 10
ASSESSMENT cuvrevseesessssrseseesesesessassassnssvesasssnsssnssstsdsass sessmsmnss sassadsEsesEaEREnEERERR RS R R SRR SR st 11
ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM. ....cocrianrssrssnsernses i v sat s s s mn s s b DR G R 13
APPENDIX A - 2017-18 ASSESSMENT ROLL ..ovcunmsmmssisssssssmmsssssmsesssssss s snssasnssssnssssnssssssnas 14

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT ""8 {:m
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT LHHnG P

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 97



PAGE 1

INTRODUCTION

FORMATION OF ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

The Kenneth Grove Assessment District was formed pursuant the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972 by the Orangevale Recreation and Park District commencing with
Resolution No. 94-02-83 dated February 10, 1994 (hereinafter the "Resolution of
Intention"). The Resolution of Intention provides the following: (1) formation of the Kenneth
Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District; and (2) a description of the
improvements which the Assessment District is authorized to construct and maintain
including the following; (a) installation of sound walls and other ornamental structures and
facilities which are necessary or convenient for the maintenance or servicing of curbs,
gutters, walls, sidewalks, paving, water irrigation, drainage or electrical facilities; and (b)
land preparation such as grading, leveling, cutting and filling, sod landscaping, irrigation
systems, sidewalks and drainage; and (c) the maintenance or servicing of all of the above
including repair, removal or replacement of all or part of any improvement or other typical
maintenance services.

The Engineer's Report, diagram and assessment and Resolution of Formation of the
Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District was adopted by the Board
of Directors of Orangevale Recreation and Park District by Resolution No. 94-05-86A on
May 12, 1994. That resolution confirmed the findings in the Resolution of Intention and
was adopted after a public hearing during which members of the public were offered the
opportunity to protest against the formation of the Assessment District. The Resolution of
Formation notes that the owners of the affected properties included within the proposed
Assessment District have filed with the District written consents to the proposed formation
of the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District and the proposed
levying of assessments as specified in the Engineer's Report. The Resolution of Formation
included a provision that a perpetual contingency reserve fund be established in the
amount of the first year's total assessment revenue to be paid by the developer by
agreement in order to cover the costs of any contingencies which may occur throughout
the duration of the Assessment District. The Resolution of Formation also provided that
should any new subdivision be annexed into the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District in the future, that a separate perpetual contingency reserve fund is
required to be established for operations within that particular annexed area calculated as
the amount of the first year's assessment levied against real property within that annexed
area to be paid by the developer of the annexed area to fund contingencies with respect to
maintenance and operations in future years with respect to the property annexed to the
Assessment District.

The initial assessment levied upon each parcel of real property within the Kenneth Grove
Assessment District for fiscal year 1994-95 was $150.78 per parcel. The Kenneth Grove
Assessment District has continued to levy the same annual assessment per parcel of
$150.78 per fiscal year from the date of formation to the present time.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT sCIC 1inaG
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT Stilonsuitingtaradp
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 98



PAGE 2

The Kenneth Grove Assessment District was also formed for the purposes of providing
park and recreational improvements in addition to landscape corridors and streetscapes to
the residents of the assessment district. The Assessment District may utilize assessment
revenue to fund these additional purposes in the future.

Exemptions from Proposition 218

Having been formed in 1994, the Kenneth Grove Assessment District assessments were
existing on November 8, 1996, the effective date of Article XIID of the California
Constitution (Proposition 218). Proposition 218 identified preexisting assessments which
fell within one of four exemptions identified in section 5 of Article XIlID as exempt from the
procedures and approval process for assessments detailed in Proposition 218.

The four "exemptions" delineated in Proposition 218 that are applicable to the Kenneth
Grove Assessment District are as follows:

(1) Any assessment imposed exclusively to finance the capital cost or maintenance and
operation expenses for sidewalks, streets, sewers, water, flood control, drainage systems,
or vector control (Cal. Const., art. XIIID, § 5, subd. (a)); and

(2) Any assessment imposed pursuant to a petition signed by the persons owning all of
the parcels subject to the assessment at the time the assessment is initially imposed (Cal.
Const., art. XIiID, § 5, subd. (b)).

Both of these exemptions from the provisions of Proposition 218 apply to the Kenneth
Grove Assessment District. First, the Assessment District was formed pursuant to a
petition signed by all of the current owners of the real property subject to the assessment
(the developer of the Kenneth Grove Subdivision) at the time the assessment was initially
imposed which meets the requirements of California Constitution Article XIIID, section 5(b).

In addition, the initial purpose of the assessment was to finance the capital costs and
maintenance and operation costs for constructing sidewalks, sidewalk and street
landscaping, irrigation and drainage to enhance the parcels of property comprising the
Kenneth Grove Assessment District.

Both of these exemptions from the procedures and approval process for assessments

specified in Proposition 218 have been satisfied within the Kenneth Grove Assessment
District.

First, the exemption which is an assessment imposed by a pefition signed by the persons
owning all the parcels subject to the assessment at the time the assessment is initially
imposed is evidenced by the Resolutions of the District and the written consents filed by
the then current owners of the real property subject to the assessment in 1994 before the
Assessment District was formed.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT ""% {:Té_-l'ﬁe-
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT : anstitingsrodp

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 99



PAGE 3

The second exemption available for capital and maintenance costs associated with
sidewalks, streets, and landscaping and irrigation associated with sidewalks and streets is
supported by case law decided under the provisions of California Constitution Article XIIID,
section 5(b) (hereinafter "Proposition 218"). The Board of Directors of the District has
adopted the position that street and sidewalk landscaping is an integral part of "streets”
and "sidewalks" and therefore an existing assessment for the maintenance of such
landscaping is exempt under Proposition 218. Streets and Highways Code section 29
provides that "roadside planting and weed control" is included within the definition of
construction and maintenance of streets.

The assessments levied within the Kenneth Grove Assessment District prior to the
passage of Proposition 218 are exempt under both of these exceptions articulated in
Proposition 218.

Those procedures and approval processes with respect to which the Kenneth Grove
Assessment District is exempt are as follows:

(1) Procedural requirements regarding the imposition of assessments including (a)
identification of all parcels which will have special benefit conferred upon them by the
improvements or services funded by the assessment; and (b) differentiation between
"special benefit" and "general benefit' conferred on properties from the improvement
and/or services funded with assessment proceeds; and (c) allocation of assessments
per parcel dependent upon the proportion of special benefit to each property in
relationship to the entirety of the costs of acquiring or constructing an improvement or
of maintaining and operating such an improvement among the parcels to be
assessed; and (d) the assessment on a parcel may not exceed the reasonable cost of
the "proportional special benefit" conferred on that parcel by the improvements or
services funded with assessment proceeds; and (e) procedural requirements
including the 45-day mailed notice to property owners of the proposed assessment;
an opportunity for property owners to protest by ballot against the proposed
assessment at a public hearing; and prohibition of any assessment if a majority
protest exists, A "majority protest’ is defined as ballots from property owners
submitted in opposition to the assessments amounting to more than 50% of the total
ballots submitted by property owners, with ballots submitted weighted according to
the proportional financial obligation for paying assessments for each affected parcel.

In light of the fact that the Kenneth Grove Assessment District was formed prior to the
imposition of Proposition 218 on November 6, 1996 and complies with the definitions of
two of the exemptions in Proposition 218 as specified above, the assessments levied
within the Kenneth Grove Assessment District are exempt from the substantive and
procedural requirements outlined above.

Despite that exemption, this Engineer's Report specifies the facts and circumstances
demonstrating that the assessments levied within the Kenneth Grove Assessment District
comply with the substantive requirements of Proposition 218.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT T s
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SldonRatn e FauR
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 100



PAGE 4

SUBSTANTIVE REQUIREMENTS OF PROPOSITION 218

SILICON VALLEY TAXPAYERS ASSOCIATION, INC. v SANTA CLARA COUNTY OPEN SPACE
AUTHORITY

In July of 2008, the California Supreme Court issued its ruling on the Silicon Valley
Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority (‘SVTA”). This
ruling is the most significant court case in further legally clarifying the substantive
assessment requirements of Proposition 218. Several of the most important elements of
the ruling included further emphasis that:

= Benefit assessments are for special, not general, benefit

= The services and/or improvements funded by assessments must be clearly
defined

= Special benefits are directly received by and provide a direct advantage to
property in the assessment district

This Engineer's Report is consistent with the SVTA decision and with the requirements of
Article 13C and 13D of the California Constitution because the improvements to be funded
are clearly defined; the benefiting property in the Assessment District enjoys close and
unique proximity, access and views to the Improvements; the Improvements serve as an
extension of usable land area for benefiting properties in the Assessment District and such
special benefits provide a direct advantage to property in the Assessment District that is
not enjoyed by the public at large or other property.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT - P”'é—--ﬁ-
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT Stconsuiingoroup
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 101



PAGE S

PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS

The work and improvements proposed to be undertaken by the Orangevale Recreation
and Park District's Kenneth Grove Assessment District (the “Assessment District’) and the
cost thereof paid from the levy of the annual assessment provide special benefit to
Assessor Parcels within the Assessment District as defined in the Method of Assessment
herein. In addition to the definitions provided by the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972,
(the “Act”) the work and improvements are generally described as follows:

Installation, maintenance and servicing of public recreational facilities and improvements
including landscape corridors, streetscapes and other park and recreational improvements.
The plans and specifications for these improvements have been filed with the District
Administrator of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District and are incorporated herein
by reference.

As applied herein, “Installation” means the construction of recreational improvements,
including, but not limited to, land preparation, such as grading, leveling, cutting and filling,
sod, landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks and drainage, lights, playground
equipment, play courts, recreational facilities and public restrooms.

“Maintenance” means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual
maintenance, operation and servicing of any improvement, including repair, removal or
replacement of all or any part of any improvement; providing for the life, growth, health,
and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying, fertilizing, or
treating for disease or injury; the removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris, and other solid
waste, and the cleaning, sandblasting, and painting of walls and other improvements to
remove or cover graffii.

“Servicing” means the furnishing of electric current, or energy, gas or other illuminating
agent for any public lighting facilities or for the lighting or operation of any other
improvements; or water for the irrigation of any landscaping, the operation of any
fountains, or the maintenance of any other improvements.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT =

KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SCiConsultingGroup
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 102



PAGEG

FiscAL YEAR 2017-18 ESTIMATE OF COST AND BUDGET

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Estimate of Cost
Fiscal Year 2017-18
Total
Budget
Installation, Maintenance & Servicing Costs
Improvements $0
Operating Expenses
Ag/Horticulture Services & Supplies $500
Water $800
Fuel $600
Maintenance Contract $0
Subtotal $1,900
Incidental Expenses
Advertising/Legal Notices . $500
Administration & Inspection $1,130
Annual Engineer's Report $1,000
Professional Services $600
Other Expenses $298
Subtotal $3,528
Contribution to/(from) Reserves Fund Balance Available
Contribution to (from) Contingency $0
Total Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District Budget $5,428
(Net Amount to be Assessed)
Budget Allocation to Property
Total Assessment Budget $5,428
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units 36.00
Assessment per Single Family Equivalent Unit $150.78

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT F—GCTE“ M
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT BLalanstingarone
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 103



PAGE 7

METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

This section of the Engineer's Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be derived
from the installation, maintenance and servicing of park facilities throughout the Park
District, and the methodology used to apportion the total assessment to properties within
the Assessment District.

The Assessment District consists of all Assessor Parcels within the boundaries of the
Assessment Diagram as included within this Engineer's Report. The method used for
apportioning the assessment is based upon the proportional special benefits to be derived
by the properties in the Assessment District over and above general benefits conferred on
real property or to the public at large. The apportionment of special benefit is a two step
process: the first step is to identify the types of special benefit arising from the
improvements, and the second step is to allocate the assessments to property based on
the estimated relative special benefit for each type of property.

DISCUSSION OF BENEFIT

In summary, the assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to property.
This benefit is received by property over and above any general benefits. Moreover, such
benefit is not based on any one property owner's use of the Park District's recreational
facilities or a property owners specific demographic status. With reference to the
requirements for assessments, Section 22573 of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972
states:

"The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment district may be
apportioned by any formula or method which fairly distributes the net amount among all
assessable lots or parcels in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by each
such lot or parcel from the improvements."

Proposition 218, as codified in Article XIIID of the California Constitution, has confirmed
that assessments must be based on the special benefit to property and that the value of
the special benefits must reasonably exceed the cost of the assessment:

"No assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of the
proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel.”

The Kenneth Grove Assessment District consists solely of residential parcels populated
with single family residences which receive the benefit of sidewalks and streetscape
landscaping constructed adjacent to major streets within the subdivision, which
improvements were constructed by the developer of the subdivision and are maintained by
the Kenneth Grove Assessment District. The Assessment District also was formed with the
power to levy assessments for additional park and recreational improvements to serve the
residents of the assessment district. All of the parcels within the boundaries of the

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT v [m
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SCiConsultingGroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 104



PAGE 8

Assessment District enjoy close proximity to the sidewalk and streetscape improvements
constructed and maintained with assessment proceeds. The Assessment District consists
of only 36 parcels comprising the subdivision, and the improvements consisting of
sidewalk and streetscape landscaping and maintenance uniquely benefit this small
subdivision as a "special benefit.” Existing improvements are not of sufficient magnitude to
significantly benefit adjacent residential parcels located outside the Assessment District.

The following benefit categories summarize the types of special benefit to residential,
parcels resulting from the installation, maintenance and servicing of existing sidewalk and
streetscape landscaping improvements and future park and recreational improvements to
be provided with the assessment proceeds. These categories of special benefit are
summarized as follows:

a. Extension of a walkable areas and green spaces for properties within close
proximity to the Improvements.

b. Proximity to improved sidewalks and streetscape landscaping and other park
and recreational improvements.

c. Access to improved sidewalks and landscaping and other park and
recreational improvements constructed to serve the residents and property of
the assessment district.

d. Improved local views regarding sidewalk and streetscape landscaping and
future park and recreational improvements.

In this case, the recent the SVTA decision provides enhanced clarity to the definitions of
special benefits to properties in three distinct areas:

= Proximity
= Expanded or improved access
= Views

The SVTA decision also clarifies that a special benefit is a service or improvement that
provides a direct advantage to a parcel and that indirect or derivative advantages resulting
from the overall public benefits from a service or improvement are general benefits. The
SVTA decision also provides specific guidance that landscape and park and recreational
improvements are a direct advantage and special benefit to property that is proximate to
such landscape and park and recreational improvements constructed and maintained with
assessment proceeds:

the characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel
receives a direct advantage from the improvement (e.g. proximity to a
park) or receives an indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the
overall public benefits of the improvement (e.g. general enhancement of
the district's property values).

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT r (:_;&.._ﬂ “RG
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SOneUtingaroun

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 105



PAGE 9

Proximity, improved access and views, in addition to the other special benefits listed above
further strengthen the argument that these assessments comply with the provisions of
Proposition 218, despite the fact that they are exempt from such constitutional
requirements as set forth above.

Although it could be argued that there are no general benefits from these Improvements, it
is possible that there are some visual benefits received by parcels which are not in the
Assessment District. This is a measure of the general benefits to the public at large. We
estimate this benefit to be no more than 5%.

Special Benefit 95%
General Benefit 5%
Total Benefit 100%

The maintenance and servicing of these Improvements is also partially funded, directly and
indirectly, from other sources including the Orangevale Recreation and Park District,
County of Sacramento, the local water provider, and the State of California. This funding
may come in the form of grants, development fees, special programs, and general funds,
as well as direct maintenance and servicing of facilities (e.g., curbs, gutters, streets,
drainage systems, etc.). This funding from other sources more than compensates for
general benefits, if any, received by the properties within the Assessment District. The sum
total of this contribution exceeds the 5% minimum needed to offset any general benefit, as
noted above.

Therefore, despite its exemptions from the procedural and substantive requirements of
Proposition 218, the Kenneth Grove Assessment District complies with the substantive
requirements of Proposition 218 regarding the differentiation between special benefit to
properties within the assessment district from the improvements and maintenance funded
with assessment proceeds and general benefit to properties outside the assessment
district.

METHOD OF ASSESSMENT

The second step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit
for each property. This process involves determining the relative benefit received by each
property in relation to a single family home, or, in other words, on the basis of Single
Family Equivalents (SFE). This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute
assessments in proportion to estimated special benefit and is generally recognized as
providing the basis for a fair and appropriate distribution of assessments. For the purposes
of this Engineer's Report, all properties are designated a SFE value, which is each
property’s relative benefit in refation to a single family home on one parcel. In this case, the
"benchmark" property is the single family detached dwelling which is one Single Family
Equivalent or one SFE.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT A ,m
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT =a-onauHnaRie
ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 106



PAGE 10

ASSESSMENT APPORTIONMENT

The benefits from the Assessment District are deemed to be received by property on a
dwelling unit basis, with equal benefit to each dwelling unit on a parcel. Therefore, all
improved residential properties that represent a single residential dwelling unit are
assigned one Single Family Equivalent or 1.0 SFE. Traditional houses, zero-lot line houses
and town homes are included in this category. Multi-family parcels are also assigned one
SFE per dwelling unit. Property owned by the District does not benefit from the
assessments and therefore is assigned zero SFE units. Currently, all assessed properties
within the Assessment District are in single family residential use.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT ""S GW
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT QREUITINgLEOUE

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 _ Page 107



PAGE 11

ASSESSMENT

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2017 the Board of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
adopted its resolution initiating proceedings for the levy of assessments within the
Assessment District and authorizing the Orangevale Recreation and Park District, County
of Sacramento, California, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act
of 1972 and Article XIIID of the California Constitution (collectively “the Act’), to proceed
with the proposed levy of assessments;

WHEREAS, said Resolution directed the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and file
a report presenting an estimate of costs, a diagram for the assessment district and an
assessment of the estimated costs of the improvements upon all assessable parcels within
the assessment district, to which Resolution and the description of said proposed
improvements therein contained, reference is hereby made for further particulars;

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under said Act
and the order of the Board of said Orangevale Recreation and Park District, hereby make
the following assessment to cover the portion of the estimated cost of said improvements,
and the costs and expenses incidental thereto to be paid by the assessment district.

The amount to be paid for said improvements and the expense incidental thereto, to be
paid by the Assessment District for the fiscal year 2017-18 is generally as follows:

SUMMARY COST ESTIMATE
FY 2017-18|
Budget

Capital Improvements and Maintenance Expenditures $1,900
Incidental Expenses $3,528

TOTAL BUDGET $5,428
Less: Contributions

Contributions to/(from) Reserves and Contingency $0
NET AMOUNT TO ASSESSMENTS $5,428

As required by the Act, an Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part hereof
showing the exterior boundaries of said Assessment District. The distinctive number of
each parcel or lot of land in the said Assessment District is its Assessor Parcel Number
appearing on the Assessment Roll.

| do hereby assess and apportion said net amount of the cost and expenses of said
improvements, including the costs and expenses incident thereto, upon the parcels and

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT o C”W
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SO GRS TR G ORI

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 108



PAGE 12

lots of land within said Assessment District, in accordance with the special benefits to be
received by each parcel or lot, from the improvements, and more particularly set forth in
the Cost Estimate and Method of Assessment hereto attached and by reference made a
part hereof.

The assessment is made upon the parcels or lots of land within the Assessment District in
proportion to the special benefits to be received by the parcels or lots of land, from said
improvements.

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parcel
number as shown on the Assessor's Maps of the County of Sacramento for the fiscal year
2017-18. For a more particular description of said property, reference is hereby made to
the deeds and maps on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder of said
County.

| hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the
Assessment Roll, the amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2017-18 for each parcel
or lot of land within the said Assessment District.

Dated: May 5, 2017

Engineer of Work

By
John W. Bliss, License No. C052091

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT o L:?E‘-ﬁ-“
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT : Srauliingaroup

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 109



PAGE13

ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM

The boundaries of the Assessment District are displayed on the Assessment Diagram

below.
3
™~ X 8 .
0 ? 2
[w] &0
| g
— oY
S # 6
&8
o
o
;=4
=
3
5
L 5
™~ &
Q:-. wy
g &
o S
= g
S 3
S
Ly 5
& )
o &
Q =
®
5
\ {
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT ' g P rI——w—
SCIConsultingGrou
KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ! g P

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 110



APPENDIX A - 2017-18 ASSESSMENT ROLL

PAGE 14

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
Kenneth Grove Assessment District

Assessment Roll 2017-18
Assessment Number
& Assessor SFE
Parcel Number Owner Name(s) Site Address Units  Assessment
28106700010000 SHARLENE C DAVIDSON LIVING TRUST 8501 CLOUDGROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700020000 BELMONTE FAMILY TRUST 8505 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700030000 PORTELA MANUEL RIRIS M 8509 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700040000 JEFFRY AICHERYL A QUANDT REVOCABLE TRUST  B518 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700050000 LEBAS ALBERT EIRMA D 8523 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700060000 DALE BARTLETT DECEDENTS TRUST 8527 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700070000 GURWITZ DARLEEN M 8531 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 180,78
26106700080000 JOHNSON JEAN F 8535 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700090000 PEDERSEN JAMES E/STACY 8543 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700100000 SEGURA JAIME/DOUGLAS TREADWELL 8542 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700110000 DAVID WRIGHT/CORSENE MURPHY LIVING TRUST 8536 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700120000 WAYNE/JERRIE STADTMAN 2007 REVOCABLE TRUST 8532 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700130000 ROUSSEL JENNIFER JJJOHN T 8528 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 160.78
26106700140000 RAYMUS TRISHA 8524 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 160.78
26106700150000 MCCANN FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 6238 WINDORAH WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700160000 HEISLER PAMELA JEAN 8523 HEATHER CROSS WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700170000 MAXIMA BARTLETT SURVIVORS TRUST 8527 HEATHER CROSS WAY 1.00 150,78
26106700180000 SHARLENE DAVIDSON LIVING TRUST 8531 HEATHER CROSS WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700190000 REIMCHE TROY A/LAURA A 8535 HEATHER CROSS WAY 1.00 150.78
2B6106700200000 BALLUCH TIMOTHY LAUJENNIFER A B538 HEATHER CROSS WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700210000 LE NIKKI KHIETPHAN 8543 HEATHER CROSS WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700220000 MARK J CHRISTEN LIVING TRUST 8547 HEATHER CROSS WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700230000 MARK J CHRISTEN LIVING TRUST 6208 WEATHERGLASS CT 1.00 150,78
26106700240000 FORD THOMAS/PATRICIA A 6204 WEATHERGLASS CT 1.00 150.78
26108700250000 MAXIMA BARTLETT SURVIVORS TRUST 6200 WEATHERGLASS CT 1.00 150.78
261068700260000 LANDI ROBERT C 6201 WEATHERGLASS CT 1.00 160.78
26106700270000 GROVER MORRIS TRUST 6205 WEATHERGLASS CT 1.00 150.78
26106700280000 DIAZ GONZALEZ ARTURQ/GONZALEZ ROSEANN 6209 WEATHERGLASS CT 1.00 150.78
26106700290000 STADLER SCOTT E/MARGARET M 6218 WINDORAH WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700300000 SHARLENE C DAVIDSON LIVING TRUST 8214 WINDORAH WAY 1.00 150.78
26105700310000 MELEOBELLE LP 6210 WINDORAH WAY 1.00 160.78
26106700320000 SMITH RODNEY R/KELLIE E/RICKEY R 6221 WINDORAH WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700330000 JOAN D OXFORD FAMILY TRUST 6225 WINDORAH WAY 1.00 150.78
6106700340000 SHARLENE C DAVIDSON LIVING TRUST 8508 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
264106700350000 BALAKRISHNA VINOD/PERMA NARAYANASWAMY 8504 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 150.78
26106700360000 CHAVEZ ALBERTCO 8500 CLOUDCROFT WAY 1.00 160.78
26106700370000 ORANGEVALE RECREATION/PARK DISTRICT 0.00 0.00
et
TOTALS: 36,00 5428.08
Page 1 05/04/17

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT - Lﬁ

KENNETH GROVE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT shitonaullngrous

ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2017-18

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 111



RESOLUTION #17-06-577

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE

—_— ' ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT PROCLAIMING
OVrarks ok
ORANGEVALE ake
RECREATION & aetter!

PARK DISTRICT

AND THE MONTH OF JULY 2017 AS
PARKS MAKE LIFE BETTER!® MONTH

Whereas, Parks and Recreation makes lives and communities better now and
in the future; and

Whereas, it is established through statewide public opinion research, 98% of
California households visit a local park at least once a year; two in three
households visit a park once a month; 50% of households participate in an
organized recreation program; and most park use is with family and friends;
and

Whereas, residents value recreation as it provides positive alternatives for
children and youth to reduce crime and mischief especially during nonschool
hours; it promotes the arts, it increases social connections; aids in therapy;
and promotes lifelong learning; and

Whereas, residents value their parks for access to outdoor spaces for children
and adults to play and be active; exercise and group sports; and

Whereas, parks provide access to the serenity and the inspiration of nature
and outdoor spaces as well as preserve and protect the historic, natural and
cultural resources in our community; and

Whereas, thousands of the residents of Orangevale including children, youth,
families, adults, seniors, businesses, community organizations, and visitors
benefit from the wide range of parks, trails, open space, sports fields, tennis
courts, facilities and programs including Orangevale Community Park,
Orangevale Swimming Pool, Orangevale Community Center, Almond Park,
ete. provided by Orangevale Recreation & Park District; and

Whereas, the Orangevale Recreation & Park District urges all its residents to
recognize that parks and recreation enriches the lives of its residents and
visitors as well as adding value to the community’s homes and
neighborhoods; and

Whereas, July is Parks & Recreation Month nationally,

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Orangevale Recreation & Park
District hereby proclaims July 2017 as Parks Make Life Better!® Month and
in doing so, urges all its citizens to use and enjoy its parks, trails, open space,
facilities, and recreation opportunities.

6826 Hazel Avenue Approved this 8t day of June 2017
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Michael Stickney, Chair Board of Directors

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 112



STAFF REPORT

w DATE: 6-8-17
OV‘ = TO: Board of Directors

PARKS - o
ORANGEVALE FROM: Greg Foell, District Administrator

RECREATION & giypjpcT: APPROVE RESOLUTION 17-06-578, RESOLUTION AMENDING

SALARY SCHEDULE

RECOMMENDATION

Approve Resolution 17-06-578, Resolution Amending the District Salary Schedule.

BACKGROUND

In September 2012, the California Public Employee Pension Reform Act, commonly referred to
as CalPEPRA, was enacted. CalPEPRA contains several changes with respect to how pension
benefits are administered for employees hired after January 1, 2013, including a requirement
that the employee must pay a contribution rate equal to fifty percent (50%) of the employee
and employer combined normal cost of retirement benefits. New employees are also subject to
different benefit formulas and retirement ages, caps on compensation, compensation
calculations, purchases of retirement calculations and other provisions contained in CalPEPRA.
These requirements were implemented with the adoption of the new personnel manual.

With respect to existing employees hired before January 1, 2013, CalPEPRA states a standard
that employees pay a contribution rate equal to fifty percent (50%) of the employee and
employer combined normal cost of retirement benefits as well. CalPEPRA further provides that
after January 1, 2018 the employer may require existing employees to pay the above
contribution rate if an agreement with affected employees to do so cannot be reached. The
transition to the 50/50 formula was approved by the Board in July of 2016 with the first phase
implemented on September 1, 2016.

The second phase is now scheduled to be implemented on July 1, 2017 with the attached Salary
Scale Schedule Amendment. The District has received an actuarial study from the Sacramento
County Employee Retirement System (“SCERS”) and determined that the second step would
increase the employee contribution rate by 2.3%. After determining the impact of the increased
contribution rate on the employee’s net income, a salary adjustment of 2.6% is needed to
prevent a reduction in current salary. Attached is the resolution which adopts the salary
adjustment and amends the District’s current Salary Resolution.

RECOMMENDED MOTION

| move we approve Resolution 17-06-578, Resolution Amending the District Salary Schedule.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 113



OV | i RESOLUTION NO. 17-06-578
PARKS

ORANGEVALE RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION & RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

PARK DISTRICT AMENDING THE DISTRICT SALARY SCHEDULE

WHEREAS, the ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK
DISTRICT (the “District”) a political subdivision of the State of California,
and a recreation and park district formed pursuant to Public Resources Code
Section 5780, et seq., is authorized to appoint the necessary employees,
define qualifications and duties, and provide a schedule of compensation

for performance of those duties pursuant to Public Resources Code Section
5786.1.

WHEREAS, all employees of the District are employed on an at-
will basis, meaning that either party may terminate the employment
relationship at any time, with or without cause, and it is not the intention of
the District to alter that relationship by virtue of this Resolution,

WHEREAS, on August 20, 2015 the District adopted the Salary
Resolution of Orangevale Recreation & Park District (the “Salary
Resolution”) which established a basic compensation plan for all

classifications of employees and adopted a salary schedule and
compensation plan; and

WHEREAS, on September 12, 2012, the California Public
Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (CalPEPRA) was enacted and
became effective January 1, 2013; and ‘

WHEREAS, as required by CalPEPRA, all new regular full-time
and part-time employees hired after January 1, 2013 pay a contribution rate
of fifty percent (50%) of the combined employee and employer normal cost
of retirement benefits; and

WHEREAS, the District Administrator has met with all regular
full-time and part-time District employees hired prior to January 1, 2013 to
discuss the provisions of CalPEPRA, including the legislative preference
that all employees pay a contribution rate of fifty percent (50%) of the

combined employer and employee normal cost of his/her retirement
benefits; and

WHEREAS, on July 14, 2016 the District adopted a resolution
providing for implementation of the requirements of CalPEPRA
6826 Hazel Avenue (CalPEPRA Resolution), including a two-step adjustment for regular full-

Orangevale, CA 95662 time and part-time employees hired prior to January 1, 2013 which will
916-988-4373

OVparks.com

Resolution No. 17-06-578 Page 1 of 3
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 114



-,_;‘\ 1 § 2 0 .
OV o result in all regular full-time and part-time employees paying an employee
PARKS contribution rate of fifty percent (50%) of the combined employee and

ORANGEVALE employer normal cost as determined by SCERS by July 1, 2017; and
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT ‘ WHEREAS, the Sacramento County Employees Retirement

System (“SCERS”) has provided the District with an actuarial study with
respect to calculating the combined employer and employee normal cost of

retirement benefits, and the contribution rate increase to be implemented on
July 1, 2017 will be 2.3%; and

WHEREAS, after discussion with the employees of the District and
to implement the provisions of CalPEPRA, the District feels it is in the best
interest of the District to amend the salary schedule and compensation plan
to minimize the impact of the increased contribution rates on the employees;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED
AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The District hereby amends the salary and
compensation plan attached as Exhibit A to the Salary Resolution by
increasing the salary ranges stated therein by 2.6 percent effective July 1,
2017. The salary schedule and compensation plan attached hereto as
Exhibit A is hereby adopted and replaces the Exhibit A currently attached
to the Salary Resolution.

Section 2. It is the intention of the Board of Directors to amend
the salary and compensation plan attached as Exhibit A to the Salary
Resolution by increasing the salary ranges stated therein for regular full-
time and part-time employees in an amount commensurate with the
increased employee contribution rate as determined by the actuarial study
provided by SCERS to be effective July 1, 2017.

Section 3. All other provisions of the Salary Resolution are still
in full force and effect.

Section 4. Unless otherwise indicated, all provisions of this
Resolution shall become effective as of the date it is adopted.

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Resolution No. 17-06-578 Page 2 of 3
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 115



\7—\\' Passed and adopted this 8th day of June, 2017, on motion by Director
() PARKS

, seconded by Director and by the following
ORANGEVALE vote:
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

By

Chair, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Resolution No. 17-06-578

Page 3 of 3
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017

Page 116



oL Ty leziee |nesiLe locooe [viswe [089°Te [rer1e |evo'6T |0ETST S B
oLv'c  lotee  lesie |coo'c |6s8T |eTLT |v6ST 0LY'T |ESET [ MI8[D AIRS WWPY
“10]D/99Y ‘IS0H/ASND 3pId T Dim U
ooy |189r [o0ser |pebiiv |19v6E [285°LE |T6L'SE [880°FE |SOV'TE _ : i s
T66'c |Lose  lszoc |esve [88T€ [zele [€86°T |I¥8T |SOLT I1 1SOH/3SND
prmg ‘I SO[D AISS WWPY TI DM U
T9LCS |6vC0S |958°Ly |8LS'Sy |LOV'EY |OVETY zig'et |LoyiLe |TILSE : ‘ PR
Tocy  |Ls1v  |sse€ |seL€ |L19°€ |svv'e |18T°€ [STI'E |9L6T PI00D) AJRS UIUPY ‘PI00D) UOUESIY
697729 |76265 |ILyoS |ISLES [0Tels [I8L'8y [8Sy9v |9vTyy |6ETTY _ v _ 5
831°'s  |iv6'v |90L% |c8vy [89T% [s90r [eL8'c [L89°¢ TI16°€E ] Jostazadng o5y ‘URLIRIO] DIM IUTEIA
719799 |Spre9 |€2r 09 [ovs'Ls |908°%S [961°CS [TIL6Y cve'Ly |680°SY L
Too'c 2875 |s€0's |96L% [L9Sv |oSey [€pI%  [Sw6'E [LSL'E 11 Josiazedng UONESI0NY
08TTL |988°L9 |£597wO [WLST9 |ev9'8s [0S8°CS |06T°ES L5905 SHT8Y R R
ov6c  |LS9's  |ssE's |1el’s |L88°v |pSOY |eevy'y |1TT¥ |0T0F wTeuey 00y ‘I [QUUOSIJ/AOURUL]
9ES'SR |€9r 18 |FBS'LL |688°EL [ILEOL [0TOLY |BT8'E9 63L509" [168°LS RS e BRI R
SZ1°L  168L9 |S9v9 |LSTO [p98'S |[S8S°C [61€°S [990°C |ST8Y -1dng eoueurq “1dng ooy “1dng jied
026007 |628°T01 |086196. |29 6 |£96:L8 |SLLE8 [SBL6L [986°SL [89€7TL AT
0168 198y |c80'8 |L69°L |oce’L |186°9 |6¥9°9 |zEe'9 |1€0%9 JojensiuIpy J010sICl
6 8 L 9 ¢ v € (4 1 NOILLISOd
%S %S %S
SIZ 07 | SIASI | SIX 01 %9°Z [PV SYIDS AILIL 40fr
ALIAHONOT

aguey Arefeg 8107/L10T

SAFAOTIINA HINLL T1Nd AONVYI AUVIVS

LOTILSIA YA Vd ANV NOLLVIIDHAH ATVAIDNVIO

V LI9IHXH

Page 117

June 8, 2017

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



2

ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

RESOLUTION #__17-06-579

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM
THE PARKLAND DEDICATION FUND (088C)

TO THE GENERAL FUND (3324A)

WHEREAS, the Orangevale Recreation and Park District has
accumulated funds in the Parkland Dedication Trust Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Orangevale Recreation and
Park District have approved the District Master Plan and the yearly capital
improvement plan, as capital projects in the 2016/2017 fiscal year budget; and

WHEREAS, these specific improvements were budgeted with the
intention of using funds from the Parkland Dedication Trust Fund.

WHEREAS, the total cost for this project to be transferred is $175,000.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the
Board of Directors of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District that
$175,000 be transferred from the Parkland Dedication Trust Fund (088C),
account number 5500000 into the General Fund (332A), Fund Center 9339332,
revenue account #95952900 — In Lieu Transfer.

ON A MOTION by Director , seconded by Director
, the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District Board of Directors this 8t day of June
2017 by the following vote to wit.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Chair, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 118



-

OV, ‘ RESOLUTION # 17-06-580

PARKS

ORANGEVALE RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE

RECREATION & ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

PARK DISTRICT AUTHORIZING A 2016/17 FINAL BUDGET AMENDMENT
FOR FUND 332A

WHEREAS, the Orangevale Recreation & Park District has established a Park
Development Fee Trust Account (3321) to construct park improvement projects; and

WHEREAS, increased costs for the Orangevale Community Park — Oak &
Filbert Pathway Project require a budget amendment to Fund 332A, Fund Center
9339332 in the amount of $85,000; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED, by the
Orangevale Recreation & Park District Board of Directors that $85,000 be increased for
the following accounts:

Increase Account 42420200 by $85,000
Increase Account 95952900 by $85,000

ON A MOTION by Director _, seconded by Director

, the foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the Board of
Directors of the Orangevale Recreation & Park District this 8™ day of June, 2017 by the
following vote to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

BY:

Chair, Board of Directors

ATTEST:
Clerk of the Board

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 119



STAFF REPORT

g " DATE: 6-8-17
OV“ ~~ TO: Board of Directors

PARKS o o
ORANGEVALE FROM: Greg Foell, District Administrator

RECREATION & SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF THE AGREEMENT WITH BENJAMIN BLIVEN TO

HOST THE BUMFEST EVENT AT ORANGEVALE COMMUNITY
PARK ON JULY 22, 2017

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the Agreement with Benjamin Bliven to host the Bumfest Event at Orangevale
Community Park on July 22, 2017.

BACKGROUND

Staff has worked with Benjamin Bliven on the fee structure and agreement for Bumfest event.
The agreement is attached.

RECOMMENDED MOTION
| move we approve the Agreement with Benjamin Bliven to host the Bumfest event in
Orangevale Community Park on July 22, 2017.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 120



RECEIVED MAY 4 2017

Orangevale Recreation & Park District
6826 Hazel Avenue Orangevale, CA 95662
Phone (916) 988-4373 * Fax (916) 988-3496 * info@ovparks.com

Supplemental Special Use Application

This Special Use/Special Event Application shall be submitted in addition and as a supplement to the Standard Use of Facilities
Application. Complete this application, attach any necessary supplemental information and submit to the District Office
located in the Orangevale Community Center at 6826 Hazel Avenue, Orangevale CA 95662. Application must be submitted at
least twelve (12) weeks in advance of the date requested. Submission of this application does not constitute approval of use,
and no advertising of the event should occur until written approval is obtained. ' :

DATE OF APPLICATION: ﬂG/ 0"7/, / 207

CONTACT INFORMATION
Name of Applicant:}ﬁﬁ IZ/M/ /7 /Z/ (VEr7 . : _
Address: 2 s P City/State/Zip: i&ff yidld rChf%&/ ; C/q 25’ Zf@?
Phone #: 0//[') q pﬁ‘ 531/;4/ Email: ,cé}ﬂw)‘{?)ﬂﬂ é//(/wé) ﬂﬂfl@% Cot—
Sponsoring (.)rganization/Company: /L/ ﬁi 0 <
Type of Organization: 3 Non Profit [J Private [J Corporation O other
Name of Event Organizer: ﬂé’ﬂ]&ﬂ/h 7 ﬁ/ [ LA
Organization Web Site: / ‘ Organization Email: /(// A’

EVENT DETAILS

Event Name: ﬁ’/f’l’.f 'F(S”{’

Type of Event: ﬂ'Concer’g (3 Festival [J Celebration (3 Run/Walk I Other
Event Location: )4 m;?h/ HW/Z Vil

Purpose of Event: ﬂ‘ijM fefease /ﬁfbmm’-//‘m G pgp €444 aeMmept, ,ﬂ?ﬂ%ﬂl{/ﬁfaﬁ‘f
Overall Estimated Attendance: ‘/: /w ' Daily ' l/Aduttsv e /02 . Children t-"‘

How does the community of Orangevale benefit from this event? ot Vﬂi/ bl C—t“/‘j{_/ o/ e ness .
fﬁmmdni/u 2106 69 e nt--
/ g

Is this a Public or Private event? O Public /Ef Private O Other

Has this event been produced before? 0 ves No “1f yes, previous attendance:

If yes, list previous name, date and location of event:

Description of Event - Provide a detailed description of your event {i.e. listing of activities, entertainmenf, and vendors that
will be included in your event, listing of any special equipment and structures, etc. You may attach additional pages or
materials as needed. m JOI}:"L/] /Uﬂﬁ w1 SIC :é 9/7 wt /A C‘)(/C/}ﬂﬁ’
Lomedly, poetry A L1l i trig. Prongolran ot g_/%_
lest. Dumphlors Linclrvnsat /a5 Suplies [ aenerd ol il ) be 5@9};
artsts wnll muogly eapl Collabora W) athndics as music

NI Y/ 272Y-2.4 ad 7‘9/&;//0/1 45 basks. No nlors

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 121



Set-Up ~ List belgw the days/dates needed to set up the event.
Day 1: Day of Week & IL Date m 7/A%_ Start Time é [ 877, End Time __/. s pom
Day 2: Day of Week Date Start Time End Time

Event Dates — List below the days/dates of the event. ¢
Day 1: Day of Week Sg 7 Date m '7[23 Start Time __/ End Time g felia)

Day 2: Day of Week Date i Start Time End Time
Day 3: Day of Week Date Start Time End Time
Day 4: Day of Week Date Start Time ' End Time

Tear-Down Dates - List below the days/dates needed to tear-down the event.

Day 1: Day of Week __ $4 £ Date M ‘7[21 Start Time __ S EndTime jﬁfgﬂ
Day 2: Day of Week . Date Start Time End Time
EVENT SITE PLAN/MAP

Attach a detailed site plan/map of the event layout including locations of vendors, equipment, activities, parking, etc. The site
plan should be submitted on 8 %” x 11” or 8 %" x 14” white paper. Please indicate a directional sign showing north. Include a
key if you use symbols denoting event areas.

EVENT ACTIVITY PLAN

Check all activities that apply and items used in conjunction with those activities that will be at your event. Please mark the
location of these activities and items on your Site Plan/Map.

Entertainment
Amplified Music ~ Live Hours — Start / 9\ £ _End /S'K)
O3 Amplified Music — Recorded Hours — Start " End ©
3 Carnival Booths/Rides Hours — Start End
/G(Other 0{:"/’}5/’ ,E;’@oﬁ?:‘ Hours — Start _ /A J End 8 2
‘03 Sporting Activities
O Type Hours — Start End
0 Type Hours — Start End
B Vendors
{7 Food & Non Alcoholic BEVEIAZES. covrearmseerescnemnensssnenCOUNTY OF Sacramento Environmental Health permit
_BFWerchandise.....ccvconenes e Must follow local & state laws — pJ?‘ far/—h k){j b&Ady .

3 Alcoholic BEVErages.....ouvmmmmeseisesssssssssnsnsarenesnnREQUIres ABC & District permit and security 10 Rusiness

??Equipment :
'se of tents, temporary structures, staging, portable seating, fencing, portable generators subject to Sacramento Metro
Fire District inspection & permit.

O stage(s) 7 pance Floor(s) 73 Portable Seating
O Fencing 3 Tents & Canopies 3 Portable Hand Wash Station
“"Electrical Generators [ Portable Restrooms O other

7 Animals on event grounds — Petting zoo, pony rides, horses, etc Explain:

3 vehicles on event grounds — car show, etc Explain:

3 1 request overnight camping. Explain:
; Public Address, Microphone, Loud Speaker(s)

3 1 request access to Orangevale Recreation & Park District water source

3 | request Access to Orangevale Recreation & Park District electric source

INSURANCE

You will be required to provide appropriate insurance coverage as listed in the permit agreement, How do you plan to provide
the required insurance for your event? U h OV /ﬂ?fk-} aucl [ ;

ALCOHOL MANAGEMENT PLAN

If your event is serving OR selling alcohol, please describe your plan for managing alcohol at your event on a separate sheet
and attach to this application. Include in your description your sales plan (cash, tickets), method of serving, who will serve the

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 122



alcohol! (professionals, volunteers), number of service locations, how ID’s will be checked, how you will monitor underage
drinking, and if you have an alcohol sponsor(s).

For events with expected attendance of over 200 per day,
the following plans need to be submitted on a separate sheet.

PARKING & TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN

Please describe your plan for parking and traffic control for your event. Your traffic plan may need review by the Sacramento

County Sheriff's Department and/or the California Highway Patrol. Please indicate parking locations and traffic flow control on
your site plan.

SANITATION, WASTE & UTILITY PLAN

You are responsible for properly disposing of all waste and garbage throughout the term of your event. Immediately upon
conclusion of the event, the area must be returned to a clean condition. Please describe your plan for waste collection and
removal. You are required to provide restroom accommodations for event attendees. Depending on the size and location of

your event, you may need to rent portable restrooms. You may also be required to provide hand washing stations. Please
describe your plan for providing these items.

STAFFING PLAN
Please describe your plan for staffing your event. Include in your description the number and type of staff at your event.

EMERGENCY AND SAFETY PLAN

Please describe your plan for handling emergencies at your event. Include in your description provision for security guards,
on-site medical treatment (first aid station or ambulance), and evacuation plan in an emergency. Also include your plan for
addressing accessibility to your event for persons with disabilities.

EVENT MARKETING PLAN

Please ensure that you have event approval before you begin to market, advertise or promote your event. Please describe
your plan for marketing your event, once you have approval. Please include radio, television, and other media you will be
utilizing and if you plan on placing signs or banners on District property.

NOTIFICATION PLAN

An event can change the normal flow of residential and business activity potentially causing a negative impact to the
surrounding community. As the event organizer, you are responsible for providing notification of the Event and any possible
disruption of traffic which could occur in the surrounding neighborhood to all necessary regulatory agencies, businesses and
residences within four (4) blocks of the Event at least one {1) month prior to the Event. Such notification shall be by maril or
personal delivery and provide District with written proof that such notifications have been made. Please describe your plan
for handling notification.

Statement of Responsibility for Liability or Damage/Receipt of Rules & Regulations User agrees to be solely
responsible for any and all claims, loss, damages, costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or
resulting from any injury to persons or damage to property which arise out of its use of the District’s facilities. User
agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers against
any and all such claims, demands, causes of action, suits and expenses, arising out of or resulting from its use of
the District’s facilities. |, 22 : ‘ (group representative), the undersigned, have
received the rental policies and procedures; and have read and hereby agree to abide by all rules and regulations.

Jé 7 W DATE: 475/0¢ / 2/

CUSTOMER SIGNATURE:

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 123




RECEIVED MAY 4 217

Orangevale Recreation & Park District  District Use Only
' P 6826 Hazel Avenue Orangevale, CA 95662 -
OVP ARKS Phone (916) 988-4373 * Fax (916) 988-3496 * info@ovparks.com | PermitH:
%%%fﬁgﬁ% RENTAL APPLICATION ApprokEd Kyl
PARK DISTRICT

Please fill out this form completely and submit this form and payment to the Orangevale Recreation & Park District office. Applica-
tions must be received no less than two weeks prior to your event and no more than one year in advance. It is understood that this
application is only a request for facility use. Submitting this application in no way indicates approval for use of District facilities.

RENTAL CUSTOMER , . ,,
Bliwa

Name of Individual: ge v '@m (‘{4

Name of Organization (if applicable):

Authorized Representative:

To reserve on behalf of a company or organization, you must provide the District with a signed letter of authorization on official
letterhead, granting you the right to act of the group’s behalf.

If your organization is a non-profit group, please enter non-profit [S01 (c) 3] 1D #:
Address: o Ve, City: dﬁ(‘ michae l
Phone number: 4/(1 ?(:?4 53‘/4 A//TA

Alternate contact: f\/@ﬁz}l (?dmlmd

zip: 454,03

- V vy
E-mail: bz@émmﬂ_@mr[ '

Phone number: QZé 4/? Mﬂcz

Fax number:

FACILITY REQUESTED

¢ Orangevale Community Center - 6826 Hazel Avenue

OAuditorium (capacity 300 dining)
COMeeting Room (capacity 100 dining)

OSoccer (overlaps softball fields)

OGym (if an athletic event)

OClassroom {capacity 25)

» Orangevale Community Center Athletic Fields - 6826 Hazel Avenue

[Softball #1 (north)

e Orangevale Youth Center Complex - 6745 Hazel Avenue

OOrangevale Youth Center (capacity 49) OJOrangevale Youth Center Baseball field

e QOrangevale Community Park - 7301 Filbert Avenue
Soccer field #1 OSoccer field #2
OGroup Picnic Area (capacity 100} OFamily Picnic Area (capacity 32)

OPavilion

Other facility:

CUse of stage
OKitchen

OSoftball #2 (south)

OJHorse Arena

Mmphitheater

%
Event Date(s): W

2

Day(s) of week: M T W Th F@

Attendance: Adults Children

Type of Event: MUSIC [pncert 7015

RENTAL TIME

Your rental time is from the time you arrive at the facility, until the time you leave, Rental time must include an adequate amount of
time for set up and clean up of the facility. All of the rental hours must be consecutive.

Set up time Event time Clean up time Kitchen use time
From: 6? /pm- From: ) ) amy/pn’ | From: q am(rs” | From: am/pm
T (AR ﬂ'@ T 24 am/pf | To: #] amyp | To: am/pm
— Pagelof2 —

Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 124



EQUIPMENT

Please indicate the equipment you will need {subject to availability). A fee may be a charged for some equipment.

Number of - | Microphone Podium Other
Chairs /Z\ (1 available) ~ (1 available) - \
Number of Coffee Pot TV/DVD Other
. ~
Tables arl (2 available) (1 available) N \\

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The District requires all facility users to provide a Certificate of Insurance in the amount of $500,000 in liability coverage, with the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District named as additionally insured. You may provide your own insurance or purchase special
event insurance through the District. Generally, the insurance requirement does not apply to the rental of picnic areas as long as
medium or high risk (i.e., bounce house) activities are not involved. The Horse Arena insurance requirement is $2,000,000.

O | will provide my own insurance. /E( | wish to purchase insurance from the District.
EVENT INFORMATION
Please answer the following questions to help us determine your fees. Certain activities may be eligible for fee discounts.
e Isyour event EIPuinc,Zﬁivate
If public, please give name and phone number for public event information:
¢ Will a charge, fee, or donation be collected for this event? ,ﬁ(es ONo
If yes, for what purpose will the proceeds be used? ............... ...OFinancial gain ElCharity/dFundraisepdCost of Event

Please list the type (i.e., admission, food charge) and amount of charge: 0//).’44 fzdn %M&/‘ﬁdf éﬂﬂ(d/
for _ownt. ?;/rz:hc:(@ of  eecords /e rcinaadise

e Will there be religious, political, or union actiVILIES? ... e DYesN@

0 Will TOOT DE SETVEL BT tHE BVENT? 1eroeroeesoeeooeeesveseesssssessssseessssessatassastassassessssssassessesasssssrasasessesessessrsssessnsestsssossessesassassaeses LJYES TSQ\JO

If yes, and you are using a caterer, please list caterer's name and phone #

¢ Will alcohol be Oserved or (Isold at your BVENT? ..o dere e OYes 8No

if yes, please list the time alcohol will be served

e Will you be bringing any apparatus, equipment, or additional tables and chairs to your event? ... Yes ONo

Ifyes, please list Y/SiC_04 Jigimes £, mrm//ﬁ ¢rs, qzﬂemfars, art yap,ofzée

v’ __ML_L.C_
e At your event, will there be a.......... yzrl:we band EIRecorded music ElPubhc address (D) // %4 a7 /f

Statement of Responsibility for Liability or Damage/Receipt of Rules & Regulations

User agrees to be solely responsible for any and all claims, loss, damages, costs and expenses, including
attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any injury to persons or damage to property which arise out
of its use of the District’s facilities. User agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District, its
officers, agents, employees and volunteers against any and all such claims, demands, causes of action, suits
and expenses, arising out of or resulting from its use of the District’s facilities.

I, (group representative), the undersigned, have received the rental policies and procedures; and have read
and hereby agree to abide by all rules and regulatlons
CUSTOMER SIGNATURE

i / T — onte: LD / /ﬁ ‘7/// 2—07

REVIEWED BY OVPARKS REPRESENTATIVE: DATE:

— Page2of2 —

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 125



PERMIT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into this 8™ day of June 2017, by and between
Orangevale Recreation and Park District, a recreation and park district formed pursuant to
California Public Resources Code Section 5780, et seq., a political subdivision of the State of
California located in Sacramento County, hereinafter referred to as the “District”, and Benjamin
Bliven, hereinafter referred to as the “Permittee”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District is the owner of certain real property located in the County of
Sacramento, State of California known as Orangevale Community Park, located at 7301 Filbert
Avenue, Orangevale, California, hereinafter referred to as the "Property"; and

WHEREAS, Permittee desires to use the Property for the Bum Fest special event for the
public on Saturday, July 22, 2017; and

WHEREAS, District finds it is in the public interest to enter into this Permit Agreement
with Permittee for the use of the Property.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually understood and agreed by and between the parties
hereto as follows:

SCOPE OF PERMIT AND USE OF PROPERTY

L District agrees to grant Permittee the non-exclusive right to use the Property for
the Bum Fest Special Event on Saturday, July 22 (the “Event”) for attendance by the general
public. The event will utilize the stone amphitheater and surrounding areas for
music/performances with amplified sound and art exhibits and demonstrations. Permittee shall
also have exclusive use of the areas of the Property outlined in the Application for Use of
Facilities (the “Application”), a copy of which is to be completed and attached hereto as Exhibit
A and incorporated herein by this reference. Permittee shall have the right to impose reasonable
rules and regulations to be observed by the general public to ensure the safety of the participants
at said Event. Permittee agrees to comply with all District rules, regulations and policies with
respect to the use of the Property. Permittee is authorized to begin Event setup on Saturday July
22, 2017 at 8 a.m. and is required to complete Event take-down and cleanup by Saturday, July
22, 2017 at 10 p.m. Permittee is required to coordinate all activities with the District. Permittee
agrees that the security deposit will be forfeited if Permittee fails to complete all cleanup of the
Property by Saturday, July 22, 2017 at 10 p.m.

Under no circumstances shall Permittee and/or Permittee’s exhibitors,
concessionaires and/or officials have an open fire (wood fire, bonfire, campfire) on District
property unless specifically authorized by the District in writing. In the event an open fire is
made, Permittee shall cause the person and/or persons responsible to leave the Property
immediately. Permittee shall assume responsibility for any and all injuries and/or damages
which occurs and/or arises from the activities authorized under this Paragraph. District shall not
assume any liability to Permittee, and/or any other person as a result of the activities authorized

Page -1-

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 126



by this Paragraph. Permittee shall be responsible for notifying any and all exhibitors,
concessionaires, agents and/or officials that District shall have no liability for any and all injuries
and/or damages which occur on the Property. Permittee shall require any person wanting to
utilize the Property for camping purposes as authorized by this paragraph to sign a waiver in the
form to be provided by District, the original of which shall be provided to District. Permittee
understands and agrees that it assumes any and all liability for any personal injury and/or
damages resulting from the use of the Property as provided for herein.

Permittee understands that members of the public frequently use Orangevale
Community Park and that the Permit being granted is for non-exclusive use and must be shared
with other members of the public. The District agrees, however, to not schedule any other events
and/or activities on the Property for the dates of the Permit being granted herein.

Permittee agrees and understands that it accepts the Property in an as-is condition
and is responsible for inspecting all areas within the Property and immediate surrounding areas
for hazards and will take any necessary steps to protect Event participants and attendees until
corrective/remedial measures are implemented.

Permittee’s use of the Property is limited to those purposes and those activities
specifically described in this Agreement. This Agreement is to be strictly construed according to
its terms and no use of District Property for purposes or activities other than those specified
herein is authorized hereby. Failure of Permittee to comply with this condition may result in
revocation of this Agreement.

NATURE OF THE INTEREST GRANTED

2 It is specifically understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement
does not convey any right, title or interest in the Property to the Permittee other than as
specifically stated herein for the purpose of using the Property for the Event and other uses stated
in the Application. No relationship between the parties is intended to be created by this
Agreement other than as specifically stated herein.

FEES

3 Tn consideration for the use of the Property as provided for herein, Permittee shall
pay to the District a security deposit of five hundred dollars (8500.00) (the “Deposit™) no later
than Friday, June 23, 2017, which Deposit shall be used to reserve the dates and pay for any
damages associated with the terms of this Permit should said damages not be repaired by
Permittee. The parties agree that the District can deduct the expense of repairing and/or replacing
any property damage, claims and/or any other unpaid sums owed by Permittee under this
Agreement from the Deposit with the balance returned to the Permittee within thirty (30) days of
the last day of any repairs. Permittee shall forfeit all or a portion of the Deposit if the event is
cancelled in accordance with the schedule set forth in Paragraph 4 below. The District shall
provide a detailed itemized list of all deductions from the Deposit to the Permittee.

Page -2-

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 127



As further consideration for the use of the Property, Permittee shall pay to the
District a rental fee of One Hundred and Fifty dollars ($150.00) (the “Rental Fee™) no later than
Friday, June 23, 2017 (30 days in advance).

If the event is cancelled for any reason more than ninety (90) days prior to the
scheduled date, the District agrees it will refund the entirety of the Deposit paid pursuant to
Paragraph 3 above.

If the event is cancelled for any reason within ninety (90) days prior to the
scheduled date, the District agrees to refund any monies paid by Permittee as follows:

Within 89 to 60 days prior to the event, 50% of the Deposit
Within 59 to 30 days prior to the event, 25 % of the Deposit
Within 29 to 1 days prior to the event, 0% Deposit.

CHARGES BY PERMITTEE

4, Permittee shall have the right to charge members of the public for parking in the
areas designated for Permittee’s exclusive use under this Permit. Permittee shall not charge any
member of the public utilizing those portions of the Property for which Permittee is given non-
exclusive use.

OBLIGATIONS OF DISTRICT
5. Provided Permittee has paid all fees required under this Agreement, complied
with all of the requirements and is not in breach thereof, District understands and agrees to do the
following:
a. District agrees to provide for the non-exclusive use of the Property,

including the pavilion, restrooms, and parking facilities, and exclusive use of those facilities
specifically identified in the Application.

b. District shall furnish Permittee with electrical and water usage within the
capacity of the District’s facilities, for the Event on Saturday, July 22, 2017 only.

C: District shall ensure that at least one (1) staff member will be available
within a thirty (30) minute response time to assist with park maintenance emergencies

throughout the set-up and for the duration of the event.

d. District shall adjust all irrigation settings for the Property authorized for
use by Permittee to accommodate the event.

€. District shall refer all participant inquiries for the Event to Permittee.

Page -3-

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 128



OBLIGATIONS OF PERMITTEE

6. Permittee understand and agrees to do the following:

a. Permittee shall attend a pre-event inspection walk-through which will take
place on Monday, July 17, 2017 with the District’s representatives and the post-event inspection
walk-through that will take place on Monday, July 24, 2017 to determine pre and post event
facility conditions and damage.

b. Permittee agrees and understands that it shall reimburse the District for the
repair of any area of the Property or its surrounding areas which is damaged or diminished in
value by or related to operations or activities under this Permit, and shall pay for the District to
restore the area, to the condition existing immediately prior to the commencement of the
Permittee’s operations under this Permit, excepting normal wear and tear of turf areas. District
shall provide an itemized list of any such damages or repairs resulting from the event, within five
(5) days from the Event’s final walk-through on Monday, July 24, 2017. Permittee will have the

opportunity to make the necessary repairs outlined by the District in a time frame approved by
the District.

c. Permittee shall provide District with a proposed layout for the Event no
later than Friday, June 23, 2017 (30 days in advance) for review by the District. Any feedback
on the layout for the Event shall be given no later than Friday, June 30, 2017. Permittec agrees
to make any modifications and/or revisions to the layout for the Event if indicated by the District
that such modification and/or revision is necessary for the safety of the public and/or District
property.  Any modifications to the layout after approval shall be submitted in writing and
approved by District. Permittee shall remain responsible for the layout and ensure the safety of
participants and/or attendees of the Event, the general public, District employees and property,
and District shall not assume any such liability as a result of approving any layout. Permittee
shall also provide District with an emergency notification list.

d. Permittee agrees and understands that it has the sole responsibility at all
times to be knowledgeable about, fully understand, and to meet or exceed, at its own cost and
expense, all local, state and federal codes, laws, policies, and regulations associated with the
Event including but not limited to the provisions of the California Department of Alcoholic
Beverage Control, Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, Sacramento County Environmental
Management Department, Sacramento County Sheriff’s Department, and Sacramento County
Health Officer. Permittee shall file copies of all permits (and records of subsequent inspections)
with the District at least one (1) week prior to the Event (or within one (1) hour of on-site
inspections during the Event).

B Permittee agrees and understands that it shall bear any and all costs, fees,
charges or expense of any and all permits, applications, operations and/or activities under or
related to this Permit and the Event, and District shall not be liable and/or responsible for any
cost, fee, charge or expense associated therewith.

Page -4-

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 129



i Permittee shall be responsible for providing adequate security for
property, vehicles, participants, workers, and equipment, which are participating in the Event
during the period of this Permit. Permittee's security arrangements and operations shall be
coordinated and approved by District (plan must be submitted to District’s representative one
month prior to the Event). Permittee understands and agrees that District’s approval of any
security plan for the Event does not relieve Permittee from any and all liability therefore, and
further does not transfer any liability resulting from the Event to District.

g. Permittee shall be responsible for furnishing sufficient personnel and
equipment for traffic and crowd control and comply with any and all laws, rules and regulations
that are applicable thereto.

h. Permittee shall provide, at its own expense, portable restrooms, medical,
first aid facilities and personnel, and potable water, as are deemed necessary by the County of
Sacramento Environmental Health Department, the Sacramento Metro Fire District, and the
District to accommodate the expected number of people. Permittee shall comply with all laws,
rules and regulations governing the number and types of facilities, and any and all other rules
and regulations required to address the above needs. Permittee shall file Material Data Safety
Sheets (MSDS) for all cleaning agents requiring specifications with the District at least one (1)
month prior to the event. The plan to accommodate this section shall be submitted to the District
for approval no later than Friday, June 23, 2017. Permittee agrees to provide the necessary
number of portable restrooms as specified by the County of Sacramento Environmental
Management Department. Permittee shall provide for stocking and cleaning of each portable
restroom on an hourly basis during the event, and pumping of portable restrooms that meets the
County of Sacramento Environmental Management Department requirements and any other
laws, rules and/or regulations.

1. Permittee shall ensure that all designated fire access and gates remain
clear and accessible throughout the Event and use of the Property by Permittee.

J- Permittee understands and agrees that all costs, fees, charges and expenses
related to or incurred as a result of the use of the Property by the Permittee, its exhibitors,
concessionaires, invitees and/or officials; and, any and all costs, fees, charges and expenses
related to or incurred for emergency services as a result of the Event which are provided by
District, the County of Sacramento or other public safety agencies; and, all costs, fees, charges
and expenses related to or incurred as a result of the exercise of District’s right and commitment
to construct, maintain and remove temporary facilities shall be borne solely by the Permittee.

k. Permittee shall pay, and hold District and its property free and harmless
from, any and all of the following: (a) charges and fees for the furnishing of utilities (existing
electricity excepted) to the Event during the term of this Agreement; (b) all sales and use taxes
levied on transactions at the Event; (c) all taxes, assessments and other charges, if any, levied or
imposed by any governmental entity on any personal property placed by Permittee in, on or
about the Property; and (d) all real property taxes, assessments and standby charges, if any,
levied or assessed against the Property by a governmental entity as a result of Permittee's use and
occupation of the Property and/or any taxable possessory interest created by this Agreement. All

Page -5-

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 130



such fees, charges, taxes and assessments shall be paid as they become due and payable, but in
any event before they become delinquent.

I; Permittee, at its sole cost and expense, shall maintain the Property in good,
safe, clean, attractive and sanitary condition and repair, and shall repair all damage resulting
from use of the Property (excepting normal wear and tear of turf areas) by Permittee or
Permittee's employees, agents, contractors, concessionaires, guests or invitees.

m. Permittee acknowledges receipt of a copy of the District’s Park Ordinance
which specifies the rules and regulations governing use of District Property and facilities.
Permittee agrees to comply with the District’s Ordinance concerning the activities permitted to
be undertaken on District Property and the use thereof as specified in the District’s Park Use
Ordinance.

1 Permittee agrees that it shall not use the Property in any manner that will
constitute a waste, nuisance or unreasonable annoyance, provided that it is mutually understood
and agreed that the use for the Event as described in this Agreement and for other uses consistent
with such activity will in no event be deemed by the District to violate this prohibition against
nuisance and/or unreasonable annoyance.

INDEMNIFICATION

7: This Agreement is made upon the express condition that the District is to be free
from any and all liability and claims for damage by reason of any injury to any person or
persons, including Permittee, its agents, employees, concessionaires, exhibitors, invitees and/or
officials, or by reason of any injury to property of any kind whatsoever, and to whomever
belonging, including Permittee, its agents, concessionaires, exhibitors, officials, invitees and
employees, from any cause or causes whatsoever, in, upon or in anyway connected with the
Property or any use hereunder.

Permittee shall and hereby agrees to defend and indemnify District and save
District, its board of directors, officers, employees and agents harmless from and against all
claims, liability, losses, damages, expenses, causes of action, suits or judgments, together with
any and all costs or expenses connected with the investigation or defense thereof, including legal
fees, by reason of or resulting from: (a) the use, operation, condition, or management of the
Property, the Event and/or any temporary structures constructed on the Property; (b) the
performance of, or failure to perform any obligations of this Agreement by Permittee, or any
concessionaire, exhibitor, official, agent or employee of Permittee; (c) any alleged negligent act
or omission of Permittee, or Permittee’s employees, concessionaires, exhibitors, officials,
invitees, agents, or contractors in connection with any acts performed or required to be
performed by Permittee pursuant to this Agreement; and (d) the construction or installation of
any temporary structures on the Property. This indemnification shall not apply to the extent that
any claim is adjudicated as arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of District, its
officers, directors, agents or employees.

It is understood and agreed that the indemnification obligations created by this
Agreement shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

Page -6-

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 131



INSURANCE

8. Permittee shall carry and maintain during the life of this Agreement such public
liability, property damage, and contractual liability insurance, as well as fire and Worker’s
Compensation insurance as specified below: '

a. Public liability, property damage and contractual liability insurance.
Permittee agrees that it shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement, furnish public
liability and property damage insurance which includes, but is not limited to, personal injury,
property damage, losses relating to independent contractors, products and equipment, explosion,
collapse and underground hazards in the minimum amount of not less than $1,000,000.00 for
personal injuries as a result of any one occurrence on account of liability and a limit of not less
than $500,000.00 for property damage.

The public liability and property damage insurance furnished by Permittee
shall also name the District as an additional insured and shall directly protect, as well as provide
for the defense of the District, its officers, agents and employees, as well as Permittee, and
Permittee’s subcontractors, suppliers, agents, invitees, concessionaires, exhibitors, officials and
employees, from all suits, actions, damages, losses or claims of every type or description to
which they may be subjected by reason of, or resulting from Permittee’s operations on the
Property pursuant to this Agreement and all insurance policies shall so state. Said insurance
shall also specifically cover the contractual liability of Permittee Said insurance shall also
specify that it acts as primary insurance. Said insurance shall also insure performance by
Permittee of the indemnity provisions of this Agreement.

Permittee further agrees that it will, at all times during the term of this
Agreement, at its own cost and expense, obtain and keep in full force and effect naming both
Permittee and District as insureds thereunder, fire, windstorm and extended coverage insurance
in an amount equal to the actual replacement cost of all of Permittee’s personal property and
equipment utilized by Permittee in utilizing the Property pursuant to this Agreement.

b. Worker’s Compensation Insurance, Permittee shall carry full worker’s
compensation insurance coverage for all persons employed, either directly or through
contractors, in utilizing the Property as contemplated by this Agreement, in accordance with the
Worker’s Compensation Act contained in the Labor Code of the State of California.

By execution of this Agreement, Permittee certifies as follows:

I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code
which require every employer to be insured against liability for
Worker’s Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in
accordance with the provisions of that Code. I will comply with
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work
of this contract.

As part of the execution of this Agreement, Permittee agrees to furnish to
the District a certified copy of the insurance policies that it has taken out for public liability,

Page -7-

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 132



property damage and worker’s compensation insurance set forth above for the period covered by
this Agreement, or a certificate of such insurance. All insurance is to be placed with insurers
with a current A.M. Best rating A:VII or better unless otherwise accepted in writing by District.
Said certified polices of insurance or said certificates of insurance shall be furnished to the
District prior to commencing the services contemplated by this Agreement. Each such certified
policy or certificate of insurance shall bear an endorsement precluding the cancellation or
reduction in coverage of any such policy before the expiration of thirty (30) days after the
District shall have received written notification of such a cancellation or reduction.

Should Permittee fail to obtain and keep in force the insurance coverage
hereinabove required, the District shall have the right to cancel and terminate this Agreement
forthwith and without regard to any other provisions of this Agreement.

ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT

2. Permittee shall have no right, authority or power to assign, sell or transfer this
Agreement, or any right or privilege arising under this Agreement. Permittee agrees that it shall
have no right, authority or power to allow or permit any other person or party to have any
interest in or use any portion of the District’s facilities and/or the Property. However, Permittee
may allow concessionaires to enter upon the Property for the performance of functions and
services within the scope of the uses allowed to Permittee under the provisions of this Permit. To
avoid uncontrolled vending of merchandise during the period of this Permit, only those tenants
having an agreement with the District, and concessionaires, exhibitors and salespersons having
written agreements with Permittee, shall be allowed to sell to the public on the Property.

DEFAULT

10. The occurrence of any of the following events, may, at District’s election,
constitute a default by Permittee under the terms of this Agreement:

a. Failure to abide by any and all laws, rules and regulations of the District,
County of Sacramento, Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, and/or any other regulatory
agencies regarding the use and operation of the Property and other District facilities,

b. The issuance of an injunction by any court of competent jurisdiction
restraining the use of the site for any of the purposes for which Permittee or the District 1s
authorized,

e. The filing by Permittee of a voluntary petition in bankruptéy or institution

of proceedings in bankruptcy against Permittee and/or the adjudication of Permittee as being
bankrupt pursuant to such bankruptcy proceedings;

d. The appointment of a receiver of Permittee's assets, which results ina
liquidation of Permittee's business;

& The general assignment of this Permit by Permittee for the benefit of
creditors;

Page -8-

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 133



f. Failure to perform any provision of this Agreement, including the failure
to maintain the insurance required by the terms of this Agreement.

In the event of any such default, the District shall have the following rights and remedies,
in addition to any rights and remedies now or hereafter provided by law. All such remedies are
cumulative and may be exercised concurrently or separately.

Upon default by Permittee, the District can terminate the right of Permittee to possession
of its facilities at any time. Upon termination, Permittee shall immediately surrender and vacate
District facilities occupied by it. The District may immediately reenter and take possession of
the Property. Termination of the Agreement under this paragraph shall not relieve Permittee
from its obligations to indemnify the District as set forth above.

HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES

11.  Permittee shall not place and/or utilize any hazardous substances on the Property
unless authorized to do so by the District. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25359.7,
Permittee shall notify District in writing within a reasonable time of any material release of
hazardous substances and of any hazardous substances that have come to be located on or
beneath the site.

12.  Prior to the expiration of this Permit, Permittee shall at its sole expense remove all
items of personal property, including but not limited to all flammable and hazardous materials
and wastes as defined by state or federal law at the time of expiration of the Permit.

13.  Permittee shall make available for inspection to the District all records relating to
the maintenance, release, mitigation, and cleanup of any hazardous substances on the leased
premises.

14.  Permittee shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations

relating to hazardous materials and wastes, and shall timely comply with the orders of any
governmental agencies relating thereto.

15. District, and its authorized employees, officers and agents, and local law
enforcement personnel shall have the right to enter the property at any time to inspect the
premises.

CANCELLATION BY PERMITTEE

16.  Permittee may cancel this Permit and terminate all of its obligations at any time
subsequent to the commencement of the term upon the breach of District of, or its failure to
perform, any of the covenants or agreements contained in this Permit and the failure of District
to remedy any breach for a period of five (5) days after receipt of written notice from Permittee
of the existence of such breach. District shall not be considered to be in breach of this Agreement
during any period of major construction activity on the Property site taking more than fifteen

Page -9-

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 134



(15) days to complete, if District can institute temporary measures to lessen the effect of such
construction on the Permittee.

NOTICE

17. Service of Notice.

Any notice to or demand upon Permittee or District required or permitted to be
made under the provisions of this Agreement or any provisions of law, shall be given or made by
registered mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows until changed:

Orangevale Recreation and Park District
6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662

Benjamin Bliven

6200 Sylvester Way
Carmichael, CA 95603
Cell: (916) 969-3344

benjaminbliven@gmail.com

NEGATION OF PARTNERSHIP

18.  Permittee shall not become or be deemed a partner or joint venture with District
by reason of the provisions of this Agreement.

WAIVER

19.  The failure or omission by District to terminate this Agreement for any violation
of its terms, conditions or agreement shall in no way bar, stop or prevent District from
terminating this Agreement therefore, either for such, or for any subsequent violation of any such
term, condition or covenant. The acceptance of any fees hereunder shall not be or be construed
to be a waiver of any breach of any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

20. In the event of any litigation between the parties hereto arising out of this
Agreement or in connection with the Property used by Permittee pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover a reasonable sum and as for attorney
fees, which shall be added to and become a part of any judgment therein.

21.  This instrument contains all of the agreements and covenants made between the
parties to this Agreement and may not be modified orally or in any other manner than by
agreement in writing signed by all the parties to this Agreement or their respective successors or
assigns. Any such amendment or modification shall be attached to this Agreement.

22.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. This

Page -10-

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 135



Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding its subject matter. If
any provision in this Agreement is held by any court to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect.

23.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and bind any and all successors and
assigns of the parties.

24.  Both parties represent, covenant and warrant that they have full authority to enter
into and execute this Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Orangevale Recreation and Park District has caused this Agreement
to be executed on its behalf by the chairperson and clerk of its board of directors, and the
Permittee has caused this Agreement to be executed on its behalf by its president the day and
year first above written.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND BENJAMIN BLIVEN
PARK DISTRICT
By Date: By Date:
Greg Foell, District Administrator Benjamin Bliven
Page -11-

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 136



STAFF REPORT

ﬂ DATE: 6-8-17
TO:

Ov_‘\ Board of Directors
PARKS ol e
ORANGEVALE FROM: Greg Foell, District Administrator

RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT  SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF THE AGREEMENT WITH MTW TO PROVIDE

IRRIGATION AS-BUILT DRAWINGS FOR PECAN PARK

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the Agreement with MTW to provide irrigation as-built drawings for Pecan Park.

BACKGROUND

The District’s Master Plan recommended completing individual park master plans throughout
the park system. The Board approved a contract to conduct an aerial survey of Pecan Park in
preparation for the master plan and creating a new set of base maps including irrigation plans
for the park. Staff recommends contracting with MTW to complete the irrigation plans for the
park in the amount of $2,500. The contract would be funded out of the professional services
budget category in the OLLAD budget.

RECOMMENDED MOTION

| move we approve the Agreement with MTW to provide irrigation as-built drawings for Pecan
Park in the amount of $2,500 and authorize the District Administrator to execute the contract
documents.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 137



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 8" day of June 2017, by and between
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of

California, hereinafter referred to as “District” and MTW Group, hereinafter referred to as
“Consultant.”

RECITALS

This Agreement is entered into on the basis of the following facts, understandings and
intentions of the parties to this Agreement:

A. District desires to engage the professional services of Consultant to perform such
professional services as are specified in Section 1 hereof.

B. Consultant agrees to provide such services to District in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, and represents and warrants to District that
Consultant possesses the necessary licenses, skills, qualifications, personnel and
equipment to provide such services, all for the benefit of District.

C. The performance of such professional services by Consultant has been determined
by District to be in the public interest.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and mutual covenants
contained herein, District and Consultant agree as follows:

1. Scope of Work.

District engages the services of Consultant as an independent contractor to perform
the work and render the services described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference entitled “Scope of Work™ (hereinafter referred to as the “Work™) The Work
consists of surveying the existing irrigation heads, control valves, quick couplers, and gate
valves for Pecan Park, 5945 Pecan Avenue, Orangevale, CA 95662. After the survey, the
consultant will then operate the irrigation system and design the lateral lines locations the
best we can to produce an as-built irrigation plan for the park district’s use. Consultant
shall (a) provide all labor, equipment, material, supplies, licenses, advice, consultation, analysis,
administration, and preparation of policies, procedures and documents required or necessary to
properly, competently and completely perform the Work provided by this Agreement; (b)
determine the method, details and means of performing the Work provided by this Agreement;
and (c) perform the Work provided by this Agreement in a manner commensurate with the
professional standards of qualified and experienced personnel in Consultant’s field.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 138



2, Payment.

A. In consideration for the services to be performed by Consultant, District
agrees to pay Consultant the amount of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00).

Consultant shall not be compensated for any services rendered nor
reimbursed for any expenses incurred in excess of those authorized in by this Agreement unless

agreed to and approved in advance by the Board of Directors and/or the District Administrator of
District in writing.

Payment of compensation shall be paid by District within thirty (30)
business days after receipt of an invoice for the Work actually performed which shall specifically
describe the details of the Work performed for which compensation is requested, and itemize the
actual time expended by Consultant in providing such work. The invoice shall describe the tasks
and services performed, the time spent performing such services, the hourly rate charged
therefor, and the identity of individuals performing such services for the benefit of District. The
invoice shall also include a detailed itemization of expenses incurred for which reimbursement is
requested.

If the Work is satisfactorily completed and the invoice is accurately
computed, then District shall pay the invoice within thirty (30) days of its receipt. There shall be
no compensation for extra or additional work or services by Consultant other than those
specifically described in Section 1 hereof, unless approved in advance in writing by the District
Administrator of District.

B. Consultant shall properly advise District as soon as reasonably practicable
upon gaining knowledge of a condition, event or series of events that may affect the scope and/or
cost of services to be provided pursuant to this Agreement. All proposed changes, modifications,
deletions and/or requests for additional services shall be reduced to writing in the form of a
Change Order for review and approval by the Board of Directors or District Administrator of
District. In the event the District orders services added, deleted or reduced, compensation shall
likewise be added, deleted or reduced by a fair and reasonable amount and Consultant shall only
be compensated for services actually performed. A Change Order must itemize the additional
fees and expenses, and if any, District shall pay Consultant for such additional work. District
shall have no liability for payment to Consultant for any extra work performed by Consultant
that is not documented by a written Change Order executed by the District Administrator or
Board of Directors of District.

3. Term.

A. This Agreement shall take effect on the above date and shall continue in
effect until completion of the Work contemplated by this Agreement to the satisfaction of
District unless sooner terminated because of either of the following: (1) Consultant fails to
perform the Work diligently and as expeditiously as possible, consistent with the professional
skill and care appropriate for the orderly progress of the Work; (2) Consultant shall have failed to

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 139



complete the Work within 30 days of the estimated timeline outlined in Exhibit A. This time
period may be extended by District for good cause shown by Consultant. Consultant is not
responsible for delays from causes outside the reasonable control of Consultant or its
subcontractors and/or agents.

B. Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

) This Agreement may be terminated for any or all portions of the Work by
either party upon written notice to the other party in the event of a substantial failure of
performance by such other party; or if District, by resolution of its Board of Directors, should

deem it necessary or desirable to abandon or indefinitely postpone the prosecution of any part or
all of the Work.

D. In the event of such abandonment, postponement or default by District,
District shall pay to Consultant as full payment for all services performed and all expenses
incurred under this Agreement, those amounts specified in a final invoice prepared by Consultant
pursuant to the provisions of Section 2 hereof providing a detailed itemization of time spent
performing services and expenses incurred for which reimbursement is requested through the
date of notification of abandonment or postponement of the Work by District.

E. In the event of default in performance by Consultant, the provisions of
Section 5 hereof shall apply.

4, Subcontractors and Subconsultants.

Consultant may employ licensed engineers and/or other consuitants necessary in
connection with the performance of the Work with the prior written consent of District. The
services of such engineers and/or consultants shall be paid for at Consultant’s own expense.
Consultant agrees to coordinate the work of any such consultants or engineers retained by
Consultant for the Work. It is understood by and between District and Consultant that said
engineers and/or consultants shall not be considered employees or agents of District.

5. Default by Consultant.

If Consultant fails to expeditiously advance the Work, or performs work that does
not comply with the requirements of this Agreement, or fails to perform any task or produce any
documents required by this Agreement, or is guilty of any other material breach of the terms of
this Agreement, District may (1) suspend payment until such time as the default is remedied by
Consultant; or (2) by written notice to Consultant terminate Consultant’s right to perform all or
any portion of the Work. Consultant hereby agrees to pay District all damages sustained as a
result of default by Consultant. If District terminates Consultant’s right to perform the Work,
District may have the work performed by others and charge the cost to Consultant. The cost of
completion by District shall include reasonable reimbursement for additional executive and
administrative expenses along with all damages for delay and other damages sustained by
District as a result of Consultant’s default. If the cost and expense of completing the Work,

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 140



when added to the sum of amounts previously paid to Consultant under this Agreement and any
amounts due but unpaid to Consultant at the time of such termination, exceed the contract price,
District may deduct the amount of the excess from any such amounts then due Consultant. If the
amount of such excess is larger than the amounts then due Consultant, Consultant shall
immediately pay such excess or the balance thereof to District.

6. Ownership of Documents.

All documents prepared by Consultant under this Agreement shall be the exclusive
property of District. By this Agreement, Consultant transfers all of its right, title and interest in
such documents to District. To the extent any document prepared under this Agreement
constitutes a copyrightable work, the Work under this Agreement shall be considered a work for
hire and by this Agreement Consultant shall be deemed to transfer all rights, title and interest in
the copyrightable work to District, including the exclusive copyright. Documents prepared by
Consultant under this Agreement shall not be provided by Consultant to any other person without
District’s prior written approval.

P Compliance with Laws.

Consultant shall perform the Work in compliance with all applicable federal, state
and local laws and regulations regarding safety of persons and property and their protection from
damage, injury or loss, including applicable Cal-OSHA regulations. Consultant also shall possess
and maintain all permits, licenses and certificates that may be required for it to perform the
Work. Consultant shall comply with all laws and regulations as required by local, state and
federal agencies regarding nondiscrimination including, but not limited to, Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination Employment
Act of 1967, and the California Fair Employment and Housing Act. The Consultant 1s aware of
the District’s anti-harassment policy and agrees to abide by the policy, practices and procedures
set forth and established by the District.

8. Indemnification.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless District, and its officers,
employees, volunteers and agents from and against any and all liability, claims, damages,
expenses, demands and costs (including, but not limited to, attorney, expert witness and
consultant fees, and litigation costs) arising out of, pertaining to or relating to the negligence,
recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant or Consultant’s agents or employees in
connection with the performance of the Work under this Agreement. Consultant’s obligations
under this indemnification provision shall survive the termination or completion of the Work,
under this Agreement.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 141



9. Insurance.

A. Types and Limits. Consultant at its sole cost and expense shall procure and
maintain for the duration of this agreement the following types and limits of insurance:

Type Limits ' Scope

Commercial Public Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence/ at least as broad as

and Property Damage $4,000,000 aggregate ISO CG 0001

Automobile Liability $2,000,000 per accident at least as broad as
ISO CA 001, code 1
(any auto)

Errors and Omissions $1,000,000 per wrongful act/  See Section 8 E

$2,000,000 aggregate
Workers’ Compensation statutory limits
Employers’ Liability $1,000,000 per accident

B: Other Requirements. The public liability, property damage and automobile
liability insurance furnished by Consultant shall name District as an additional insured and shall
directly protect, as well as provide the defense for District, its officers, agents and employees as
well as Consultant, and its subcontractors, agents, and employees, if any, from all suits, actions,
damages, losses or claims of every type and description to which they may be subjected by
reason of or resulting from Consultant’s operations in the performance of the Work pursuant to
this Agreement, and all insurance policies shall so state. Said insurance shall also specifically
cover the contractual liability of Consultant. Said insurance shall also specify that it acts as
primary insurance and District’s insurance shall not contribute with Consultant’s insurance. If
Consultant fails to maintain such insurance, District may declare a default in the performance of
this Agreement and exercise the remedies specified in Section 6 of this Agreement.

C. Consultant shall be permissibly self insured or shall carry full workers’
compensation coverage for all persons employed, either directly or through subcontractors, in
carrying out the Work contemplated by this Agreement and in accordance with the Workers’
Compensation Act contained in the Labor Code of the State of California. If Consultant fails to
maintain such insurance, District may declare a default in the performance of this Agreement and
exercise the remedies specified in Section 5 of this Agreement.

D. Consultant agrees to furnish a certificate or certificates substantiating the
fact that it has taken out the insurance set forth above for the period covered by the Agreement
and all endorsements substantiating coverage of District and its agents and employees as
additional insureds. All insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating
A:VII or better unless otherwise accepted in writing by District. Each such certificate shall bear
an endorsement precluding the cancellation or reduction in coverage of any policy covered by

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 142



such certificate before the expiration of thirty (30) days after District shall receive notification of
such cancellation or reduction.

E. Consultant, its officers, directors and employees, shall have errors and
omissions insurance coverage which shall protect third parties, including but not limited to the
District, its officers, directors, employees and agents from claims of damage due to alleged
wrongful or negligent acts or omissions arising from Consultant’s performance of the Work
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, whether such claims be made during or subsequent to
the term of this Agreement. Consultant hereby agrees to require any of its subconsultants to
maintain similar errors and omissions coverage in compliance with this section.

10. Warranty.

Consultant agrees that the Work shall be performed in accordance with Exhibit A
and the standard of care for similar professionals in California. Consultant unconditionally
guarantees all workmanship furnished by Consultant under this Agreement, and agrees to correct
to the satisfaction of District any and all such Work that may prove defective in workmanship.
This warranty shall remain in effect for one year from the date of District’s acceptance of the
Work. This warranty does not excuse Consultant for any other liability related to defective work
discovered after the warranty period.

Consultant shall indemmify District under this Agreement and hold District
harmless from any and all losses, damages, liabilities and expenses resulting from breach of
Consultant’s representations and warranties contained in this Section 10. The provisions of this
Paragraph shall survive any termination of the Agreement.

115 Independent Contractor.

The parties hereto agree that at all times during the term of this Agreement
Consultant, Consultant’s employees, subcontractor and agents hired to perform services pursuant
to this Agreement are independent contractors and are not agents or employees of District.
Consultant shall have control over the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures
for performing and coordinating the Work required by this Agreement. District shall have the
right to control Consultant only insofar as the result of Consultant’s services rendered pursuant to
this Agreement. If, in the performance of this Agreement, any third parties are employed or
contracted by Consultant, such employees or subcontractors shall be entirely and exclusively
under the direction, supervision and control of Consultant. All terms of employment, including
hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and discharging or any other term of
employment or contract shall be determined by Consultant, and District shall have no right or
authority over such persons or the terms of their employment or contract.

Therefore, neither Consultant or any third persons employed by or contracted by
Consultant to perform services pursuant to this Agreement shall be entitled to workers®
compensation benefits from District should Consultant or any of its employees, agents or
contractors sustain an injury in the course of performing services specified in this Agreement.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 143



Furthermore, neither Consultant nor any third persons or contractors employed by Consultant
shall be entitled to any other benefits payable to employees of District. Consultant hereby agrees
to defend and hold District harmless from any and all claims that may be made against District
based on any contention by any third party that an employer/employee relationship exists or that
a contractual relationship exists between District and that third party by reason of this
Agreement. Consultant represents that it, and its employees, agents and contractors, if
applicable, are properly licensed and will remain so during the progress of the Work
contemplated by this Agreement.

12.  Representative of District.

The District Administrator of District, or his or her designated representative, shall
represent District in all matters pertaining to the services to be rendered under this Agreement,
except where approval specifically is required by District’s Board of Directors. All requirements
pertaining to services to be rendered under this Agreement shall be submitted to the District
Administrator. Consultant shall consult with the District Administrator on all matters relative to
this Agreement and District shall cooperate with Consultant in all matters relative to this
Agreement in such a manner as will result in the performance of the Work without delay.

13. Assignment.

Consultant shall not assign this Agreement or any interest in it, or any money due or
to become due under it voluntarily, involuntarily or by operation of law without District’s prior
written consent. In the event of any such purported assignment without District’s prior written
consent, District shall have the right, in addition to all other rights provided by law, to terminate
this Agreement by giving written notice to Consultant. If this Agreement is so terminated,
District may contract for the completion of the Work or complete the Work itself. Damages will
be computed in accordance with Section 5 of this Agreement. If this Agreement is so terminated
pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph, Consultant agrees to waive and hereby does waive
all other claims against District for profits, loss or damage because of such termination.

Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment,
no assignment shall release or discharge the assignor from any performance, duty, obligation or
responsibility under this Agreement.

14. Records.

Consultant shall retain and maintain, for a period of not less than four (4) years
following termination of this Agreement, all time records, accounting records and vouchers and
all other records with respect to all matters concerning services performed, compensation paid,
and expenses reimbursed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Consultant shall make
available to District’s agents for examination all such records and will permit District’s agents to

audit, examine and reproduce such records upon request by District at any time during normal
business hours.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 144



15.  Entire Agreement.

This writing and the documents incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A
represents the sole, entire, exclusive and integrated contract between the parties concerning the
Work, and supersedes all prior oral and/or written negotiations, representations or contracts.
Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representations or promises have been made
by any party hereto which are not embodied herein, and that no other agreement or promise not
contained in this Agreement or in the incorporated documents shall be valid or binding. This

Agreement may be amended only by a subsequent written contract approved and executed by
both parties.

16. Successors and Assignment.

This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors and
assigns of the parties; however, Consultant shall not subcontract, assign or transfer this
Agreement or any part of it without the prior written consent of District.

78 No Waiver of Rights.

Any waiver at any time by either party of its rights as to a breach or default of this
Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver as to any other breach or default. No payment by
District to Consultant shall be considered or construed to be an approval or acceptance of any
Work or a waiver of any breach or default. The use by either party of any remedy specified
herein for the enforcement of this Agreement is not exclusive and shall not deprive the party
using such remedy of utilizing any remedy provided by law.

18. Severability.

If any part of this Agreement is held to be void, invalid or unenforceable, then the
remaining parts will nevertheless continue in full force and effect.

19. Attorneys Fees.

In the event any arbitration, litigation or other action or proceeding of any nature
between District and Consultant becomes necessary to enforce or interpret all or any portion of
this Agreement, or in the event of any alleged breach by either party of any of the terms hereof, it
is mutually agreed that the prevailing party will be entitled to an award of reasonable attorneys
fees, costs and expenses from the other party. The prevailing party will be entitled to an award
of attorney’s fees in an amount sufficient to compensate the prevailing party for all attorneys fees
incurred in good faith.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 145



20. Governing Law.

This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of California.

21. Notice.

Any notice, invoice or other communication that is required or permitted to be
given under this Agreement shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by prepaid,
first class U.S. mail addressed as follows: '

District: Orangevale Recreation and Park District
6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
Attention: Greg Foell

Consultant: MTW
10411 Old Placerville Road, Suite 205
Sacramento, CA 95827
Attention: Peter Larimer

Any party may change its address by notifying the other party of the change in the
manner provided above.

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

By:

Name: Greg Foell
Title: District Administrator

MTW GROUP

By:

Name:; Peter Larimer
Title: Principal

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 146



Exhibit A
Scope of Services
1 Project Understanding
The Work consists of surveying the existing irrigation heads, control valves, quick
couplers, and gate valves at the Pecan Park, 5945 Pecan Avenue, Orangevale, CA 95662. After
the survey, the consultant will then operate the irrigation system and design the lateral lines
locations the best we can to produce an as-built irrigation plan for the park district’s use.
2, Scope of Services
The Consultant will produce an as-built design drawing of the irrigation system at
Orangevale Community Park. The District will provide base information for use by the
Consultant.

3 Compensation

The fee for services described above shall be a lump sum amount of Three
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars, payable at the completion of the project:

Completed Project $2,500
4. Record Documents

Upon completion of work, the Consultant will compile for and deliver to the
District a reproducible set of Record Documents.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8,2017 Page 147



'STAFF REPORT

ﬂ DATE: 6-8-17
OV" ~ TO: Board of Directors
LJVPARKS e .
ORANGEVALE FROM: Greg Foell, District Administrator

RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT ~ SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER #1 FROM TIR RESOURCES TO

INCLUDE ADDITIVE ALTERNATE 2 TO THE EXISTING CONTRACT
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE OAK AND FILBERT PATHWAY
PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $83,801.76

RECOMMENDATION
Approve Change Order #1 from TJR Resources to include Additive Alternate 2 to the existing
contract for construction of the Oak and Filbert pathway project in the amount of $83,801.76.

BACKGROUND

The asphalt pathway at the Oak and Filbert area of Orangevale Community Park has been in
poor condition for a number of years. The Board approved a portion of the project as part of
the 2016/17 Fiscal Budget in the amount of $150,000. The project was approved at the January
2017 Board of Directors meeting with bid specifications approved at the February 9, 2017
meeting. Bids were solicited and TJR Resources was the low bid for the Base Bid and all Add
Alternates. The contract for the Base Bid and Add Alt 1 was approved in the amount of
$148,099 at the April Board of Directors meeting.

The completion of the project was rated as the top priority capital project for 2017 by the
Board at the May 2017 Capital Project Workshop. The possibility of adding Additive Alternate 2
to the current contract was discussed so that the entire path could be completed in the most
economical way. TIR Resources was asked to submit a change order for the work which will be
funded out of the District’s Park Development Fee account. Staff recommends approving
Change Order #1 for Add Alternate 2 in the amount of $83,801.76. All other provisions of the
executed contract will remain the same.

RECOMMENDED MOTION

I move we approve Change Order #1 to include Additive Alternate 2 to the existing contract for
construction of the Oak and Filbert Pathway Project from TJR Resources, Inc. in the amount of
$83,801,76.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 148



PO Box 637

Rancho Cordova, CA 95741
- Office/Fax: 888.423.7789
CA DVBE #1759799

FROM: TIR Resources, Inc. 31 May 2017

TO: Orangevale Recreation & Park District
ATTN: Greg Foell
6826 Hazel Ave
Orangevale, CA 95662

SUBJ: Orangevale Community Park Oak & Filbert Pathway project — Change Order #1 Proposal

1. This proposal reflects the change order requested to complete the pathway (identified as
Additive Alternate 2) loop as depicted on page L2.1 of the project plans. The cost is submitted
as a lump price.

i. COST IMPACT: $83,801.76
ii. TIME IMPACT: 10 Days

2. NET TOTAL OF CHANGE ORDER: Addition of $83,801.76 and project extension of 10 days
This would increase the contract price to $231,900.76

3. If you have any questions, please contact me at (888)423-7789 x101 or at
tom.murphy@tjrresources.com.

Respectfully Submitted,

THOMAS MURPHY USAF, RET

President/CEO
TJR Resources, Inc

“palma non sine pulvere”

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting June 8, 2017 Page 149



